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PARTNERSHIP
PROFILE:

Penn Virginia Resource
Partners, L.P. (NYSE:PVR) is
a master limited partnership
formed by Penn Virginia
Corporation (NYSE:PVA)
which operates in two
segments of the energy
industry. PVR’s coal land
management division owns
and manages coal and timber
properties and coal-related
infrastructure assets. With
its acquisition of a natural
gas midstream division in
early 2005, PVR also owns
and operates natural gas
gathering and processing
systems and related assets.

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

in millions, except per unit information 2004 2003 2002 2001
Financial Data
Revenues $ 75.6 55.6 $ 386 $ 375
Operating income 40.5 26.6 244 25.2
Net income 343 22.7 24.7 16.1
Cash flow from operations 54.8 41.1 30.3 216
Distributable cash flow® 55.5 41.5 30.7 22.0
Total assets 284.4 259.9 266.6 162.6
Net debt® 117.7 91.8 90.9 -
Partners' capital 150.0 153.8 162.5 14.5
Per Limited Partner Unit Data”
Net income'® $ 1.86 1.24 $ 1.57 $ 024
Cash distributions declared 2.16 2.08 2.00 0.34
Weighted average number of limited

partner units outstanding 18.1 17.9 15.4 15.3
Operating Data
Coal produced by lessees (millions of tons) 31.2 26.5 14.3 15.3
Coal royalties ($/ton) $ 2.23 1.90 $ 220 $ 2.1
Estimated coal reserves

{millions of recoverable tons) 558 588 615 493

2001 financial data represent total Partnership resuits for the period from inception (October 30, 2001) through
December 31, 2001, and the results of our predecessor from January 1, 2001 through October 29, 2001.

@ pistributable cash flow is calculated as follows:

2004 2003 2002 2001

Cash flow from operations $ 548 $ 411 $ 303 $ 216
Proceeds from note receivable 0.8 0.5 0.5 0.5
Maintenance capital {©.1) ©.1) (0.1) (0.1)
$ 555 $ 415 $ 307 $ 220

® 2001 debt of $43.4 million has been offset by the same amount of short-term investments carried as security for the debt.

2001 per unit information represents results from inception (October 30, 2001) through December 31, 2001.

® Per unit amount is computed after general partner's share.
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For all the success
reflected in the financial
and production numbers,
it is on a strategic basis
that the Partnership made
the greatest strides.

UNITHOLDER LETTER

Dear Unitholder:

Penn Virginia Resource Partners, L.P.
(PVR) had an excellent year from

both an operational and a strategic
perspective. During 2004, PVR's unit price
increased 52 percent. When combined with
its distributions for 2004, PVR's total return

to unitholders was 58 percent. Since its initial
public offering in October 2001 the unit price
has increased 148 percent. Distributions to
unitholders were increased twice during 2004
by a total of 8.2 pefcent to an annualized rate
of $2.25 per unit. The Partnership achieved
new records in several important areas in 2004:

m Coal produced from PVR-controlled
properties was 31.2 million tons, up
18 percent over 2003;

® Revenues grew to $75.6 million, a
36 percent increase over 2003;

m Distributable cash flow, a measure of cash
available for distribution to unitholders,
increased 34 percent to $55.5 million,

For all the success reflected in the financial
and production numbers, it is on a strategic
basis that the Partnership made the greatest
strides. From its inception, PVR has sought to
add fee-based assets to its portfolio. In previous
years the Partnership has built or bought and
then operated coal handling facilities, such as
railcar loadouts, on its own property. In July
2004, PVR announced it had entered into a
fifty-fifty joint venture with Massey Energy
Company [NYSE:MEE] to own and operate coal
handling facilities for industrial end-users. The
joint venture has three existing operations and
is expected to add more facilities over time.

Of even greater significance was the move
into the midstream natural gas business.

On November 23, 2004, PVR announced it
had signed a definitive agreement to purchase
a natural gas gathering and processing business
with assets in Oklahoma and Texas from
Cantera Resources Holding LLC (“Cantera”) for
$191 million in cash. The acquisition closed

in March 2005. The new business segment is
named PVR Midstream and is expected to
generate approximately $25 to $28 million of
cash flow from operations in the first twelve
months after closing.

The Cantera acquisition is important for
several reasons. It is expected to be immediately
accretive to cash flow distributable to the
unitholders and a large percentage of its
revenue and cash flow comes from fee-based
assets, which are compatible with PVR's

master limited partnership (MLP) structure.

In fact, most growth MLPs are in the midstream
oil and gas business. Cantera's seasoned
commercial and operating staff, when
combined with certain PVR senior managers,
who have extensive midstream experience
creates a solid team to oversee the future
growth of the midstream segment of PVR.
Because Penn Virginia Corporation [NYSE:PVA],
the owner of PVR's general partner, is in the

oil and gas exploration and production

business and owns midstream assets, synergies
should arise once the Cantera acquisition has
been completed.
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Strategy

PVR is well positioned to grow from two
distinct platforms: its traditional coal

and land management business and PVR
Midstream. The tax advantaged nature of
PVR's partnership units provides a powerful
currency to finance acquisitions. The original
concept for the Partnership was to expand the
coal royalty business and to acquire fee-based
coal infrastructure as well as midstream oil
and gas assets, using a combination of debt
and partnership units to fund the expansion.

Since its initial public offering in late 2001,
PVR has acquired 136 million tons of coal
reserves (a 33 percent increase) and
diversified into northern Appalachia and

New Mexico. It has also built or bought various
coal handling facilities for use by its lessees.
During 2004 PVR entered into a coal handling
joint venture and initiated the purchase of a
significant midstream natura! gas business.

PVR will continue to identify and evaluate
coal reserve acquisition opportunities.
Accretive coal purchase transactions in

central Appalachia, PVR's home turf, are
difficult to complete. The very strong coal
price environment, especially in the east,

has complicated matters by raising seller
expectations. PVR is also evaluating ideas in
the Iltinois basin, where the coals tend to be
mid to high sulfur and have been out of favor
for some time. As environmental constraints
cause more utilities to scrub their coal and the
lower cost, low sulfur eastern reserves deplete,
the growth of Hlinois basin production appears
inevitable. The question is not if the basin will
have a renaissance but when.

Coal infrastructure projects, particularly those

involving end-users, are attractive MLP assets.

The coal handling joint venture holds consider-
able promise and both Massey and PVR expect
to generate ideas to expand the enterprise.

There should be numerous opportunities to
add to the midstream oil and gas platform.
PVR's approach will include trying to build out
from the former Cantera assets with “bolt on”
acquisitions. Also, other stand-alone midstream
oil and gas assets will be considered. Finally,
potential synergies between PVR and PVA's
operations will be explored.

Another important element of PVR's strategy
is to remain fiscally conservative and manage
for the long term. The Partnership has an
investment grade rating and has been cautious
regarding debt. It has also been prudent with
distribution increases. In order to preserve PVR's
financial flexibility and to keep the balance
sheet from becoming over-levered, we completed
a secondary offering of common limited partner
units soon after Cantera closed in March 2005.

Outlook

The long-term outlook for coal usage has
improved despite the current high price
environment. An increasing number of
coal-fired electrical generating facilities are
being built. Coal's primary competitor, natural
gas, is experiencing a significant amount of
volatility and high price levels. Utility demand
for coal is forecast by the Energy Information
Administration to grow at an average rate of
1.8 percent annually through 2020. The current
prices, especially in Appalachia, may not be
sustainable indefinitely, however, it is unlikely
they will return to the levels of 2000 or 2002.
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UNITHOLDER LETTER, CcONTINUED

For 2005 there is little reason to expect any

meaningful change in coal prices. The longer
term contracts being signed between utilities
and coal suppliers imply solid pricing for the

next few years can be expected.

The outlook for midstream companies appears
to be strong. Since the collapse of Enron in
2001 and resulting shake-out in the diversified
energy world, midstream assets have increas-
ingly changed hands from traditional energy
owners to MLPs. With the success of the MLP
sector over the last two years, capital is widely
available and investors are eager to participate
in the growth in assets and distributions.

Several trends should benefit the midstream
sector and MLPs in general during 2005:

m Economic growth requires energy — the U.S.
and world economies appear to be improving,
which requires more natural gas, oil, and
natural gas liquids to fuel the growth;

@ Commodity prices remain robust — high
energy prices encourage drilling and
exploration domestically, which ultimately
increases midstream throughput;

W Interest rates remain low — although it
appears interest rates will be climbing
gradually through 2005, forecasts indicate
interest rates will remain below historic
averages;

& Mutual fund investment allowed — with the
passage of the American Jobs Creation Act
in October, mutual funds will be allowed to
invest more easily in MLPs, which should
increase access to capital and interest in
the sector; and

® Producers are becoming more "MLP
friendly"— midstream customers are
growing more accustomed to contract
structures such as fee for service, percent-
of-proceeds, and processing floors which
give the MLP midstream company the cash
flow stability needed for success.

PVR is well positioned to capitalize on these
trends. The Partnership has a solid asset base
and one of the lowest costs of capital in the
MLP sector. Having a low cost of capital means
having the ability to be competitive in seeking
acquisitions and facilitates organic growth
project financing.

PVR has tried to position itself to take
advantage of the current strong price
environment. With a diversified, increasingly
fee-based revenue stream the Partnership
should be able to sustain its growth for
years to come.

It has been a very good year for PVR and

its unitholders. The Partnership's Board of
Directors and its management are pleased

to make this report and appreciate your
investment in Penn Virginia Resource Partners.

o Lk

A. JAMES DEARLOVE
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

(A

TH D. HORTON
President and Chief Operating Officer

4 Penn Virginia Resource Partners, L P. [ 2004 Annual Repart




OVERVIEW OF OPERATIONS

Review of Operations

During 2004 PVR established new records
for revenues which were up 36 percent over
2003, to $75.6 million and coal royalties
which were $69.6 million, a 38 percent
increase over 2003. Coal production

from PVR's properties was also a record
31.2 million tons, an 18 percent increase
over 2003.

Coal prices were very strong, especially in the
east, where spot prices hovered around $60
per ton for much of the year. However, more
important than increased spot prices was the
fact many utilities began signing multiyear
contracts with coal cperators to purchase coal
at over $40 per ton, These prices are dramatic
increases over contract prices from 2002 or
early 2003. The significance is that the new
contracts tend to lock in the higher prices

for a period of time, providing a degree of
certainty to the industry. A portion of PVR's
coal reserves are capable of moving into

the metallurgical market, which has seen a

resurgence due to the devaluation of the dollar
as compared to many foreign currencies and
the robust growth of the Chinese economy.
Domestic steel production increased in excess
of 6.5% during the year and China has
increased both coke and steel imports. The
strong prices in the metallurgical market have
caused a portion of the high quality coal that
was being sold to utilities to move into the
metallurgical markets. This has significantly
tightened the supply of eastern steam coal
available to the utility market.

Coal pricing is important to PVR because
approximately 70 percent of coal produced
from its properties comes from leases tied
directly to the price received by the producer.
The other 30 percent comes from leases with
Peabody Energy Corporation [NYSE:BTU], which
escalate annually but are not tied directly to
coal prices. As contracts between the various
producers leasing coal from PVR and their
utility customers have been renegotiated,
the Partnership's revenues have increased.
Realizations have increased from a weighted
average of $1.90 per ton in 2003 to $2.23
per ton in 2004. PVR expects its weighted
average royalty realization to increase by at
least five percent in 2005.

Coal production from central Appalachia, where
approximately 77 percent of PVR's royalties
originate, has fallen in the past few years by

as much as 20 percent. Production from PVR's
central Appalachian lessees increased in 2004,
however, the forecast for 2005 production from
the region is flat relative to 2004. Despite the
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YEAR END 2004
COAL RESERVES

Percentage of 558 million tons

B Central Appalachia 80%
M Northern Appalachia 8%
O New Mexico 12%

PVR remains committed
to growth in the coal
royalty and related
businesses.

OVERVIEW OF OPERATIONS, CONTINUED

strong pricing, it remains difficult to obtain
permits and labor shortages are acute.
Assuming a normal economy, demand for coal
should increase gradually as electricity demand
increases. At some point in the future, PVR
expects an increasing amount of this demand
growth will be satisfied by coal from the Illinois
basin where, due to high sulfur levels, the coals
require scrubbing. PVR expects the percentage
of coals subject to scrubbing will increase as
environmental standards become more strict.

PVR remains committed to growth in the coal
royalty and related businesses. However, one
negative effect of the high price environment
was to limit the opportunities to complete
accretive acquisitions of coal reserves. PVR has
evaluated and continues to review a number of
coal reserve prospects; however, there is little
appeal to overpaying.

The Partnership was able to take advantage
of another growth opportunity in 2004 by
acquiring from affiliates of Massey Energy
Company for $28.4 million in July 2004, a 50
percent interest in a joint venture, formed to
own and operate end-user coal handling
facilities. The joint venture is pursuing
additional projects to build and operate coal
handling facilities for end-users.

Natural Gas Midstream Acquisition

On November 23, 2004 PVR announced
that it had signed a definitive agreement

to purchase a natural gas gathering and
processing business with assets in Oklahoma
and Texas from Cantera Resource Holdings
LLC (“Cantera"). The acquisition price is $191
million in cash and the transaction closed in
March 2005. This new business segment is
named PVR Midstream and is expected to
generate approximately $25 to $28 million of
cash flow from operations in the first twelve
months following closing.

With the closing of the Cantera acquisition,
PVR will have achieved a long-stated objec-
tive of entering the midstream oil and gas
business. Most growth MLPs are involved in
midstream oil and gas due in part to the
number of opportunities for growth and the
nature of the assets.

The acquired assets include approximately
3,400 miles of gas gathering pipelines that
supply three natural gas processing plants,
which have 160 million cubic feet per day
of capacity. Revenues are derived primarily
from the sharing of sales proceeds of natural
gas and natural gas liguids under contracts
with natural gas producers and from fees
charged for the gathering and processing of
natural gas and other related services. Cantera's
assets are located in four geographic regions.
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® The Oklahoma and Texas Panhandles —
1,160 miles of gas gathering pipelines
that deliver gas to the 100 MMcfd Beaver
processing facility;

® North Central Oklahoma — 1,670 miles of
low pressure gathering pipelines that deliver

PVR expects to increase its presence in the
midstream sector of the oil and gas industry.
The physical assets and the intellectual capital
provided by Cantera's seasoned commercial and
operating management personnel makes it a
platform to support future acquisitions while

keeping overhead expenses low. The Partnership
will also look for ways to achieve operating
synergies with Penn Virginia Corporation’s oil
and gas exploration and production business.

gas to the 40 MMcfd Crescent gas plant;

m North Central Texas — 515 miles of
gathering pipelines that deliver gas to
the 20 MMcfd Hamiin gas plant; and

B The Arkoma Basin — 78 miles of
gathering pipefines that deliver gas
to various market pipelines.

Natural Gas Midstream Industry Overview

The midstream natural gas industry is the link between the exploration and production of natural gas

and the delivery of its components to end-use markets. It consists of natural gas gathering, dehydration,
compression, treating, processing and transportation and NGL fractionation and transportation. The
midstream industry is generally characterized by regional competition based on the proximity of gathering
systems and processing plants to natural gas producing wells,

The following diagram illustrates the natural gas gathering, dehydration, compression, treating, processing,

fractionation and transportation processes. Of these services, PVR Midstream provides natural gas gathering,

dehydration, compression, processing, transportation and related services to its customers.
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PVR expects to increase
its presence in the
midstream sector of
the oil and gas industry.
The physical assets and
the intellectual capital
provided by Cantera's
seasoned commercial
and operating manage-
ment personnel makes
it a platform to support
future acquisitions.




h{an Coal Reserves and Infrastructure

é( Q;
Jl
]

PVR Coal Land Management

M Central Appalachia:
446MM tons of high quality
reserves; 61 mines served
by two major railroads
and inland river system. - { Cabin Creek

Fields Creek

B Northern Appalachia:
44MM tons of mid to
high sulfur coal, principal
lessee is Peabody Energy.

B New Mexico: 68MM tons
of mid sulfur coal mined
by Peabody and railed to
several utilities.

PVR Midstream Operations
(2005 PVR Acquisition)

Four systems — Beaver, )i
Crescent, Hamlin and ; || M continent Natural Gas M|dstream Operatlons

1 3,4 i f
Arkom.a 3400 miles o n N w Mexico Coal Reserves
gathering systems and three f

NGL processing plants with a
total of 160 MMcfd capacity.
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EXPLANATORY NOTE

We are filing this Amendment No. 1 on Form 10-K/A to our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the fiscal
year ended December 31, 2004 that was originally filed on March 1, 2005 (the “Original Filing”) to amend Part
III, Ttem 11, on page 65 of the Original Filing as disclosed herein. Generally, we have amended the Summary
Compensation Table included in Item 11 to (a) disclose the values of restricted unit awards under the heading
“Restricted Unit Award(s)” rather than under “Other Annual Compensation” and to reflect the values of those
awards granted in 2004 rather than in 2005 and (b) expand the information contained in certain of the footnotes
to the Summary Compensation Table.

This report continues to speak as of the date of the Original Filing, and we have not updated the disclosure
in this report to speak as of a later date. All information contained in this report and the Original Filing is subject
to updating and supplementing as provided in our periodic reports filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission.




PART Il

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The officers of the general partner manage and operate our business. We do not directly employ any of the
persons responsible for managing or operating our business, but instead reimburse the general partner for the
services of such persons. The following table sets forth the compensation paid during 2004, 2003 and 2002 for
services rendered on behalf of the Partnership to the general partner’s Chief Executive Officer and the other four
most highly compensated executive officers whose compensation exceeded $100,000 in 2004

Summary Compensation Table

Long-Term
Annual Compensation(1) Compensation(1)
Other Annual All Other
Compensation  Restricted Unit  Compensation

Name and Principal Position Year Salary($) Bonus ($) $)(2) Award(s) ($)(3) ($)4)

A.James Dearlove .............. 2004 170,000 110,000 7916 199,329 774

Chief Executive Officer 2003 165,000 62,500 5,496 35,715 774

2002 155,000 62,500 4,869 138,900 774

KeithD.Horton ................ 2004 217,800 130,500 12,690 139,880 414

President and Chief Operating 2003 211,500 72,000 10,749 35,715 414

Officer 2002 202,500 27,000 5,411 196,775 486

RonaldK.Page ................. 2004 148,500 90,000 5,400 16,950 287

Vice President, Corporate 2003 72,000 28,800 10,800 22,410 207
Development(5)

Frank A.Pici .............0ovunn 2004 116,500 70,000 5,428 34,970 270

Vice President and Chief Financial 2003 113,000 40,000 4,322 23,810 270

Officer 2002 107,500 30,000 4,863 81,025 263

Nancy M. Snyder ............... 2004 100,000 60,000 4,166 34,970 414

Vice President and General Counsel 2003 96,250 40,000 4,309 23,810 414

2002 87,500 40,000 3,633 81,025 264

(1) Messrs. Dearlove, Horton, Page and Pici and Ms. Snyder devote approximately 50 percent, 90 percent, 90
percent, 50 percent and 50 percent of their professional time, respectively, to the business and affairs of the
Partnership. They devote the balance of their professional time to the business and affairs of Penn Virginia
Corporation, which is the indirect sole member of the general partner. For administrative purposes, Penn
Virginia Corporation pays these amounts directly to these officers, and then the general partner reimburses
such amounts to the general partner. The chart above does not include amounts paid to these officers in
consideration for time devoted to the business of Penn Virginia Corporation.

(2) These amounts reflect car allowances, which Penn Virginia Corporation pays directly to the named
executives and then receives reimbursement from the general partner,

(3) These amounts include the value on the date of grant of restricted units granted under the general partner’s
Long Term Incentive Plan. Twenty-five percent of these restricted units vested on November 12, 2004.
Generally, the balance of these restricted units will vest 25 percent and 50 percent on the date of the first
distribution paid after September 30 of each of 2005 and 2006, respectively, if the Partnership has made all
minimum quarterly distributions payable to unitholders as required under its partnership agreement prior to
the time of such vesting. Messrs. Dearlove, Horton, Page, Pici and Ms. Snyder received $25,020, $27,600,
$2,390, $11,140 and $11,140, respectively, of distributions paid with respect to these restricted units in
2004, $14,700, $19,850, $780, $8770 and $8,770 of such distributions in 2003 and $9,000, $12,750, $0,
$5,250 and $5,250 of such distributions in 2002. Restricted units may not be transferred, and are subject to
forfeiture upon termination of employment, until such time as the restricted units vest. The table below sets
forth the number and aggregate market value of restricted units held on December 31, 2004 by each of the
executive officers named in the Summary Compensation Table. The value of these restricted units was



determined by multiplying the closing market price of the Partnership’s common units on December 31,
2004 by the number of restricted units held on such date.

Name Number Market Value ($)
A.James Dearlove .. ... 9,900 515,790
KeithD. Horton ... i 10,500 547,050
Ronald K. Page .. ... i 938 48,870
Frank A. Pici ... ... . 4,125 214,913
Nancy M. Snyder .......... i 4,125 214,913

(4) Reflects reimbursements to Penn Virginia Corporation for life insurance premiums.
(5) Mr. Page joined the general partner in July 2003.

Compensation of Directors

During the year ended December 31, 2004, each non-employee director of the general partner was entitled
to receive 4,000 restricted units upon election to the Board, 1,000 common units on the first business day of each
year and quarterly cash payments of $3,750 each. Each non-employee director also received $1,000 for each
Board of Directors and committee meeting he attended. Committee Chairmen received an additional $250 for
each meeting they chaired.

Beginning on January 1, 2005, each non-employee director of the general partner will receive an annual
retainer of $110,000, consisting of $20,000 of cash and $90,000 worth of deferred common units. The actual
number of deferred common units awarded in any given year will be based on the fair market value of the
Partnership’s units on the date on which such award is granted. Each deferred common unit represents one
common unit representing a limited partner interest in the Partnership, which vests immediately upon issuance
and is available to the holder upon termination or retirement from the Board. The Chairperson of the Audit
Committee receives an annual cash retainer of $15,000, and each Audit Committee member receives an annual
cash retainer of $10,000. The Chairpersons of all other Commiittees receive annual cash retainers of $2,500. In
addition to annual retainers, each non-employee director receives $1,000 cash for each Board of Directors and
Committee meeting he attends. Directors appointed during a year, or who cease to be directors during a year,
receive a pro rata portion of cash and deferred common units. Directors may elect to receive any cash payments
in common stock or deferred common units, and may elect to defer the receipt of any cash or units they receive
under the Company’s Non-Employee Directors Deferred Compensation Plan.

Long-term Incentive Plan

The Amended and Restated Penn Virginia Resource GP, LLC, Long-Term Incentive Plan permits the grant
of awards covering an aggregate of 300,000 common units to employees and directors of the general partner and
employees of its affiliates who perform services for us. Awards under the long-term incentive plan can be for
common units, restricted units, unit options, phantom units and deferred common units. The plan is administered
by the compensation committee of the general partner’s board of directors.

Our general partner’s board of directors in its discretion may terminate or amend the long-term incentive
plan at any time with respect to any units for which a grant has not yet been made. The general partner’s board of
directors also has the right to alter or amend the long-term incentive plan or any part of the plan from time to
time, including increasing the number of units that may be granted subject to unitholder approval as required by
the exchange upon which the common units are listed at that time. However, no change in any outstanding grant
may be made that would materially impair the rights of the participant without the consent of the participant.
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Restricted Units. A restricted unit entitles the grantee to receive a common unit upon the vesting of the
restricted unit. The general partner granted 16,400 restricted units to directors, officers and employees of the
general partner in 2004 with respect to services rendered in 2003. Restricted units vest upon terms established by
the committee, but in no case earlier than the conversion to common units of the Partnership’s outstanding
subordinated units. In addition, the restricted units will vest upon a change of control of the general partner or
Penn Virginia Corporation.

If a grantee’s employment with or membership on the board of directors of the general partner terminates
for any reason, the grantee’s restricted units will be automatically forfeited unless, and to the extent, the
compensation committee provides otherwise. Common units to be delivered upon the vesting of restricted units
may be common units acquired by the general partner in the open market, common units already owned by the
general partner, common units acquired by the general partner directly from us or any other person or any
combination of the foregoing. The general partner will be entitled to reimbursement by us for the cost incurred in
acquiring common units.

Distributions payable with respect to restricted units may, at the committee’s request, be paid directly to the
grantee or held by the Company and made subject to a risk of forfeiture during the applicable restriction period.

Unit Options. The long-term incentive plan also permits the grant of options covering common units. No
grants of unit options have been made under the long-term incentive plan. Unit options will have an exercise
price that, in the discretion of the committee, may be less than, equal to or more than the fair market value of the
units on the date of grant. In general, unit options granted will become exercisable over a period determined by
the compensation committee. In addition, the unit options will become exercisable upon a change in control of
the general partner or Penn Virginia Corporation.

Upon exercise of a unit option, the general partner will acquire common units in the open market or directly
from us or any other person or use common units already owned by the general partner, or any combination of
the foregoing. The general partner will be entitled to reimbursement by us for the difference between the cost
incurred by the general partner in acquiring these common units and the proceeds received by the general partner
from an optionee at the time of exercise. Thus, the cost of the unit options will be borne by us.

Phantom Units. A phantom unit entitles the grantee to receive a common unit upon the vesting of the
phantom unit, or in the discretion of the compensation committee, the cash equivalent of the value of a common
unit. The compensation committee will determine the time period over which phantom units granted to
employees and directors will vest. In addition, the phantom units will vest upon a change of control of the
general partner or Penn Virginia Corporation.

If a grantee’s employment or membership on the board of directors terminates for any reason, the grantee’s
phantom units will be automatically forfeited unless, and to the extent, the compensation committee provides
otherwise. Common units delivered upon the vesting of restricted units may be common units acquired by the
general partner in the open market, common units already owned by the general partner, common units acquired
by the general partner directly from us of any other person or any combination of the foregoing. The general
partner will be entitled to reimbursement by us for the cost incurred in acquiring common units. The
compensation committee, in its discretion, may grant tandem distribution equivalent rights with respect to
phantom units.

Deferred Common Units. The long-term incentive plan permits the grant of deferred common units to
directors. Each deferred common unit represents one common unit, which vests immediately upon issuance and
is available to the holder upon termination or retirement from the board of directors of the general partner.
Deferred common units awarded to directors receive all cash or other distributions paid by the Partnership on
account of its common units.
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Part IV
Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules and Reports on Form 8-K
The following documents are filed as exhibits to this Report on Form 10-K/A.
(a) Exhibits

(31.1) Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002.

(31.2) Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 302 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002.

(32.1) Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002.

(32.2) Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-
Oxley Act of 2002.
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Part 1

Item 1. Business

General

LIRS

Penn Virginia Resource Partners, L.P. (“the Partnership,” “we,” “our” or “us™) is a Delaware limited
partnership formed by Penn Virginia Corporation (“Penn Virginia”) in 2001 to primarily engage in the business
of managing coal properties in the United States. We conduct operations in two business segments: coal royalty
and land leasing (which includes timber) and coal services (for our lessees and other third party end-users). In
2004, approximately 95 percent of our revenues were attributable to our coal royalty and land leasing operations
and approximately five percent of our revenues were attributable to our coal services operations.

In our coal royalty and land leasing operations, we enter into long-term leases with experienced, third-party
mine operators providing them the right to mine our coal reserves in exchange for royalty payments. We do not
operate any mines. As of December 31, 2004, our properties contained approximately 558 million tons of proven
and probable coal reserves located on 241,000 acres in Virginia, West Virginia, New Mexico and eastern
Kentucky. In 2004, our lessees produced 31.2 million tons of coal from our properties and paid us coal royalty
revenues of $69.6 million. As of December 31, 2004, we had leased an aggregate of approximately 89 percent of
our reserves under 55 leases to 29 different operators who mine coal at 65 mines. Approximately 79 percent of
our 2004 coal royalty revenues and 72 percent of our 2003 coal royalty revenues were derived from coal mined
on our properties and sold by our lessees multiplied by a royalty rate per ton resulting from the higher of a
percentage of the gross sales price or a fixed price per ton of coal, with pre-established minimum monthly or
annual rental payments. The balance of our 2004 and 2003 coal royalty revenues was derived from coal mined on
two of our properties under leases containing fixed royalty rates per ton of coal mined and sold. The royalty rates
under those leases escalate annually, with pre-established minimum monthly payments (see “Acquisitions and
Investments—The Peabody Acquisition” below). Included in our coal royalty and land leasing segment are
revenues earned from the sale of standing timber on our properties.

In our coal services segment, we generate revenues from providing fee-based coal preparation and
transportation services to our lessees, which enhances their production levels and generates additional coal
royalty revenues. In this segment we also earn revenues from third party end-users by owning and operating coal
handling facilities through our joint venture with Massey Energy Company (see “Acquisitions and Investments—
Coal Handling Joint Venture” below).

Acquisitions and Investments
The Cantera Acquisition

In November 2004, we entered into an agreement to purchase from Cantera Resources Holdings LLC
(“Cantera”) a natural gas gathering and processing business with assets in Oklahoma and Texas for $191 million
of cash (the “Cantera Acquisition™). Upon closing this acquisition, we will own and operate a set of midstream
assets including approximately 3,400 miles of gas gathering pipelines that supply three natural gas processing .
facilities, which have 160 million cubic feet per day (MMcfd) of total capacity. We anticipate that the Cantera
Acquisition will close in the first quarter of 2005. At closing, the Cantera Acquisition will be funded by our
credit facility, which we expect to revise and expand concurrent with the closing of the acquisition. We anticipate
using a combination of our credit facility and new equity capital to permanently finance this acquisition. As of
December 31, 2004, we capitalized $0.7 million for costs related to the Cantera Acquisition. In order to mitigate
the risk of price volatility, in January 2005, we entered into notional derivative contracts for approximately 75
percent of the net volume of natural gas liquids expected to be sold from April 2005 through December 2006. As
of February 25, 2005, the derivative instruments had an aggregate fair value of $6.7 million, favorable to the
counterparty. Upon closing of the Cantera Acquisition, we expect the derivative instruments to qualify as cash
flow hedges in accordance with SFAS No. 133, “Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities.”
Until closing the acquisition, the derivative instruments will not qualify for hedge accounting; thus, changes in
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the derivative instruments’ fair value prior to the closing will be recognized in earnings immediately. The fair
value of the derivative instruments will change as the market prices of the underlying commodities change. Any
settlement of the derivative instruments will be paid or received over the 21-month term of the contracts.

Coal Handling Joint Venture

In July 2004, we acquired from affiliates of Massey Energy Company a 50 percent interest in a joint venture
formed to own and operate end-user coal handling facilities. The purchase price was $28.4 million and was
funded through the Partnership’s credit facility.

The joint venture owns coal handling facilities which unload shipments and store and transfer coal for three
industrial coal consumers in the chemical, paper and lime production industries located in Tennessee, Virginia
and Kentucky, respectively. A combination of fixed monthly fees and per ton throughput fees is paid by those
consumers under long-term leases expiring between 2007 and 2019. We recognized equity earnings of $0.4
million related to our ownership in the joint venture in 2004. We received a joint venture distribution of
approximately $1.0 million during the fourth quarter of 2004 relating to third quarter operations.

Bull Creek Loadout Facility

In January 2004, we completed the construction of a new coal loadout facility for one of our lessees on our
Coal River property in West Virginia. The $4.4 million loadout facility is designed for the high-speed loading of
150-car unit trains and became operational on February 1, 2004. This facility generated additional revenues of
approximately $0.5 million in 2004, and we believe it resulted in increased coal production of approximately 0.4
million tons from this lessee during 2004.

The Peabody Acquisition

In December 2002, we acquired (the “Peabody Acquisition™) 120 million tons of proven and probable coal
reserves (the “Reserves”) located in New Mexico (80 million tons) and West Virginia (40 million tons) from
Peabody Energy Corporation (‘“Peabody”). All of the Reserves were leased back to subsidiaries of Peabody by
the Partnership under leases containing the terms described below under “Coal Leases.” The Peabody
Acquisition provided geographic diversity by exposing us to new markets in the western United States and in
northern Appalachia. The inclusion of Peabody as a significant part of our lessee mix added strength and stability
to our lessee group. The acquisition was funded with $72.5 million of cash, 1.53 million common units and 1.23
million class B common units. All of the Class B common units were converted into common units in accordance
with their terms, upon the approval of PVR common unitholders in July 2003. In December 2003 and January
2004, Peabody sold 1.15 million of its common units in public offerings sponsored by the Partnership, and, as of
December 31, 2004, Peabody held 0.84 million common units.

The Upshur Acquisition

In August 2002, we purchased approximately 16 million tons of proven and probable coal reserves located
on the Upshur properties in northern Appalachia for $12.3 million (the “Upshur Acquisition”). The properties,
which include approximately 18,000 mineral acres, contain predominantly high sulfur, high BTU coal reserves.

The West Coal River Acquisition

In May 2001, we acquired the Fork Creek property in West Virginia, which we now refer to as our West
Coal River property, by purchasing from and leasing back to the operator approximately 53 million tons of coal
reserves for $33 million. After this acquisition, the operator filed for bankruptcy protection under Chapter 11 of
the U.S. Bankruptcy Code, and, in November 2002, we purchased through the bankruptcy proceeding various
infrastructure at West Coal River, including a 900 ton per hour coal preparation plant, a unit train loading facility
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and a railroad-granted rebate on coal loaded through the facility for $5.1 million plus the assumption of
approximately $3.0 million in reclamation and stream mitigation obligations. We leased this property to another
operator in May 2003 and have assigned all reclamation and mitigation liabilities to the new lessee, which has
agreed to be responsible for those liabilities. The new lessee began operations in the third quarter of 2003.

Business Strategy
Our principal business strategies are to:

»  Pursue coal reserve acquisition opportunities. We have been engaged in the coal land management
business in Appalachia since 1882. We intend to continue to actively pursue opportunities to expand our
eastern reserves through acquisition of additional coal reserves and development of our existing
properties. We are also considering ways to continue to expand geographically by evaluating acquisition
opportunities in several basins including the Illinois basin. Although Illinois basin coals tend to be high
sulfur, we believe the growth of Illinois basin coal production is likely, as environmental constraints
cause more utilities to scrub their coal and as low sulfur eastern reserves deplete,.

»  Expand our coal services segment. Coal infrastructure projects are typically long-lived, fee-based assets
which generally produce steady and predictable cash flows, and, therefore, are attractive to master
limited partnerships. In 2004, we put the Bull Creek loadout facility into service and entered into the
coal handling joint venture with Massey Energy, which has allowed us to invest in fee-based coal-
related infrastructure projects involving end users of coal in the chemical, paper and lime production
industries in Tennessee, Virginia and Kentucky. We intend to continue to look for growth opportunities
in this segment.

» Enter the natural gas midstream business and expand that segment. The Cantera Acquisition will add
natural gas midstream operations to our existing business, and we expect it to become a platform from
which to grow the midstream business. Additionally, our relationship with Penn Virginia exposes us to a
number of opportunities to purchase other oil and natural gas gathering systems and other infrastructure
assets. Such assets are generally well suited for master limited partnerships. See Item 1, “Business,—
Ownership by and Relationship with Penn Virginia Corporation.”

*  Maintain financial flexibility. We presently have an investment grade debt rating on the $88.5 million of
unsecured private notes we issued in 2003. We intend to continue to be fiscally conservative and
manage our capital structure for the long term, which means that we will continue to be cautious
regarding debt levels and distribution increases. For example, in order to reduce our debt level, we
intend to complete a secondary public offering of new partnership units in 2005 following the closing of
the Cantera Acquisition.

Coal Leases

The Partnership earns most of its coal royalty revenues under long-term leases that generally require our
lessees to make royalty payments to us based on the higher of a percentage of the gross sales price or a fixed
price per ton of coal they sell. Approximately 79 percent of our 2004 coal royalty revenues and 72 percent of our
2003 coal royalty revenues were collected under this type of variable rate lease. The balance of our coal royalty
revenues are earned under two long term leases with affiliates of Peabody that require the lessees to make royalty
payments to us based on fixed royalty rates which escalate annually through 2014. A typical lease either expires
upon exhaustion of the leased reserves, which is the case with the two Peabody leases, or has a five to ten-year
base term, with the lessee having an option to extend the lease for at least five years after the expiration of the
base term.

Substantially all of our leases require the lessee to pay minimum rental payments in monthly or annual
installments, even if no mining activities are ongoing. These minimum rentals are recoupable, usually over a
period from one to three years from the time of payment, against the production royalties owed to the Partnership
once coal production commences.



In addition to the terms described above, substantially all of our leases impose obligations on the lessees to
diligently mine the leased coal using modern mining techniques, indemnify us for any damages we incur in
connection with the lessee’s mining operations, including any damages we may incur due to our lessee’s failure
to fulfill reclamation or other environmental obligations, conduct mining operations in compliance with all
applicable laws, obtain our written consent prior to assigning the lease, and maintain commercially reasonable
amounts of general liability and other insurance. Substantially all of the leases grant us the right to review all
lessee mining plans and maps, enter the leased premises to examine mine workings and conduct audits of lessees’
compliance with lease terms. In the event of a default by a lessee, substantially all of the leases give us the right
to terminate the lease and take possession of the leased premises.

Ownership by and Relationship with Penn Virginia Corporation

One of the Partnership’s attributes is its relationship with Penn Virginia, a publicly held energy company
based in Radnor, Pennsylvania. Penn Virginia has been engaged in the coal royalty business since 1882 and is
also engaged in the exploration, development and production of oil and natural gas. Penn Virginia formed the
Partnership in July 2001 to own and operate substantially all of the assets and assume the liabilities relating to
Penn Virginia’s coal land management business. The Partnership completed its initial public offering (the “IPO”)
of 7,475,000 common units at a price of $21.00 per unit on October 30, 2001. Penn Virginia has a significant
interest in the Partnership through its indirect ownership of a 42 percent limited partner interest and the two
percent sole general partner interest in us.

Penn Virginia has a history of successfully completing energy acquisitions. The Partnership pursues
acquisitions independently and has the opportunity to participate jointly with Penn Virginia in reviewing
potential acquisitions. These may include acquisitions of properties containing multiple natural resources, such as
oil, natural gas, coal and timber as well as infrastructure related to those resources such as natural gas gathering
systems and coal preparation plants and loading facilities. The Partnership would expect to retain all coal
reserves and related infrastructure, all timber resources and all natural gas gathering systems acquired in any such
joint acquisition and to allocate the remaining purchased assets between the Partnership and Penn Virginia as
appropriate after considering each entity’s characteristics and strategies. We expect that our ability to participate
in potential acquisitions with, and our access to the experienced management team and industry contacts of, Penn
Virginia will benefit us.

Our partnership agreement provides that our general partner, which is an indirect wholly owned subsidiary
of Penn Virginia, is restricted by agreement from engaging in any coal-related business activities other than those
incidental to its ownership of interests in us. Under an omnibus agreement we entered into with Penn Virginia
and our general partner concurrently with the closing of our IPO, Penn Virginia agreed, and caused its controlled
affiliates to agree, not to engage in the businesses of (i) owning, mining, processing, marketing or transporting
coal, (ii) owning, acquiring or leasing coal reserves or (iii) growing, harvesting or selling timber unless it first
offers us the opportunity to acquire such businesses or assets and the board of directors of the general partner,
with the concurrence of its conflicts committee, elects to cause us not to pursue such opportunity or acquisition.
This restriction did not apply to the assets and businesses retained by Penn Virginia at the closing of the IPO.
Under the omnibus agreement, Penn Virginia will be able to purchase any business which includes the purchase
of coal reserves, timber and/or infrastructure relating to the production or transportation of coal if the majority
value of such business is not derived from owning, mining, processing, marketing or transporting coal or
growing, harvesting or selling timber. If Penn Virginia makes any such acquisition, it must offer us the
opportunity to purchase the coal reserves, timber and/or related infrastructure following the acquisition.

Concurrently with the closing of the IPO, Penn Virginia also agreed to indemnify us through October 2006
for certain pre-existing tax and environmental liabilities of up to $10 million.




Partnership Structure and Management

Our operations are conducted through, and our operating assets are owned by, our subsidiaries. We own our
subsidiaries through an operating company, Penn Virginia Operating Co., LLC (the “Operating Company”). At
February 24, 2005, our Partnership structure was as follows:

* Penn Virginia Resource GP, LLC, our general partner and an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of Penn
Virginia, owns the two percent general partner interest in us;

* Penn Virginia Resource LP Corp., Kanawha Rail Corp. and Penn Virginia Resource GP, LLC, indirect
wholly owned subsidiaries of Penn Virginia, own an aggregate of 2,048,426 common units and
5,737,410 subordinated units, representing an aggregate 42 percent limited partner interest in us;

¢ we own 100 percent of the member interests in the Operating Company; and

¢ the Operating Company owns 100 percent of the member interests in its subsidiaries, which include
Fieldcrest, LLC, Suncrest, LLC, Loadout, LLC, K Rail, LLC and Wise, LLC.

Our general partner and its affiliates are entitled to distributions on the general partner interest and on any
common units and subordinated units they hold. Additionally, our general partner is entitled to distributions on
its incentive distribution rights. Our general partner has sole responsibility for conducting our business and for
managing our operations. Our general partner will not receive any management fee or other compensation in
connection with its management of our business, but will be entitled to be reimbursed for all direct and indirect
expenses incurred on our behalf. See Note 11, “Related Party Transactions—General and Administrative,” in the
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements.

Partnership Distributions
Cash Distributions

We paid cash distributions of $2.12 per common and subordinated unit during the year ended December 31,
2004. For 2005, we expect to make quarterly distributions of $0.5625 ($2.25 annual) or more per common and
subordinated unit.

Incentive Distribution Rights

In accordance with the partnership agreement, incentive distribution rights represent the right to receive an
increasing percentage of quarterly distributions of available cash from operating surplus after the minimum
quarterly distribution and the target distribution levels have been achieved. The minimum quarterly distribution
is $0.50 per unit ($2.00 per unit on an annual basis). Our general partner currently holds the incentive distribution
rights, but may transfer these rights separately from its general partner interest to an affiliate (other than an
individual) or to another entity as part of the merger or consolidation of our general partner with or into such
entity or the transfer of all or substantially all of our general partner’s assets to another entity without the prior
approval of our unitholders if the transferee agrees to be bound by the provisions of our partnership agreement.
Prior to September 30, 2011, other transfers of incentive distribution rights will require the affirmative vote of
holders of a majority of the outstanding common units and subordinated units, voting as separate classes. On or
after September 30, 2011, the incentive distribution rights will be freely transferable.

If for any quarter:

» we have distributed available cash from operating surplus to the common and subordinated unitholders
in an amount equal to the minimum quarterly distribution; and

* we have distributed available cash from operating surplus on outstanding common units in an amount
necessary to eliminate any cumulative arrearages in payment of the minimum quarterly distribution;
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then, we will distribute any additional available cash from operating surplus for that quarter among the
unitholders and the general partner in the following manner:

*  First, 98 percent to all unitholders, and two percent to the general partner, until each unitholder has
received a total of $0.55 per unit for that quarter (the “first target distribution”);

» Second, 85 percent to all unitholders, and 15 percent to the general partner, until each unitholder has
received a total of $0.65 per unit for that quarter (the “second target distribution”);

» Third, 75 percent to all unitholders, and 25 percent to the general partner, until each unitholder has
received a total of $0.75 per unit for that quarter (the “third target distribution”); and

*  Thereafter, 50 percent to all unitholders and 50 percent to the general partner.

In each case, the amount of the target distribution set forth above is exclusive of any distributions to
common unitholders to eliminate any cumulative arrearages in payment of the minimum quarterly distribution on
the common units. In conjunction with the Peabody Acquisition, our general partner issued a special membership
interest which entitles Peabody to receive increased percentages, starting at zero and increasing up to 40 percent,
of payments we make to our general partner with respect to incentive distribution rights if we purchase additional
assets from Peabody in the future. We have not purchased any additional assets from Peabody since closing the
Peabody Acquisition in December 2002.

Subordination Period. During the subordination period, which we describe below, the common units have
the right to receive distributions of available cash from operating surplus in an amount equal to the minimum
quarterly distribution, plus arrearages in the payment of any minimum quarterly distribution from prior quarters,
before any distributions of available cash from operating surplus can be made on the subordinated units.

Definition of Subordination Period. The subordination period will continue until the first day of any quarter
beginning after September 30, 2006, in which each of the following events occur:

» distributions of available cash from operating surplus on each of the common units and the subordinated
units equaled or exceeded the minimum quarterly distribution for each of the three consecutive, non-
overlapping four-quarter periods immediately preceding that date;

* the adjusted operating surplus generated during each of the three immediately preceding, non-
overlapping four-quarter periods equaled or exceeded the sum of the minimum quarterly distributions on
all of the outstanding common units and subordinated units during those periods on a fully diluted basis
and the related distribution on the two percent general partner interest during those periods; and

» there are no arrearages in payment of the minimum quarterly distribution on the common units.
Early Conversion of Subordinated Units. Before the end of the subordination period, 50 percent of the
subordinated units, or up to 3,824,940 subordinated units were eligible for conversion into common units on a

one-for-one basis immediately after the distribution of available cash to partners in respect of any quarter ending
on or after:

*  September 30, 2004 with respect to 25 percent of the subordinated units; and

*  September 30, 2005 with respect to 25 percent of the subordinated units.

The early conversions occur if at the end of the applicable quarter each of the following three tests are met:

» distributions of available cash from operating surplus on each common unit and subordinated unit
equaled or exceeded the minimum quarterly distribution for each of the three consecutive,
non-overlapping four-quarter periods immediately preceding that date;

» the adjusted operating surplus generated during each of the three immediately preceding,
non-overlapping four-quarter periods equaled or exceeded the sum of the minimum quarterly
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distributions on all of the outstanding common units and subordinated units during those periods on a
fully diluted basis and the related distribution on the two percent general partner interest during those
periods; and

» there are no arrearages in payment of the minimum quarterly distribution on the common units.

Because we met these financial tests at September 30, 2004, 25 percent of the subordinated units converted
to common units on November 12, 2004.

Subordinated Units

The subordinated units are a separate class of limited partner interests in our partnership, and the rights of
holders of subordinated units to participate in distributions to limited partners differ from, and are subordinated
to, the rights of the holders of common units as set forth above under “Partnership Distributions—Subordination
Period.” If we liquidate during the subordination period, in some circumstances, holders of outstanding common
units will be entitled to receive more per unit in liquidating distributions than holders of outstanding subordinated
units. The per unit difference will be dependent upon the amount of gain or loss recognized by us in liquidating
our assets. Following conversion of the subordinated units into common units, all units will be treated the same
upon liquidation of our partnership. Holders of subordinated units will sometimes vote as a single class together
with the holders of common units and sometimes vote as a class separate from the holders of common units and,
as in the case of holders of common units, will have very limited voting rights. During the subordination period,
common units and subordinated units each vote separately as a class on the following matters:

* asale or exchange of all or substantially all of our assets;

» the election of a successor general partner in connection with the removal of our general partner;

» adissolution or reconstitution of our partnership;

¢ amerger of our partnership;

¢ the issuance of limited partner interests in some circumstances; and

* some amendments to the partnership agreement, including any amendment that would cause us to be

treated as an association taxable as a corporation.

The subordinated units are not entitled to vote on approval of the withdrawal of our general partner or the
transfer by our general partner of its general partner interest or incentive distribution rights. Removal of our
general partner requires:

» the affirmative vote of 66%3 percent of all outstanding units voting as a single class; and
+ the election of a successor general partner by the holders of a majority of the outstanding common units

and subordinated units, voting as separate classes.

Under our partnership agreement, our general partner generally will be permitted to effect amendments to
our partnership agreement that do not materially adversely affect unitholders without the approval of any
unitholders.

Limited Call Right

If at any time persons other than our general partner and its affiliates do not own more than 20 percent of the
outstanding common units, our general partner has the right, but not the obligation, to purchase all of the
remaining common units at a price not less than the then current market price of the common units.

Certain Conflicts of Interest

Our general partner has a legal duty to manage us in a manner beneficial to our unitholders. This legal duty
originates in state statutes and judicial decisions and is commonly referred to as a “fiduciary” duty. However,
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because our general partner is an indirect, wholly owned subsidiary of Penn Virginia, our general partner’s
officers and directors also have fiduciary duties to manage our general partner’s business in a manner beneficial
to shareholders of Penn Virginia. Certain officers and directors of our general partner have significant
relationships with, and responsibilities to, Penn Virginia. As a result of these relationships, conflicts of interest
may arise in the future between us and our unitholders, on the one hand, and our general partner and its affiliates,
on the other hand.

In connection with the Peabody Acquisition, Peabody designated one director to serve on the Board of
Directors of our general partner. This director has fiduciary duties to Peabody as well as those he has to the
Partnership and our general partner as a director of our general partner. Conflicts of interest may arise for this
designee as a result of these relationships.

Limits on Fiduciary Responsibilities

Our partnership agreement limits the liability and reduces the fiduciary duties owed by our general partner
to unitholders. Our partnership agreement also restricts the remedies available to unitholders for actions that
might otherwise constitute breaches of our general partner’s fiduciary duty.

Our partnership agreement contains provisions that waive or consent to conduct by our general partner and
its affiliates that might otherwise raise issues as to compliance with fiduciary duties or applicable law. For
example, the partnership agreement permits our general partner to make a number of decisions in its “sole
discretion.” This entitles our general partner to consider only the interests and factors that it desires and it shall
have no duty or obligation to give any consideration to any interest of, or factors affecting, us, our affiliates or
any limited partner. Other provisions of the partnership agreement provide that our general partner’s actions must
be made in its reasonable discretion. These standards reduce the obligations to which our general partner would
otherwise be held.

Our partnership agreement generally provides that affiliated transactions and resolutions of conflicts of
interest not involving a required vote of unitholders must be “fair and reasonable” to us under the factors
previously set forth. In determining whether a transaction or resolution is “fair and reasonable” our general
partner may consider the interests of all parties involved, including its own. Unless our general partner has acted
in bad faith, the action taken by our general partner shall not constitute a breach of its fiduciary duty These
standards reduce the obligations to which our general partner would otherwise be held.

In addition to the other more specific provisions limiting the obligations of our general partner, our
partnership agreement further provides that our general partner and its officers and directors will not be liable for
monetary damages to us, our limited partners or assignees for errors of judgment or for any acts or omissions if
our general partner and those other persons acted in good faith.

In order to become a limited partner of our partnership, a common unitholder is required to agree to be
bound by the provisions in our partnership agreement, including the provisions discussed above. This is in
accordance with the policy of the Delaware General Corporation Law favoring the principle of freedom of
contract and the enforceability of partnership agreements. The failure of a limited partner or assignee to sign a
partnership agreement does not render the partnership agreement unenforceable against that person.

We are required to indemnify our general partner and its officers, directors, employees, affiliates, partners,
members, agents and trustees to the fullest extent permitted by law against liabilities, costs and expenses incurred
by our general partner or these other persons. This indemnification is required if our general partner or any of
these persons acted in good faith and in a manner they reasonably believed to be in, or (in the case of a person
other than our general partner) not opposed to, our best interests. Indemnification is required for criminal
proceedings if our general partner or these other persons had no reasonable cause to believe their conduct was
unlawful. Thus, our general partner could be indemnified for its negligent acts if it met these requirements
concerning good faith and our best interests.




Competition

The coal industry is intensely competitive primarily as a result of the existence of numerous producers. Qur
lessees compete with coal producers in various regions of the United States for domestic sales. The industry has
undergone significant consolidation which has led to some of the competitors of our lessees having significantly
larger financial and operating resources than most of our lessees. Our lessees primarily compete with both large and
small producers in Appalachia as well as in the western United States. Our lessees compete on the basis of coal
price at the mine, coal quality (including suifur content), transportation cost from the mine to the customer and the
reliability of supply. Continued demand for our coal and the prices that our lessees obtain are also affected by
demand for electricity, demand for metallurgical coal, access to transportation, environmental and government
regulations, technological developments and the availability and price of alternative fuel supplies, including nuclear,
natural gas, oil and hydroelectric power. Demand for our low sulfur coal and the prices our lessees will be able to
obtain for it will also be affected by the price and availability of high sulfur coal, which can be marketed in tandem
with emissions allowances which permit the high sulfur coal to meet federal Clean Air Act requirements.

Risks Inherent in Our Business
Our business involves several inherent risks. These risks include:
Business Related Risks
*  We may not have sufficient cash to enable us to pay the minimum quarterly distribution each quarter.

¢ Our business will be adversely affected if we are unable to replace or increase our reserves through
acquisitions.

+ If our lessees do not manage their operations well, their production volumes and our coal royalty
revenues could decrease.

* Lessees could satisfy obligations to their customers with coal from properties other than ours, depriving
us of the ability to receive amounts in excess of the minimum royalty payments.

* Coal mining operations are subject to numerous operational risks that could result in lower coal royalty
revenues and also reduce reserve recovery.

* A substantial or extended decline in coal prices could reduce our coal royalty revenues and the value of
our coal reserves.

*  We depend on a limited number of primary operators for a significant portion of our coal royalty
revenues, and the loss of or reduction in production from any of our major lessees could reduce our coal
royalty revenues.

» If our lessees do not receive payments on a timely basis from their customers, their cash flow would be
adversely affected, which could cause our cash flow to adversely affected.

* Due to restrictions under our existing or future debt agreements, competition from other coal companies,
or the lack of suitable acquisition candidates, we may not be able to grow and our business will be
adversely affected if we are unable to replace or increase our reserves through acquisitions.

* Any debt we incur could reduce our ability to pay distributions to unitholders.

*  Our lessees could experience labor disruptions, and our lessees’ work force could become increasingly
unionized, in the future.

» Fluctvations in transportation costs and the availability or reliability of transportation could reduce the
production of coal mined from our properties

Regulatory and Legal Risks

General Regulation. Our lessees are obligated to conduct mining operations in compliance with all
applicable federal, state and local laws and regulations. These laws and regulations include matters involving the
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discharge of materials into the environment, employee health and safety, mine permits and other licensing
requirements, reclamation and restoration of mining properties after mining is completed, management of
materials generated by mining operations, surface subsidence from underground mining, water pollution,
legislatively mandated benefits for current and retired coal miners, air quality standards, protection of wetlands,
plant and wildlife protection, limitations on land use, storage of petroleum products and substances which are
regarded as hazardous under applicable laws and management of electrical equipment containing polychlorinated
biphenyls, or PCBs. Because of extensive and comprehensive regulatory requirements, violations during mining
operations are not unusual in the industry and, notwithstanding compliance efforts, we do not believe violations
by our lessees can be eliminated completely. However, none of the violations to date, or the monetary penalties
assessed, have been material to us or, to our knowledge, to our lessees. We do not currently expect that future
compliance will have a material adverse effect on us.

While it is not possible to quantify the costs of compliance by our lessees with all applicable federal and
state laws, those costs have been and are expected to continue to be significant. The lessees post performance
bonds pursuant to federal and state mining laws and regulations for the estimated costs of reclamation and mine
closing, including the cost of treating mine water discharge when necessary. We do not accrue for such costs
because our lessees are contractually liable for all costs relating to their mining operations, including the costs of
reclamation and mine closure. However, we do require some smaller lessees to deposit into escrow certain funds
for reclamation and mine closure costs or post performance bonds for these costs. Although the lessees typically
accrue adequate amounts for these costs, their future operating results would be adversely affected if they later
determined these accruals to be insufficient. Compliance with these laws has substantially increased the cost of
coal mining for all domestic coal producers.

In addition, the utility industry, which is the most significant end-user of coal, is subject to extensive
regulation regarding the environmental impact of its power generation activities which could affect demand for
coal mined by our lessees. The possibility exists that new legislation or regulations may be adopted which may
have a significant impact on the mining operations of our lessees or their customers’ ability to use coal and may
require us, our lessees or their customers to change operations significantly or incur substantial costs.

Clean Air Act. The Clean Air Act affects the end-users of coal and could significantly affect the demand for
our coal and reduce our coal royalty revenues. The Clean Air Act and corresponding state and local laws
extensively regulate the amount of sulfur dioxide, particulate matter, nitrogen oxides and other compounds
emitted from industrial boilers and power plants, including those that use our coal. These regulations together
constitute a significant burden on coal customers and stricter regulation could further adversely impact the
demand for and price of our coal, resulting in lower coal royalty revenues.

In July 1997, the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency (the “EPA”) adopted more stringent ambient air
quality standards for particulate matter and ozone. Particulate matter includes small particles that are emitted
during the combustion process. Nitrogen oxides are naturally occurring byproducts of coal combustion that lead
to the formation of ozone. In a February 2001 decision, the U.S. Supreme Court largely upheld the EPA’s
position, although it remanded the EPA’s ozone implementation policy for further consideration. Details
regarding the new particulate standard itself are still subject to judicial challenge. These ozone restrictions will
require electric power generators to further reduce nitrogen oxide emissions. Further reduction in the amount of
particulate matter that may be emitted by power plants could also result in reduced coal consumption by electric
power generators. Future regulations regarding ozone, particulate matter and other ambient air standards could
restrict the market for coal and the development of new mines by our lessees. This in turn may result in
decreased production by our lessees and a corresponding decrease in our coal royalty revenues.

The Clean Air Act also imposes standards on sources of hazardous air pollutants. These standards have not
yet been extended to coal mining operations. However, on January 30, 2004, the EPA proposed regulations to
control emissions of mercury, a hazardous air pollutant, from power plants that combust coal, as well as nitrogen
oxides and sulfur dioxide, which are also power plant pollutants, in 29 states. Like other environmental
regulations, these standards and future standards could result in a decreased demand for coal.
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In addition to EPA proposals, various members of Congress have proposed so-called multi-pollutant bills,
which could regulate nitrogen oxides, sulfur dioxide and other emissions, including carbon dioxide, from power
plants that combust coal, and the regulation of greenhouse gases that might contribute to global warming could
occur either pursuant to regulatory changes under the Clean Air Act, regulations by states or future U.S. treaty
obligations. Moreover, a number of states have proposed to regulate emissions of mercury and are proposing in
some cases to set limits on emissions of carbon dioxide and in other cases to implement a cap and trade program
to reduce emissions of carbon dioxide. The uncertainty about the regulation of mercury and carbon dioxide in
particular is substantial, as 2 number of lawsuits have been filed challenging both proposals by EPA for a cap-and
trade program for mercury and EPA’s conclusion that carbon dioxide is not covered by the Clean Air Act. While
the details of proposed initiatives to regulate air emissions vary, and the outcome of the legislative, regulatory
and judicial disputes cannot be resolved, there is certainly a movement toward increased regulation of emissions
of pollutants from the combustion of fossil fuels, including coal. If such initiatives are enacted into law, power
plants could choose to shift away from coal as a fuel source to meet these requirements.

Surface Mining Control and Reclamation Act of 1977. The Surface Mining Control and Reclamation Act of
1977 (“SMCRA?”) and similar state statutes impose on mine operators the responsibility of restoring the land to
its original state and compensating the landowner for types of damages occurring as a result of mining
operations, and require mine operators to post performance bonds to ensure compliance with any reclamation
obligations. Regulatory authorities may attempt to assign the liabilities of our lessees to us if any of our lessees
are not financially capable of fulfilling those obligations. In conjunction with mining the property, our lessees are
contractually obligated under the terms of their leases to comply with all state and local laws, including SMCRA,
with obligations including the reclamation and restoration of the mined areas by grading, shaping and reseeding
the soil. Upon completion of the mining, reclamation generally is completed by seeding with grasses or planting
trees for use as pasture or timberland, as specified in the approved reclamation plan.

CERCLA. We could become liable under federal and state Superfund and waste management statutes if our
lessees are unable to pay environmental cleanup costs. The Comprehensive Environmental Response,
Compensation and Liability Act, known as CERCLA or “Superfund,” and similar state Jaws create liabilities for
the investigation and remediation of releases and threatened releases of hazardous substances into the
environment and damages to natural resources. As a landowner, we are potentially subject to liability for these
investigation and remediation obligations.

Surface Mining Valley Fills. Over the course of the last several years, opponents of surface mining have
filed three lawsuits challenging the legality of permits authorizing the construction of valley fills for the disposal
of coal mining overburden under federal and state laws applicable to surface mining activities. Although two of
these challenges were successful in the United States District Court for the Southern District of West Virginia
(the “District Court”), the United States Court of Appeals for the Fourth Circuit overturned both of those
decisions in Bragg v. Robertson in 2001 and Kentuckians for The Commonwealth V. Rivenburgh in 2003.

A ruling on July 8, 2004, which was made by the District Court in connection with a third Jawsuit, may impair
our lessees’ ability to obtain permits that are needed to conduct surface mining operations. In this case, Ohio Valley
Environmental Coalition v. Bulen, the District Court determined that the Army Corps of Engineers (the “Corps™)
violated the Clean Water Act (“the Clean Water Act”) and other federal statutes when it issued Nationwide Permit
21 (“NWP21”). This ruling is currently on appeal, but no decision has been issued by the appeals court as of yet.

In January of 2005, Kentucky Riverkeepers, Inc. and several other groups filed suit in federal district court
in Kentucky challenging the legality of Nationwide Permit 21, and seeking to enjoin the Corps from issuing any
general permits thereunder for fills associated with coal mining in Kentucky. Should the district court hearing
this case follow the reasoning of Qhio Valley Environmental Coalition v. Bulen and similarly enjoin the Corps
from issuing general permits for coal mining under that general permit, companies seeking permits under Section
404 of the Clean Water Act in Kentucky may have to file for individual permits that may result in increases in
coal mining costs. We do not have a substantial amount of reserves in Kentucky and do not expect that our
lessees would be affected significantly by the outcome in this case.
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West Virginia Anti-degradation Policy. A September 2003 decision by the District Court in Qhio Valley
Environmental Coalition v. Whitman vacated the EPA’s approval of the State of West Virginia’s anti-degradation
implementation policy, which applies to discharges into waters that have been designated as high quality waters
by the State. The District Court determined that the State’s policy did not comply with the requirements of the
CWA. The West Virginia anti-degradation policy had included a number of exceptions, including one for parties
holding general CWA permits, from anti-degradation review requirements. The District Court ruled that this
exemption and certain other provisions of the West Virginia anti-degradation policy were not consistent with the
requirements of the CWA. The EPA Region III subsequently sent a letter to the West Virginia Department of
Environmental Protection approving portions of its plan, denying approval of other portions pending further
study, and recommending the removal of other provisions of the plan. The West Virginia Department of
Environmental Protection is reportedly reviewing this letter. Our lessees seek permits to discharge into high
quality waters under a new policy which does not include such an exception. As a result of this decision, permit
applications will likely be required to undergo the public and intergovernmental scrutiny associated with an anti-
degradation review, which may either delay the issuance or reissuance of CWA permits, require the use of more
costly control measures or lead to the denial of these permits. The delay, denial or added costs of complying with
these permits may increase the costs of coal production, potentially reducing our royalty revenues.

Mine Health and Safety Laws. The operations of our lessees are subject to stringent health and safety
standards that have been imposed by federal legislation since the adoption of the Mine Health and Safety Act of
1969, However, since we do not operate any mines and do not employ any coal miners, we are not subject to
such laws and regulations. The Mine Health and Safety Act of 1969 resulted in increased operating costs and
reduced productivity. The Mine Safety and Health Act of 1977, which significantly expanded the enforcement of
health and safety standards of the Mine Health and Safety Act of 1969, imposes comprehensive health and safety
standards on all mining operations. In addition, as part of the Mine Health and Safety Acts of 1969 and 1977, the
Black Lung Acts require payments of benefits by all businesses conducting current mining operations to coal
miners with black lung or pneumoconiosis and to some beneficiaries of miners who have died from this disease.

Mining Permits and Approvals. Numerous governmental permits or approvals are required for mining
operations. In connection with obtaining these permits and approvals, our lessees may be required to prepare and
present to federal, state or local authorities data pertaining to the effect or impact that any proposed production of
coal may have upon the environment. The requirements imposed by any of these authorities may be costly and
time consuming and may delay commencement or continuation of mining operations.

In order to obtain mining permits and approvals from state regulatory authorities, mine operators, including
our lessees, must submit a reclamation plan for restoring, upon the completion of mining operations, the mined
property to its prior condition, productive use or other permitted condition. Typically, our lessees submit the
necessary permit applications between 12 and 24 months before they plan to begin mining a new area. In our
experience, permits generally are approved within 12 months after a completed application is submitted. In the
past, our lessees have generally obtained their mining permits without significant delay. Our lessees have
obtained or applied for permits to mine a majority of the reserves that are currently planned to be mined over the
next five years. Our lessees are also in the planning phase for obtaining permits for the additional reserves
planned to be mined over the following five years. However, there are no assurances that they will not experience
difficulty in obtaining mining permits in the future.

Timber Regulations. Our timber operations are subject to federal, state and local laws and regulations,
including those related to the environment, protection of endangered species, foresting activities and health and
safety. We believe we are managing our timberlands in substantial compliance with applicable federal and state
regulations.

See also Item 7A, “Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk,” for a discussion of interest
rate risk.
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Employees and Labor Relations

We have no employees. To carry out our operations, our general partner and its affiliates employed 32
employees who directly supported our operations at December 31, 2004. The general partner considers current
employee relations to be favorable.

Available Information

The Partnership’s internet address is www.pvresource.com. We make available free of charge on or through
our Internet website, our Governance Principles, Code of Business Conduct and Ethics, Executive and Financial
Officer Code of Ethics and Audit Committee Charter, and we will provide copies of such documents to any
unitholder who so requests. We also make available free of charge on or through our Internet website our annual
report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, reports on Form 8-K and amendments to those reports
filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 as soon as
reasonably practicable after we electronically file such material with, or furnish it to, the Securities and Exchange
Commission.

Item 2. Properties
Title to Property

Of the 558 million tons of proven and probable coal reserves we controlled as of December 31, 2004, we
owned the mineral interests and the majority of related surface rights to 519 million tons, or 93 percent, and we
lease the remaining 39 million tons, or seven percent, from unaffiliated third parties. In addition to the royalties
we receive from our coal business, we also earn revenues from the sale of timber. See the following “Timber”
section. At December 31, 2004, we owned 114,500 surface acres of timberland containing 167 million board feet
(“Mbf”) of timber inventory.

Coal Reserves and Production

As of December 31, 2004, we had approximately 558 million tons of proven and probable coal reserves
located on 241,000 acres in Virginia, West Virginia, New Mexico and eastern Kentucky. Our reserves are located
on SixX separate properties:

* the Wise property, located in Wise and Lee Counties, Virginia and Letcher and Harlan Counties,
Kentucky;

* the Coal River property, located in Boone, Fayette, Kanawha, Lincoln and Raleigh Counties, West
Virginia;
* the New Mexico property, located in McKinley County, New Mexico;

» the northern Appalachia property, located in Barbour, Harrison, Lewis, Monongalia and Upshur
Counties, West Virginia;

» the Spruce Laurel property, located in Boone and Logan Counties, West Virginia; and

¢ the Buchanan property, located in Buchanan County, Virginia.

Reserves are coal tons that can be economically extracted or produced at the time of determination
considering legal, economic and technical limitations. All of the estimates of our reserves are classified as proven
and probable reserves. Proven and probable reserves are defined as follows:

Proven Reserves—Proven reserves are reserves for which: (a) quantity is computed from dimensions
revealed in outcrops, trenches, workings or drill holes; grade and/or quality are computed from the results of
detailed sampling; and (b) the sites for inspection, sampling and measurement are spaced so closely, and the
geologic character is so well defined, that the size, shape, depth and mineral content of reserves are
well-established.
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Probable Reserves—Probable reserves are reserves for which quantity and grade and/or quality are
computed from information similar to that used for proven reserves, but the sites for inspection, sampling and
measurement are more widely spaced or are otherwise less adequately spaced. The degree of assurance, although
lower than that for proven reserves, is high enough to assume continuity between points of observation.

In areas where geologic conditions indicate potential inconsistencies related to coal reserves, we perform
additional exploration to ensure the continuity and mineability of the coal reserves. Consequently, sampling in
those areas involves drill holes or channel samples that are spaced closer together than those distances cited
above.

Our lessees mine coal using both underground and surface methods. Our lessees currently operate 24
surface mines and 41 underground mines. Approximately 64 percent of the coal produced from our properties in
2004 came from underground mines and 36 percent came from surface mines. Most of our lessees use the
continuous mining method in all of their underground mines located on our properties. In continuous mining,
main airways and transportation entries are developed and remote-controlled continuous miners extract coal from
“rooms,” leaving “pillars” to support the roof. Shuttle cars transport coal to a conveyor belt for transportation to
the surface. In several underground mines, our lessees use two continuous miners running at the same time, also
known as a supersection, to improve productivity and reduce unit costs.

Two of our lessees use the longwall mining method to mine underground reserves. Longwall mining uses
hydraulic jacks or shields, varying from four feet to twelve feet in height, to support the roof of the mine while a
mobile cutting shearer advances through the coal. Chain conveyors then move the coal to a standard deep mine
conveyor belt system for delivery to the surface. Continuous mining is used to develop access to long rectangular
panels of coal that are mined with longwall equipment, allowing controlled caving behind the advancing
machinery. Longwall mining is typically highly productive when used for large blocks of medium to thick coal
seams.

Surface mining methods used by our lessees include auger and highwall miners, in conjunction with surface
mining, to enhance production, improve reserve recovery and reduce unit costs. On our New Mexico property, a
combination of the dragline and truck-and-shovel surface mining methods is used to mine the coal. Dragline and
truck-and-shovel mining uses large capacity machines to remove overburden to expose the coal seams. Wheel
loaders then load the coal in haul trucks for transportation to a loading facility.

Our lessees’ customers are primarily utilities. Coal produced from our properties is transported by rail,
barge and truck, or a combination of these means of transportation. Coal from the Virginia portion of the Wise
property and the Buchanan property is primarily shipped to electric utilities in the Southeast by the Norfolk
Southern railroad. Coal from the Kentucky portion of the Wise property is primarily shipped to electric utilities
in the Southeast by the CSX railroad. Coal from the Coal River and Spruce Laurel properties is shipped to steam
and metallurgical customers by the CSX railroad, by barge along the Kanawha River and by truck or by a
combination thereof. Coal from the Northern Appalachia property is shipped by barge on the Monongahela
River, by truck and by the CSX and Norfolk Southern railroads. Coal from the New Mexico property is shipped
to steam markets in New Mexico and Arizona by the Burlington Northern Santa Fe railroad. All of our properties
contain and have access to numerous roads and state or interstate highways.
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The following maps show the locations of our properties.
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The following table sets forth actual coal royalty revenues we have received and the amount of minimum
rentals we would have received if our lessees had not produced any coal with respect to each of our properties.
Revenues in the table set forth below reflect revenues actually recognized during the period presented. Minimum
rentals reflect amounts we would have been entitled to receive had no coal been mined during the periods
presented. Any amounts received from minimum rentals are recorded as deferred income, and not as revenues, at
the time of receipt until the payment has been recouped by the lessee or the lessee fails to meet its minimum
production for certain predetermined time periods.

2004 2003 2002
Royalty Minimum Royalty Minimum Royalty Minimum
Property Revenues  Rentals Revenues Rentals Revenues  Rentals
(in thousands)

Wise .o e $27,289 3,894 $21413 $ 3,894 $20420 $3,996
CoalRiver ...........cciiiiiiiiinnnnnn, 20,274 4,717 9,469 4,542 5,263 3,532
NewMexico .........ccoiviiiiniinan.. 8,804 2,000 9,398 2,000 259 70
Northern Appalachia ...................... 7.338 5,105 6,273 5,000 816 280
Spruce Laurel ........................... 4,923 1,865 3,052 1,570 3,732 695
Buchanan .................. .. ..o .... 1,015 460 707 460 868 540
GrandTotal ......................... $69,643 $18,041 $50,312 $17.466 $31,358 $9,113

The following table sets forth production data and reserve information with respect to each of our six
properties:

Proven and Probable
Production Reserves at
Year Ended December 31, December 31, 2004
Under-
Property 2004 2003 2002 ground Surface Total
(tons in millions)
WS L e 10.0 93 89 181.6 2277 2043
Coal River ... ... i e 7.8 39 25 1216 72.6 1942
New MeEXICO ...ttt et et ie e eeenaans 55 6.3 0.2 — 67.8 67.8
Northern Appalachia ........... .. ... . i, 5.6 5.1 04 42.1 24 445
Spruce Laurel ....... ... .. .. ... i 1.9 1.5 1.8 30.3 15.7 460
Buchanan . ............iiiitit ittt it 04 04 05 1.2 0.1 1.3
Total ... 312 265 143 3768 1813 558.1

Of the 558.1 million tons of proven and probable coal reserves to which we had rights as of December 31,
2004, we owned the mineral interests and the related surface rights to 382.1 million tons, or 68.5 percent, and we
owned only the mineral interests to 136.5 million tons, or 24.5 percent. We lease the mineral rights to the
remaining 39.5 million tons, or 7.0 percent, from unaffiliated third parties and, in turn, sublease these reserves to
our lessees. For the reserves we lease from third parties, we pay royalties to the owner based on the amount of
coal produced from the lease reserves. Additionally, in some instances, we purchase surface rights or otherwise
compensate surface right owners for mining activities on their properties. In 2004, our expenses to third-party
surface and mineral owners aggregated $6.0 million.
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The following table sets forth the coal reserves we own and lease with respect to each of our coal properties
as of December 31, 2004:

Property Owned  Leased Total
(tons in millions)

IS ot e 204.3 — 204.3
Coal RIVeT ..o e 162.9 313 194.2
NewW MeXiCo ..ttt i i i e e e 64.0 3.8 67.8
Northern Appalachia . ....... ... . . 445 — 44.5
Spruce Laurel ........ . 425 35 46.0
Buchanan.......... ... i e 04 0.9 1.3

Total ... . e e 518.6 39.5 558.1

Our reserve estimates are prepared from geological data assembled and analyzed by our general partner’s
geologists and engineers. These estimates are compiled using geological data taken from thousands of drill holes,
geophysical logs, adjacent mine workings, outcrop prospect openings and other sources. These estimates also
take into account legal, qualitative technical and economic limitations that may keep coal from being mined.
Reserve estimates will change from time to time due to mining activities, analysis of new engineering and
geological data, acquisition or divestment of reserve holdings, modification of mining plans or mining methods
and other factors.

We classify low sulfur coal as coal with a sulfur content of less than 1.0 percent, medium sulfur coal as coal
with a sulfur content between 1.0 percent and 1.5 percent and high sulfur coal as coal with a sulfur content of
greater than 1.5 percent. Compliance coal is that portion of low sulfur coal that meets compliance standards for
the Clean Air Act. As of December 31, 2004, approximately 31.8 percent of our reserves met compliance
standards for the Clean Air Act. There were no compliance reserves in the reserves acquired in the Peabody
Acquisition. The following table sets forth our estimate of the sulfur content and the typical clean coal quality of
our recoverable coal reserves at December 31, 2004.

Typical Clean

Sulfur Content Coal Quality

Reserves as of 12/31/04 Heat Content
Low  Medium High Sulfur Btu per Sulfur Ash
Property Type of Coal Compliance(l) Sulfur(2) Sulfur Sulfur Unclassified Total Pound(3) (%) (%)

(tons in millions)
Wise ... Steam/Metallurgical 50.7 110.6 49.6 336 105 2043 12,700 120 950
CoalRiver .......... Steam/Metallurgical 99.1 147.1 25.4 7.3 144 1942 12,500 0.82 6.00
New Mexico ......... Steam 0.0 38.6 235 579 0.0 67.8 9200 089 17.80
Northern Appalachia .. Steam/Metallurgical 0.0 0.0 0.0 445 0.0 445 12900 258 8.80
Spruce Laurel ........ Steam/Metallurgical 27.0 37.6 33 0.1 5.0 46.0 12,700 080 5.50
Buchanan ........... Steam/Metallurgical 0.7 1.3 0.0 0.0 0.0 1.3 12900 083 620
Total ............. 177.5 335.2 101.8  91.2 299 558.1

(1) Compliance coal is low sulfur coal which, when burned, emits less than 1.2 pounds of sulfur dioxide per million Btu. Compliance coal
meets the sulfur dioxide emission standards imposed by the Clean Air Act without blending in other coals or using sulfur dioxide
reduction technologies. Compliance coal is a subset of low sulfur coal and is, therefore, also reported within the amounts for low sulfur
coal.

(2) Includes compliance coal.

(3) As-received Btu per pound includes the weight of moisture in the coal on an as sold basis.
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The following table shows the reserves we lease to mine operators by property.

Proven And Probable Reserves
As of December 31, 2004

Leased Percentage

Property Controlled (Out) Leased (Out)
(tons in millions)

W ISE it e 204.3 166.5 81.5%
Coal RIVer . ... .. i e e e 194.2 172.6 88.9%
New MeXICO .. vttt ettt 67.8 67.8 100.0%
Northern Appalachia ........... ... it 44.5 443 99.6%
Spruce Laurel ............ ... e 46.0 46.0 100.0%
Buchanan ............ . i e 1.3 1.3 100.0%

Total ... 558.1 498.5 89.3%

The Wise Property

The Wise property consists of 103,000 acres located in Wise and Lee Counties, Virginia, and Letcher and
Harlan Counties, Kentucky. We own 66,000 acres in fee and own the mineral interests in an additional 37,000
acres. We first acquired the majority of this property in 1882, and the first lease entered into with a lessee for a
portion of this property was in 1902. As of December 31, 2004, the property included 204 million tons of coal
reserves and related infrastructure, including a unit train loadout facility capable of loading 4,500 tons of coal per
hour that can sample, blend and load coal into unit trains of up to 108 railcars within a four-hour period.

As of December 31, 2004, we had leased 81.5 percent of the Wise property reserves pursuant to 26 separate
leases. Production from the property totaled 10.0 million tons for the year ended December 31, 2004, and was
shipped to our lessees’ customers via truck, the Norfolk Southern railroad and the CSX railroad.

The Coal River Property

The Coal River property consists of 84,000 acres located in Boone, Fayette, Kanawha, Lincoln and Raleigh
Counties, West Virginia. We own 53,000 acres in fee, the mineral interests to- 19,000 acres and lease 12,000
acres from third parties. We acquired rights to this property pursuant to four acquisitions between 1996 and 2002,
and the first lease we entered into with a lessee for this property was in 1996. As of December 31, 2004, the Coal
River property included 194 million tons of proven and probable coal reserves in West Virginia and related
infrastructure and other assets, including a coal loading dock on the Kanawha River, a 900-ton per hour coal
preparation plant and a unit train loading facility. In January 2004, we completed the construction of a new coal

. loadout facility for one of our lessees on our Coal River property in West Virginia. The $4.4 million loadout
facility is designed for the high-speed loading of 150-car unit trains and became operational on February 1, 2004.

As of December 31, 2004, we had leased 88.9 percent of the Coal River property reserves pursuant to nine
leases. Production from the property totaled 7.8 million tons for the year ended December 31, 2004, and was
shipped to our lessees’ customers via truck, barge and the CSX railroad.

The New Mexico Property

The New Mexico property consists of over 4,000 acres located in McKinley County, New Mexico. We
acquired the mineral interests to this property in December 2002 in connection with the Peabody Acquisition. As
of December 31, 2004, the New Mexico property included approximately 68 million tons of proven and probable

coal reserves.
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As of December 31, 2004, we had leased all of the New Mexico property reserves to Peabody. Production
from the property totaled 5.5 million tons for the year ended December 31, 2004, and was shipped to our lessee’s
customers via the Burlington Northern Santa Fe railroad.

The Northern Appalachia Property

The Northern Appalachia property consists of over 18,000 acres of mineral interests located in Barbour,
Harrison, Lewis, Monongalia and Upshur Counties, West Virginia. We acquired the mineral interests to this
property through the Upshur Acquisition in August 2002 and the Peabody Acquisition in December 2002. As of
December 31, 2004, the Northern Appalachia property included approximately 44 million tons of proven and
probable coal reserves.

As of December 31, 2004, we had leased substantially all of the Northern Appalachia property reserves
pursuant to eight leases. Production from the property totaled 5.6 million tons for the year ended December 31,
2004, and was shipped to our lessees’ customers via truck, barge and the CSX and Norfolk Southern railroads.

The Spruce Laurel Property

The Spruce Laurel property consists of 12,000 acres located in Boone and Logan Counties, West Virginia.
We own 10,000 acres in fee and lease 2,000 acres from third parties. We first acquired the rights to this property
in 1963. As of December 31, 2004, the Spruce Laurel property included approximately 46 million tons of proven
and probable coal reserves.

As of December 31, 2004, we had leased all of the Spruce Laurel property reserves pursuant to eight leases.
Production from the Spruce Laurel property was 1.9 million tons for the year ended December 31, 2004, and was
shipped to our lessees’ customers via a belt line and the CSX railroad.

The Buchanan Property

The Buchanan property consists of 20,000 acres located in Buchanan County, Virginia. We own the mineral
interests to 6,500 acres, and we lease the mineral rights to 13,400 acres from third parties. We first acquired the
rights to this property in 1997. As of December 31, 2004, the Buchanan property included approximately 1.3
million tons of coal reserves. ‘

As of December 31, 2004, we had leased all of the Buchanan property reserves pursuant to three leases.
Production from the Buchanan property was 0.4 million tons for the year ended December 31, 2004, and was
shipped to our lessees’ customers via the Norfolk Southern railroad and via truck.

Timber

The Partnership’s approximately 167 Mbf of timber inventory only includes timber that can be harvested and
is greater than 12 inches in diameter. Qur timberlands are located on our Wise, Spruce Laurel and Coal River
properties and contain various hardwood species, including red oak, white oak, yellow poplar and black cherry. In
2004, we sold 2.6 Mbf of timber, which generated timber revenues of $0.7 million. Timber is sold in a competitive
bid process involving sales of standing timber on individual parcels and, from time to time, on a contract basis
where independent contractors harvest and sell the timber. Timber revenues are recognized when the timber has
been sold or harvested by the independent contractors. Title and risk of loss pass to the independent contractors
upon the execution of the contract. In addition, if the contractors do not harvest the timber within the specified time
period, the title of the timber reverts back to the Partnership with no refund of original payment.

Coal Preparation and Transloading Facilities

In our coal services segment, we generate revenues from fees we charge to our lessees for the use of our
coal preparation and transloading facilities. The facilities provide efficient methods to enhance lessee production
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levels and exploit our reserves. Historically, the majority of these fees have been generated by our unit train
loadout facility on our Wise property, which accommodates 108 car unit trains that can be loaded in
approximately four hours. Some of our lessees utilize the unit train loadout facility to reduce the delivery costs
incurred by their customers. The coal service facility we purchased in November 2002 on our West Coal River
property in West Virginia (formerly referred to as “Fork Creek™) began operations late in the third quarter of
2003. In the first quarter of 2004, we placed into service a newly constructed coal loadout facility for another
lessee in West Virginia for $4.4 million.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings
Legal Proceedings

Although we may, from time to time, be involved in litigation and claims arising out of our operations in the
normal course of business, we are not currently a party to any material legal proceedings. In addition, we are not
aware of any material legal or governmental proceedings against us, or contemplated to be brought against us,
under the various environmental protection statutes to which we are subject. See Item 1, “Business, Risks
Inherent in Our Business,” for a more detailed discussion of our material environmental obligations.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

There were no matters submitted to a vote of security holders during the fourth quarter of 2004.
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Part II

Item 5. Market for the Registrant’s Common Units and Related Unitholder Matters
Market Information

Our common units are listed on the New York Stock Exchange, Inc. (the “Exchange”) under the symbol
“PVR.” The high and low sales prices (composite transactions) in 2004 and 2003, respectively, were as follows:

Quarter Ended High ~ _Low
December 31, 2004 . .. ..o $54.30  $39.30
September 30,2004 . . ... $41.00  $35.75
June 30, 2004 . . ..o e $36.30  $31.65
March 31, 2004 ... $37.10  $30.00
December 31, 2003 ..o o $35.30  $29.70
September 30,2003 .. ... .. $30.30  $27.78
June 30, 2003 . ..o $29.50  $24.20
March 31, 2003 ... $24.38  $20.95

The quarterly cash distributions paid in 2003 and 2004 were as follows:

Period Covered by Distribution Record Date Payment Date Amount Per Unit
Fourth quarter 2002 January 28, 2003 February 14, 2003 $0.50
First quarter 2003 May 6, 2003 May 14, 2003 $0.52
Second quarter 2003 August 5, 2003 August 14, 2003 $0.52
Third quarter 2003 November 4, 2003 November 14, 2003 $0.52
Fourth quarter 2003 January 30, 2004 February 13, 2004 $0.52
First quarter 2004 May 5, 2004 May 14, 2004 $0.52
Second quarter 2004 August 4, 2004 August 13, 2004 $0.54
Third quarter 2004 November 3, 2004 November 12, 2004 $0.54

We issued subordinated units in October 2001, all of which are held by two affiliates of our general partner.
There is no established public trading market for these units.

Equity Holders

As of February 24, 2005, there were approximately 8,000 holders of our common units and two holders of
our subordinated units.

Distributions

For the year ended December 31, 2004, the Partnership paid cash distributions of $2.12 per common and
subordinated unit. For 2005, we expect to pay distributions of at least $2.25 per common unit and subordinated
unit.

If cash distributions per unit exceed $0.55 in any quarter, our general partner will receive a higher
percentage of the cash we distribute in excess of that amount in increasing percentages up to 50 percent. See
Item 1, “Business, Partnership Distributions, Incentive Distribution Rights.” The board of directors has declared
a cash distribution payable in February 2005 for the fourth quarter of 2004 of $0.5625 per unit, exceeding the
$0.55 threshold.

There is no guarantee that we will pay quarterly cash distributions on the common units in any quarter, and
we will be prohibited from making any distributions to unitholders if it would cause an event of default under our
credit facility. See Item 7, “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of
Operations—Liquidity and Capital Resources.”
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

On October 30, 2001, the Partnership completed its initial public offering whereby the Partnership became
the successor to the business of the Penn Virginia Coal Business (predecessor). For the purposes of this selected
financial data, the Partnership refers to the Penn Virginia Coal Business for the periods prior to October 30, 2001,
and to Penn Virginia Resource Partners, L.P. for the periods subsequent to October 30, 2001. The following
selected historical financial information was derived from the financial statements of the Partnership as of
December 31, 2004, 2003, 2002, 2001 and 2000, and for the five years then ended. The selected financial data
should be read in conjunction with the combined financial statements, including the notes thereto, and Item 7,
“Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations.”

Year Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002 2001 2000
(in thousands, except per unit data and operating data)
Income Statement Data:
Revenues:
Coal TOYAltIES . .. oottt e e e e $ 69,643 $ 50,312 $ 31,358 S 32,365 $ 24,308
0@l SBIVICES . ..ttt it e s 3,391 2,111 1,704 1,660 1,385
TAMDET o .o 702 1,020 1,640 1,732 2,388
MiInimum rentals .. ..ottt e e 757 1,720 2,840 941 819
Equityearnings ......... ... .. i e 396 — — — —
(.35 7= o P 741 479 1,066 815 1,289
TOtal TEVENIES . .ottt et ittt e e 75,630 55,642 38,608 37,513 30,189
Expenses:
Royalty ... e e 6,099 2,712 1,765 2,051 1,634
OPEIAtINE . . o oot e e e e e 1,125 1,523 1,147 1,145 1,183
Taxes other thanincome . .......... ... .. .. i, 948 1,256 895 616 663
General and adminiStratiVve ... ... .. ot e 8,307 7,013 6,419 5,459 4,847
Depreciation, depletion and amortization ................ ... .. v.nn. 18,632 16,578 3,955 3,084 2,047
Total @Xpenses . ... ..ottt e 35,111 29,082 14,181 12,355 10,374
Income from Operations .. ... ..ottt ee i i s 40,519 26,560 24,427 25,158 19,815
Other income (expense):
INterest XPEMSE . ..\ .o\ttt ettt e e (7,267) (4,986) (1,758) (7,272) (7,670)
Interestincome and other ........... .. . it 1,063 1,223 2,017 4,904 4,697
Income before taxes and cumulative effect of change in accounting principle . . .. 34,315 22,797 24,686 22,790 16,842
INnCome taxX EXPENSe . . ...ttt e — _— — 6,691 5,287
Income before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle . . .......... 34,315 22,797 24,686 16,099 11,555
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle ................... — 107) — — —
NetINCOmMIE . ..ottt e it i s $ 34,315 $ 22,690 $ 24686 $ 16,099 $ 11,555
Net income per unit, basicand diluted (a) . . ............ ... ... .. ... ... $ 18 $ 124 $ 157 0.24 (a) N/A
Balance Sheet Data:
U.S. Treasuries'securing long-termdebt . . ............. .. ..., $8 — &8 — & — 343387 § —
Property and equipment, net . ........ ... i 221,615 238,146 248,068 104,494 73,995
TOtAl @SSES .« .o ottt ettt e 284,435 259,892 266,575 162,638 135,936
Long-term debt ... ... ... ... 112,926 90,286 90,887 43,387 104,333
Total Habilities . .. ... ...t e e et e e 134,451 106,092 104,043 48,131 109,243
Partners’ capital / owner's equity ....... ... 149984 153,800 162,532 114,507 26,693
Cash Flow Data:
Net cash flow provided by (used in):
Operating activities . ..............oueeivnee...n. e $ 54,782 $ 41,077 $ 30,342 $ 21,595 § 16,508
Investing activities . . ... ...ttt e (28,426) (4,711)  (48,976)  (95,718)  (28,010)
Financing activities . ... ... ottt it (14,425)  (36,920) 19,919 81,740 10,764
Distributions paid .. ..ot e e (39,191)  (36,708)  (28,723) — —
Distributions paid perumit . .. ...t e $ 212 § 206 1.84 — —
Other Data:
Royalty coal tons produced by lessees (in thousands) .................. 31,181 26,463 14,281 15,306 12,536
Average gross coal royalty perton ..............oiiiriiiiieenan.. $ 223 0§ 1% $ 220 $ 211 § 194

(a) Netincome per unit relates to the period from October 31, 2001 (commencement of operations) to December 31, 2001.
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Item 7. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following review of the financial condition and results of operations of Penn Virginia Resource
Partners, L.P. should be read in conjunction with the Consolidated Financial Statements and Notes thereto.

Overview

Penn Virginia Resource Partners, L.P. is a Delaware limited partnership formed by Penn Virginia
Corporation in 2001 to primarily engage in the business of managing coal properties and related assets in the
United States. Penn Virginia contributed its coal properties and related assets to the Partnership and, effective
with the closing of its initial public offering in October 2001, our common units began trading publicly on the
New York Stock Exchange.

Both in our current limited partnership form and in our previous corporate form, we have managed coal
properties since 1882. We conduct operations in two business segments: coal royalty and land leasing (which
includes timber), and coal services (for lessees and other third-party end-users). In 2004, approximately 95
percent of our revenues were attributable to our coal royalty and land leasing operations and approximately five
percent of our revenues were attributable to our coal services operations.

Our coal reserves, coal infrastructure and timber assets are located on the following six properties:

» the Wise property, located in Wise and Lee Counties, Virginia and Letcher and Harlan Counties,
Kentucky;

« the Coal River property, located in Boone, Fayette, Kanawha, Lincoln and Raleigh Counties, West
Virginia;
+ the New Mexico property, located in McKinley County, New Mexico;

» the northern Appalachia property, located in Barbour, Harrison, Lewis, Monongalia and Upshur
Counties, West Virginia;

 the Spruce Laurel property, located in Boone and Logan Counties, West Virginia; and

* the Buchanan property, located in Buchanan County, Virginia.

In our coal royalty and land leasing operations, we enter into long-term leases with experienced, third-party
mine operators for the right to mine our coal reserves in exchange for royalty payments. We do not operate any
mines. As of December 31, 2004, our properties contained approximately 558 million tons of proven and
probable coal reserves located on 241,000 acres in Virginia, West Virginia, New Mexico and eastern Kentucky.
In 2004, our lessees produced 31.2 million tons of coal from our properties and paid us coal royalty revenues of
$69.6 million. As of December 31, 2004, we leased an aggregate of approximately 89 percent of our reserves
under 55 leases to 29 different operators who mine coal at 65 mines. Approximately 79 percent of our 2004 coal
royalty revenues and 72 percent of our 2003 coal royalty revenues were based on the higher of a percentage of
the gross sales price or a fixed price per ton of coal our lessees sell, with pre-established minimum monthly or
annual rental payments. The balance of our 2004 and 2003 coal royalty revenues was derived from fixed royalty
rate leases, which escalate annually, with pre-established minimum monthly payments (see “Acquisitions and
Investments—The Peabody Acquisition” following). In managing our properties, we actively work with our
lessees to develop efficient methods to exploit our reserves and to maximize production from our properties. We
also derive revenues from minimum rental payments. Minimum rental payments are initially deferred and are
recognized as minimum rental revenues when our lessees fail to meet specified production levels for certain
predetermined periods. The recoupment period on most of our leases generally ranges from one to three years.
During 2004, we recognized $0.8 million of minimum rental revenues.

Included in our coal royalty and land leasing segment are revenues earned from the sale of standing timber
on our properties. As of December 31, 2004, we owned approximately 114,500 surface acres of timberland
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containing approximately 167 Mbf of inventory. In 2004, we sold 2.6 Mbf of timber, which generated revenues
of $0.7 million. The timber revenues we receive are dependent on harvest levels and the species and quality of
timber harvested. Our harvest levels in any given year will depend upon a number of factors, including
anticipated mining activity, timber maturation and market conditions. Any timber, which would otherwise be
removed due to lessee mining operations, is harvested in advance to prevent loss of the resource.

In our coal services segment, we generate revenues from providing fee-based coal preparation and
transportation services to our lessees which enhances their production levels and generates additional coal royalty
revenues, and through our coal handling facility joint venture with Massey Energy Company (see “Acquisitions
and Investments—Coal Handling Joint Venture”). Historically, the majority of these fees have been generated by
our unit train loadout facility, which accommodates 108 car unit trains that can be loaded in approximately four
hours. Some of our lessees utilize the unit train loadout facility to reduce the delivery costs incurred by their
customers. The coal service facility we purchased in November 2002 on our West Coal River property in West
Virginia (formerly referred to as “Fork Creek”) began operations late in the third quarter of 2003. In addition, we
completed construction of a coal loadout facility for another lessee in West Virginia for $4.4 million in February
2004 (see “Bull Creek Loadout Facility” following). Our coal services revenues totaled $3.4 million for 2004.
We expect the operations of the West Coal River infrastructure and the Bull Creek facility to increase coal
services revenues to over $4.1 million in 2005.

We account for our investment in the coal handling joint venture with Massey Energy under the equity
method of accounting. In 2004, the original cash investment of $28.4 million was capitalized. In accordance with
the equity method, we recognized equity earnings of $0.4 million in 2004 with a corresponding increase in the
investment. We received cash distributions of approximately $1.0 million from the joint venture in 2004 which
were recorded as a reduction of the investment.

Our revenues and the profitability of our coal royalty and land leasing operations are largely dependent on
the production of coal from our reserves by our lessees. The coal royalty revenues we receive are affected by
changes in coal prices and our lessees’ supply contracts and, to a lesser extent, by fluctuations in the spot market
prices for coal. The prevailing price for coal depends on a number of factors, including demand, the price and
availability of alternative fuels, overall economic conditions and governmental regulations.

Royalty expenses that we incur in our coal business consist primarily of lease payments on property which
we lease from third parties and sublease to our lessees. Our lease payment obligations vary based on the
production from these properties. Of the 558 million tons of proven and probable coal reserves to which we had
rights as of December 31, 2004, we owned the mineral interests to 519 million tons and leased the mineral rights
to 39 million tons. With respect to the 39 million tons that we lease, we are granted mining rights in exchange for
per ton royalty payments. We also incur costs related to lease administration and property maintenance as well as
technical and support personnel.

2004 Performance

Our coal royalty revenues increased 38 percent from $50.3 million in 2003 to $69.6 million in 2004. This
increase was a result of an increase in coal production by 4.7 million tons, or 18 percent, combined with a 17
percent increase in the average gross royalties per ton from $1.90 in 2003 to $2.23 in 2004. These increases were
primarily due to an increase in production at our Coal River property related to a longwall mining operation
started by one of our lessees in the first quarter of 2004. This longwall operation increased production by 2.6
million tons and added $5.6 million in revenues in 2004. The addition of a mine operator and a new mine by
another of our Coal River lessees contributed approximately 0.7 million tons of coal production, or $3.1 million
of revenues. Increased demand drove a coal sales price increase in the region, which in turn resulted in a seven
percent increase in our average gross royalty per ton on the Coal River property, from $2.42 per ton in 2003 to
$2.60 per ton in 2004. Revenues at the Wise property increased by $5.9 million primarily as a result of a 19
percent increase in the average royalty rate from $2.29 per ton in 2003 to $2.72 per ton in 2004. Revenues from
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the Spruce Laurel property increased by $1.9 million, primarily the result of increased coal sales prices fueled by
stronger demand in the region. The higher royalty rates received from our lessees resulted in a 23 percent
increase in the average gross royalty per ton on the Spruce Laurel property, from $2.07 per ton in 2003 to $2.54
per ton in 2004,

As part of our coal land management business, we own approximately 167 Mbf of standing timber. We
generally sell cutting rights to varlous contractors who cut in advance of a mining project. Timber revenues in
2004 were $0.7 million, down from $1.0 million in 2003,

Coal prices, especially in central Appalachia where the majority of our production is located, have increased
significantly since the beginning of 2003. The price increase stems from several causes including increased
electricity demand and decreasing coal production in central Appalachia.

We also collect fees and railroad rebates related to our ownership of the coal preparation plant and coal
loading facility on the West Coal River property. This new facility and several smaller modular coal preparation
plants are resulting in additional coal services revenues, supplementing revenues from the Shober loading facility
in Virginia. We also spent approximately $4.4 million to construct a third large-scale coal loading facility on our
Coal River property, which began operating in February 2004. Coal services revenues increased to $3.4 million
in 2004 from $2.1 million in 2003, and are expected to increase to over $4.1 million in 2005. We believe that
these types of fee-based infrastructure assets provide good investment and cash flow opportunities for the
Partnership, and we continue to look for additional investments of this type as well as other primarily fee-based
assets, including oil and gas midstream assets.

We were able to take advantage of other growth opportunities in 2004 by acquiring from affiliates of
Massey Energy Company for $28.4 million a 50 percent interest in a joint venture formed to own and operate
end-user coal handling facilities. The joint venture is pursuing additional projects to build and operate coal
handing facilities for industrial customers.

In November 2004, we entered into the Cantera Acquisition agreement to purchase a natural gas gathering
and processing business with assets in Oklahoma and Texas from Cantera for $191 million of cash. With the
closing of this acquisition, we will own and operate a set of midstream assets including approximately 3,400
miles of gas gathering pipelines that supply three natural gas processing facilities, which have 160 MMcfd of
total capacity. We anticipate the acquisition will close in the first quarter of 2005.

Economic and Industry Factors

The United States relies significantly on coal as a primary fuel source. Coal is used as a fuel source for
about half of domestic electricity generation and represents approximately 85 percent of fossil fuel reserves in the
United States. As environmental regulations evolve, we expect the coal industry to become increasingly
environmentally friendly, and we are optimistic, therefore, that coal will continue to play a vital role in the
generation of electricity. Most of our lessees have favorable transportation options to their customers, which are
mostly major utilities.

We are not an operating company and do not employ any coal miners. There are several key distinctions
between our coal royalty business and a coal operating business which include:

* we have higher operating margins than coal mine operators because we have no risk in variable mining
costs;

» we have fewer capital reinvestment requirements than coal mine operators because we do not maintain
coal mining or preparation equipment;

e we are not subject to the social obligations under the numerous mine health and safety laws and
regulations applicable to coal mine operators; and

« we have no significant exposure to the reclamation obligations incurred by coal mine operators because
our lessees assume, and post performance bonds for, those obligations.
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Our lessees are obligated to conduct mining operations in compliance with all applicable federal, state and
local laws and regulations. Because of extensive and comprehensive regulatory requirements, violations during
mining operations are not unusual in the industry and, notwithstanding compliance efforts, we do not believe
violations by our lessees can be eliminated completely. None of our lessees’ violations to date, or the monetary
penalties assessed, have had a material adverse effect on us or, to our knowledge, on our lessees. We do not
currently expect that future compliance will have a material adverse effect on us.

While it is not possible to quantify the costs of compliance by our lessees with all applicable federal and
state laws, those costs have been and are expected to continue to be significant. The lessees post performance
bonds pursuant to federal and state mining laws and regulations for the estimated costs of reclamation and mine
closings, including the cost of treating mine water discharge when necessary. We do not accrue for such costs
because our lessees are contractually liable for all costs relating to their mining operations, including the costs of
reclamation and mine closure. Compliance with these laws has substantially increased the cost of coal mining for
all domestic coal producers.

In addition, the utility industry, which is the most significant end-user of coal, is subject to extensive
regulation regarding the environmental impact of its power generation activities which could affect demand for
our lessees’ coal. The possibility exists that new legislation or regulations may be adopted which may have a
significant impact on the mining operations of our lessees or their customers’ ability to use coal and may require
us, our lessees or their customers to change operations significantly or incur substantial costs. See Item 1,
“Business—Risks Inherent in Our Business.”

Opportunities, Challenges and Risks

Our revenues and profitability will be adversely affected in the future if we are unable to replace or increase
our reserves through acquisitions. Our management continues to focus on acquisitions of assets and energy
sources necessary to meet the requirements of diverse markets and environmental regulations. Personnel were
added in 2003 to evaluate acquisitions of coal reserves and coal industry-related infrastructure as well as the
acquisition of oil and gas mid-stream assets.

Coal is the most abundant fossil fuel energy resource in the United States, and it continues to be substantially
more economical than other fossil fuel alternatives in generating electricity. Although coal represents fuel for about
half of the nation’s electricity, coal combustion emits sulfur dioxide, nitrous oxides and carbon dioxide, all of which
are considered pollutants. A challenge for the industry is to continue to reduce emissions while maintaining coal’s
cost advantage.

Acquisitions and Investments

Capital expenditures, including noncash items, for each of the three years ended December 31, 2004, were
as follows:

2004 2003 2002
(in thousands)
Acquisition of coal handling joint venture interest ............. $28.442 § — $ —
Acquisitions of coalreserves * .. ... ... ... . i 1,293 6,330 138,450
Coal services capital projects and acquisitions ................ 785 4,009 9,016
Other property and equipment expenditures .................. 70 119 69
Total capital expenditures ............................ $30,590 $10,458 $147,535

*  Includes noncash expenditure of $1.1 million in 2004, $5.2 million in 2003 and $54.7 million in 2002 to
acquire additional reserves in our northern Appalachia properties in exchange for common and Class B units
in the Peabody Acquisition.
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The Cantera Acquisition

In November 2004, we entered into an agreement to purchase from Cantera Resources Holdings LLC a
natural gas gathering and processing business with assets in Oklahoma and Texas for $191 million of cash. Upon
closing this acquisition, we will own and operate a set of midstream assets including approximately 3,400 miles
of gas gathering pipelines that supply three natural gas processing facilities, which have 160 MMcfd of total
capacity. We anticipate that the Cantera Acquisition will close in the first quarter of 2005. At closing, the Cantera
Acquisition will be funded by our credit facility, which we expect to revise and expand concurrent with the
closing of the acquisition. We anticipate using a combination of our credit facility and new equity capital to
permanently finance this acquisition. As of December 31, 2004, we capitalized $0.7 million for costs related to
the Cantera Acquisition. In order to mitigate the risk of price volatility, in January 2005, we entered into notional
derivative contracts for approximately 75 percent of the net volume of natural gas liquids expected to be sold
from April 2005 through December 2006. As of February 25, 2003, the derivative instruments had an aggregate
fair value of $6.7 million, favorable to the counterparty. Upon closing of the Cantera Acquisition, we expect the
derivative instruments to qualify as cash flow hedges in accordance with SFAS No. 133. Until closing the
acquisition, the derivative instruments will not qualify for hedge accounting; thus, changes in the derivative
instruments’ fair value prior to the closing will be recognized in earnings immediately. The fair value of the
derivative instruments will change as the market prices of the underlying commodities change. Any settlement of
the derivative instruments will be paid or received over the 21-month term of the contracts.

Coal Handling Joint Venture

In July 2004, we acquired from affiliates of Massey Energy Company a 50 percent interest in a joint venture
formed to own and operate end-user coal handling facilities. The purchase price was $28.4 million and was
funded through the Partnership’s credit facility.

The joint venture owns coal handling facilities which unload shipments and store and transfer coal for three
industrial coal consumers in the chemical, paper and lime production industries located in Tennessee, Virginia
and Kentucky, respectively. A combination of fixed monthly fees and per ton throughput fees is paid by those
consumers under long-term leases expiring between 2007 and 2019. We recognized equity earnings of $0.4
million related to our ownership in the joint venture in 2004. We received a joint venture distribution of
approximately $1.0 million during the fourth quarter of 2004 relating to third quarter operations.

Bull Creek Loadout Facility

In January 2004, we completed the construction of a new coal loadout facility for one of our lessees on our
Coal River property in West Virginia. The $4.4 million loadout facility is designed for the high-speed loading of
150-car unit trains and became operational on February 1, 2004, contributing $0.5 million to 2004 coal service
revenues. We expect this facility to generate coal service revenues of approximately $0.5 million in 2005.

The Peabody Acquisition

In December 2002, we completed the Peabody Acquisition, acquiring 120 million tons of proven and
probable coal reserves located in New Mexico (80 million tons) and West Virginia (40 million tons) from
Peabody. All of these reserves were leased back to subsidiaries of Peabody by the Partnership under leases
containing the terms described above (See Item 1, “Business—Coal Leases”). The Peabody Acquisition provided
geographic diversity by exposing us to new markets in the western United States and in northern Appalachia. The
inclusion of Peabody as a significant part of our lessee mix added strength and stability to our lessee group. The
acquisition was funded with $72.5 million of cash, 1.53 million common units and 1.23 million class B common
units. All of the Class B common units were converted into common units in accordance with their terms, upon
the approval of PVR common unitholders in July 2003. In December 2003 and January 2004, Peabody sold 1.15
million of its common units in public offerings sponsored by the Partnership, and, as of December 31, 2004,
Peabody held 0.84 million common units.
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The Upshur Acquisition

In August 2002, we completed the Upshur Acquisition, purchasing approximately 16 million tons of proven
and probable coal reserves located on the Upshur properties in northern Appalachia for $12.3 million. The
properties, which include approximately 18,000 mineral acres, contain predominantly high sulfur, high BTU coal
IESETves.

The West Coal River Acquisition

In May 2001, we acquired the Fork Creek property in West Virginia, which we now refer to as our West
Coal River property, by purchasing from and leasing back to the operator approximately 53 million tons of coal
reserves for $33 million. After this acquisition, the operator filed for bankruptcy protection under Chapter 11 of
the U.S. Bankruptcy Code and, in November 2002, we purchased through the bankruptcy proceeding various
infrastructure at West Coal River, including a 900 ton per hour coal preparation plant, a unit train loading facility
and a railroad-granted rebate on coal loaded through the facility for $5.1 million plus the assumption of
approximately $3.0 million in reclamation and stream mitigation obligations. We leased this property to another
operator in May 2003 and have assigned all reclamation and mitigation liabilities to the new lessee, which has
agreed to be responsible for those liabilities. The new lessee began operations in the third quarter of 2003.

Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Depletion. Coal properties are depleted on an area-by-area basis at a rate based on the cost of the mineral
properties and the number of tons of estimated proven and probable coal reserves contained therein. Proven and
probable reserves have been estimated internally by our geologists. Our estimates of coal reserves are updated
annually and may result in adjustments to coal reserves and depletion rates that are recognized prospectively. The
Partnership estimates its timber inventory using statistical information and data obtained from physical
measurements, site maps, photo-types and other information gathering techniques. These estimates are updated
annually and may result in adjustments of timber volumes and depletion rates, which are recognized
prospectively.

Coal Royalty Revenues. Coal royalty revenues are recognized on the basis of tons of coal sold by our lessees
and the corresponding revenues from those sales. Since we do not operate any coal mines, we do not have access
to actual production and revenues information until approximately 30 days following the month of production.
Therefore, our financial results include estimated revenues and accounts receivable for this 30-day period. Any
differences between the actual amounts ultimately received and the original estimates are recorded in the period
they become finalized.
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Results of Operations

The following table sets forth our revenues, operating expenses and operating statistics for the years ended

December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002.

% Change % Change
2003 to 2002 to
2004 2003 2004 2002 2003
(in thousands, except prices)

Financial Highlights:
Revenues:
Coalroyalties . . ..o v e $69,643 $50,312 38% $31,358 60%
Coal SEIVICES © v vttt e 3,391 2,111 61% 1,704 24%
Timber . ... ..o 702 1,020 (31%) 1,640 (38%)
Minimumrentals ... ...... ... ... . it 757 1,720 (56%) 2,840 (39%)
Equityearnings .......... .. ... i i 396 — 100% — —
Other . ... .. 741 479 55% 1,066 (55%)
Total revenues ...t i 75,630 55,642 36% 38,608 44%
Operating Costs and Expenses:
Royalties .......... i 6,099 2,712 125% 1,765 54%
OPErating . ... oottt et e e 1,125 1,523 (26%) 1,147 33%
Taxes other thanincome ........................... 948 1,256 (25%) 895 40%
General and administrative . .......... ... ... ...... 8,307 7,013 18% 6,419 9%
Depreciation, depletion and amortization .............. 18,632 16,578 12% 3,955 319%
Total operating costs and expenses ................... 35,111 29,082 21% 14,181 105%
Income from operations ............... ..o, 40,519 26,560 53% 24,427 8%
Other Income (Expense):
Interestexpense ....... ... ... .. (7,267) (4,986) 46% (1,758) 184%
Interestincome ............cuieiiiinrnnein. 1,063 1,223 (13%) 2,017 (39%)
Income before cumulative effect of change in accounting

principle . . ... 34,315 22,797 51% 24,686 (8%)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle . . ... — aorn — — —
Netincome ......... ... ... .. ... .. ... ... $34,315 $22,690 51% $24,686 (8%)
Operating Statistics: |
Coal:
Royalty coal tons produced by lessees (tons in

thousands) ............ ... .. .. . 31,181 26,463 18% 14,281 85%
Average gross royalties perton . ................c..... $ 223 $ 190 17% $ 220 (14%)
Timber:
Timbersales(Mbf) ......... ... ... . i i 2,567 5,250 (51%) 8,345 (37%)
Average timber sales priceper Mbf . ................. $ 249 § 179 39% $ 187 (4%)

Year Ended December 31, 2004 Compared With Year Ended December 31, 2003

Revenues. The increase in combined revenues primarily related to increased royalties received from our lessees.

Coal royalty revenues increased due to increased production by our lessees and higher royalty rates.
Production increased by 18 percent primarily due to the factors listed below. Average gross royalties per ton
increased by 17 percent due primarily to stronger market conditions for coal and the resulting higher coal prices.

* Production on the Coal River property increased by 3.9 million tons, which resulted in an increase in
revenues of $10.8 million. One lessee, which utilizes longwall mining, began mining on one of our
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subleased properties from an adjacent property during the first quarter of 2004, which resulted in an
additional 2.6 million tons of coal production, or $5.6 million in revenues in 2004. The addition of a
mine operator and a new mine by another of our lessees contributed approximately 0.7 million tons of
coal production, or $3.1 million of revenues. The commencement of operations in July 2003 on our
West Coal River property also contributed an additional 0.5 million tons, or $1.5 million of revenues.
Increased demand also fueled a coal sales price increase in the region, which in turn resulted in a seven
percent increase in our average gross royalty per ton on the Coal River property, from $2.42 per ton in
2003 to $2.60 per ton in 2004.

e Production on the Wise property increased by 0.7 million tons and revenues increased by $5.9 million,
of which approximately $4.0 million related to an increase in the average royalty rate received from our
lessees. Increased coal prices fueled by stronger demand in the region resulted in higher price
realizations by our lessees. This caused a 19 percent increase in the average gross royalty per ton from
$2.29 per ton in 2003 to $2.72 per ton in 2004. Production increased primarily due to four new mines,
including one new lessee, and certain lessees’ ability to increase operating days in response to higher
coal demand.

*  Production on the Spruce Laurel property increased by 0.5 million tons, and revenues increased by $1.9
million. The revenue increase was primarily the result of increased coal sales prices fueled by stronger
demand in the region. The higher royalty rates received from our lessees resulted in a 23 percent
increase in the average gross royalty per ton on the Spruce Laurel property, from $2.07 per ton in 2003
to $2.54 per ton in 2004.

Coal services revenues increased primarily as a result of start-up operations at our West Coal River and Bull
Creek facilities in July 2003 and February 2004, respectively.

Timber revenues decreased due to the timing of a parcel sale of our standing timber in 2003 and poor
weather conditions in the second quarter of 2004.

Minimum rental revenues decreased primarily due to the timing of expiring recoupments from our lessees.
The amount recognized in 2003 primarily related to four leases. Each of these leases was assigned to a new
lessee approved by us. The leases were amended at the time of assignment to allow the new lessees additional
time to offset actual production against minimum rental payments.

Equity earnings represent our portion of earnings from our investment in the coal handling joint venture
with Massey Energy since we acquired the equity investment in July 2004.

Other revenues increased primarily due to a gain on the 2004 sale of surface property in Virginia.

Operating Costs and Expenses. The increase in aggregate operating costs and expenses primarily relates to
an increase in royalty expenses, partially offset by decreases in operating expenses and taxes other than income.

Royalty expenses increased due to an increase in production by lessees on our subleased properties,
primarily our Coal River property. Production from subleased properties doubled to 7.8 million tons in 2004
from 3.9 million tons in 2003.

Operating expenses decreased due to the assumption by a new lessee of costs incurred after May 2003 to
maintain idled mines on our West Coal River property, which is part of our Coal River property. We paid these
costs through May 2003.

The decrease in taxes other than income was attributable to the assumption by a new lessee of the property
tax obligation on our West Coal River property for which we had been responsible since the bankruptcy of our
initial West Coal River lessee.
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General and administrative expenses increased by $1.3 million. Approximately $0.2 million was attributable
to costs related to a secondary public offering for the sale of common units held by an affiliate of Peabody. The
remainder is primarily attributable to increased professional fees and payroll costs relating to evaluating
acquisition opportunities and compliance with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Depreciation, depletion and amortization expense increased primarily as a result of increased production and
depreciation on our West Coal River and Bull Creek coal services facilities which began start-up operations in
July 2003 and February 2004, respectively.

Interest Expense. Interest expense increased primarily due to bridge loan issue costs that were expensed
upon the termination of the bridge loan agreement in December 2004 and higher debt levels resulting from the
coal handling joint venture investment in July 2004,

Interest Income. Interest income decreased primarily due to the declining principal balance on our note
receivable.

Year Ended December 31, 2003 Compared With Year Ended December 31, 2002

Revenues. The increase in combined revenues primarily related to increased royalties received from our
lessees. :

Coal royalty revenues increased due to increased production by our lessees, partially offset by a decline in
royalty rates. Average gross royalties per ton decreased by 14 percent as a result of the lower royalty rates
attributable to our leases with Peabody. Over these same periods, production increased by 85 percent primarily
due 1o the following factors:

*  Production on the New Mexico property increased by 6.1 million tons, which resulted in an increase in
revenues of $9.1 million. The increase was a direct result of the Peabody Acquisition in December 2002.

*  Production on the Northern Appalachia property increased by 4.7 million tons, which resulted in an
increase in revenues of $5.5 million. The increase was a direct result of the Peabody Acquisition in
December 2002 and the Upshur Acquisition in August 2002.

*  Production on the Coal River property increased by 1.4 million tons, which resulted in an increase in
revenues of $4.2 million. The addition of a mine operator and a new mine by one of our lessees
contributed 0.6 million tons, or $1.7 million in revenues. One lessee mined onto our property from an
adjacent property in 2003, which resulted in an additional 0.6 million tons, or $1.4 million in revenues.
The remainder of the increase was primarily due to one lessee beginning operations in late 2002 and
reaching full production in 2003 and start-up operations on our West Coal River property. Additional
production from two of our lessees with high royalty rates coupled with an increased demand in the
region resulted in a 15 percent increase in the average gross royalty per ton on the Coal River property,
from $2.11 per ton in 2002 to $2.42 per ton in 2003.

* Production on the Wise property increased by 0.4 million tons, which resulted in an increase in revenues
of $1.0 million. The increase was primarily due to additional mining equipment being added by two of
our lessees and another lessee beginning operations in late 2002 and reaching full production in 2003.

* Production on the Spruce Laurel property decreased by 0.3 million tons, which resulted in a decrease in
revenues of $0.7 million. The decrease was the result of the depletion of two mines in 2003.

*  Production on the Buchanan property decreased by 0.1 million tons, which resulted in a $0.2 million
decrease in revenues as this property continues to approach the end of its reserve life.

Coal services revenues increased as a direct result of our West Coal River preparation and transportation
facility beginning operations in July 2003 and the addition of a small preparation plant.
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Timber revenues decreased due to decreased volume and sales price. Volume sold declined 3,095 Mbf, or
37 percent, to 5,250 Mbf in 2003, compared to 8,345 Mbf for 2002, due to the timing of parcel sales.

Minimum rental revenues decreased primarily due to a lessee rejecting our lease in bankruptcy in 2002;
consequently, $0.8 million of deferred revenues from this respective lessee was recognized as income in 2002,
The remainder of the decrease was primarily due to the timing of expiring recoupments from our lessees.

Other revenues decreased primarily due to the expiration of a railroad rebate received for the use of a
specific portion of railroad by one of our lessees, which was paid in full in the fourth quarter of 2002.

Operating Costs and Expenses. The increase in aggregate operating costs and expenses primarily relates to
increases in depreciation, depletion and amortization and royalty expenses.

Royalty expenses increased due to an increase in production by lessees on our subleased properties,
including increased production on one lease with higher royalty rates payable by us to the mineral interest
owners. Aggregate production from subleased properties increased to 2.0 million tons for the year ended
December 31, 2003, from 1.8 million tons for the year ended December 31, 2002, an increase of 0.2 million tons,
or 11 percent.

Operating expenses increased primarily due to maintenance costs for idled mines on our West Coal River
property. We leased our West Coal River property in May 2003 and the on-going maintenance costs were
assumed by the new lessee as of that date. .

The increase in taxes other than income was attributable to higher property taxes as a result of our
assumption of the property tax obligation on our West Coal River property when we took back our lease on this
property from the bankrupt lessee. We leased our West Coal River property in May 2003 and the on-going
property taxes were assumed by the new lessee as of that date.

General and administrative expenses increased primarily due to increased payroll, an increase in insurance
premiums, additional recurring expenses associated with the Peabody Acquisition and costs related to the
secondary offering of units for Peabody.

Depreciation, depletion and amortization expense increased as a result of higher depletion rates caused by
higher cost bases relative to reserves added as well as increased production, both of which related primarily to
the Peabody and Upshur Acquisitions completed in the last half of 2002.

Interest Expense. Interest expense increased primarily due to long-term borrowings in connection with the
Peabody Acquisition in December 2002.

Interest Income. Interest income decreased primarily due to the liquidation of $43.4 million of U.S.
Treasury notes in the last half of 2002, which was used to purchase a portion of the Peabody Acquisition and all
of the Upshur Acquisition.

Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle. On January 1, 2003, we adopted SFAS No. 143,
“Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations.” As a result of the adoption, we recognized a cumulative effect of
accounting change. See Note 8, “Asset Retirement Obligations,” in the Notes to Consolidated Financial
Statements.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Since closing our initial public offering in October 2001, cash generated from operations and our borrowing
capacity, supplemented with the issuance of new common units for the Peabody Acquisition in December 2002,
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have been sufficient to meet our scheduled distributions, working capital requirements and capital expenditures.
Our primary cash requirements consist of distributions to our general partner and unitholders, normal operating
expenses, interest and principal payments on our long-term debt and acquisitions of new assets or businesses.

Cash Flows. Net cash provided by operating activities was $54.8 million in 2004, $41.1 million in 2003 and
$30.3 million in 2002. The overall increase in cash provided by operations in 2004 compared to 2003 was largely
due to increased production by our lessees and higher coal royalty rates. The overall increase in cash provided by
operations in 2003 compared to 2002 was largely due to increased production by our lessees, as a direct result of
the Peabody and Upshur Acquisitions in the last half of 2002 and additional mine openings.

Net cash used in investing activities was $28.4 million in 2004, $4.7 million in 2003 and $49.0 million in
2002. Cash used in investing activities in 2004 primarily related to our investment in the coal handling joint
venture with Massey Energy Company, which has been accounted for as an equity investment. Cash used in
investing activities in 2003 primarily related to our construction of a new coal loading facility on our Coal River
property in West Virginia. Net cash used in 2002 investing activities primarily reflected $92.8 million of capital
expenditures related to acquisitions, offset by $43.4 million from the sale of U.S. Treasury notes.

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities was ($14.4) million in 2004, ($36.9) million in 2003 and
$19.9 million in 2002. Net cash used in financing activities in 2004 included distributions to partners of $39.2
million and debt issuance costs of $1.2 million, offset by additional borrowings related to our senior unsecured
notes (see “Liquidity and Capital Resources—Senior Unsecured Notes™). Net cash used by financing activities in
2003 included distributions to partners of $36.7 million and debt issuance costs of $2.1 million, offset by
additional borrowings related to the senior notes. Net cash provided by financing activities in 2002 included
$47.5 million of borrowings to fund acquisitions and a $1.1 million contribution from the general partner, offset
by $28.7 million of distributions to unitholders.

Long-Term Debt. As of December 31, 2004, we had outstanding borrowings of $117.7 million, consisting of
$30.0 million borrowed under our revolving credit facility and $88.5 million outstanding under our senior
unsecured notes, partially offset by $0.8 million fair value of interest rate swap (see “Liquidity and Capital
Resources—Hedging Activities™).

Revolving Credit Facility. On October 31, 2003, we entered into an amendment to our revolving credit facility
(the “Revolver”) to increase the facility from $50 million to $100 million and to extend the maturity date to October
2006. The Revolver is with a syndicate of financial institutions led by PNC Bank, National Association, as its agent.
Based primarily on the total debt to consolidated EBITDA covenant and subsequent to our issuance of senior
unsecured notes, as described below, available borrowing capacity under the Revolver as of December 31, 2004,
was approximately $38.6 million. The Revolver is available for general partnership purposes, including working
capital, capital expenditures and acquisitions, and includes a $5.0 million sublimit available for working capital
needs and distributions and a $5.0 million sublimit for the issuance of letters of credit.

Indebtedness under the Revolver bears interest at our option at either (i) the higher of the federal funds rate
plus 0.50 percent or the prime rate as announced by PNC Bank, National Association or (ii) the Eurodollar rate
plus an applicable margin which ranges from 1.25 percent to 2.25 percent based on our ratio of consolidated
indebtedness to consolidated EBITDA (as defined in the Revolver) for the four most recently completed fiscal
quarters. We will incur a commitment fee on the unused portion of the Revolver at a rate per annum ranging
from 0.40 percent to 0.50 percent based upon the ratio of our consolidated indebtedness to consolidated EBITDA
for the four most recently completed fiscal quarters. When the Revolver matures in October 2006, it will
terminate and all outstanding amounts will be due and payable. We may prepay the Revolver at any time without
penalty. We are required to reduce all working capital borrowings under the working capital sublimit under the
Revolver to zero for a period of at least 15 consecutive days once each calendar year.

The Revolver prohibits us from making distributions to unitholders and distributions in excess of available
cash if any potential default or event of default, as defined in the Revolver, occurs or would result from the
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distribution. In addition, the Revolver contains various covenants that limit, among other things, our ability to
incur indebtedness, grant liens, make certain loans, acquisitions and investments, make any material change to
the nature of our business, acquire another company or enter into a merger or sale of assets, including the sale or
transfer of interests in our subsidiaries. At December 31, 2004, we were in compliance with the covenants in the
Revolver.

Senior Unsecured Notes. In March 2003, we closed a private placement of $90 million of senior unsecured
notes payable (the “Notes™). The Notes bear interest at a fixed rate of 5.77 percent and mature over a ten year
period ending in March 2013, with semi-annual interest payments through March 2004 followed by semi-annual
principal and interest payments beginning in September 2004. Proceeds of the Notes after the payment of
expenses related to the offering were used to repay and retire a $43.4 million term loan and to repay the majority
of debt outstanding on our Revolver.

The Notes prohibit us from making distributions to unitholders and distributions in excess of available cash
if any potential default or event of default, as defined in the Notes, occurs or would result from the distribution.
In addition, the Notes contain various covenants that are similar to those contained in the Revolver. At December
31, 2004, we were in compliance with the covenants in the Notes. In November 2004, our investment grade debt
rating of BBB (low) was confirmed by Dominion Bond Rating Services, an accredited bond rating agency.

Hedging Activities. In March 2003, we entered into an interest rate swap agreement with a notional amount
of $29.5 million to hedge a portion of the fair value of the Notes. This swap is designated as a fair value hedge
and has been reflected as a decrease in long-term debt of $0.8 million as of December 31, 2004, with a
corresponding increase in other liabilities. Under the terms of the interest rate swap agreement, the counterparty
pays us a fixed annual rate of 5.77 percent on a total notional amount of $29.5 million, and we pay the
counterparty a variable rate equal to the floating interest rate which is determined semi-annually and is based on
the six month London Interbank Offering Rate (“LIBOR”) plus 2.36 percent.

Future Capital Needs and Commitments. Part of our strategy is to make acquisitions which increase cash
available for distribution to our unitholders. Our ability to make these acquisitions in the future will depend in
part on the availability of debt financing and on our ability to periodically use equity financing through the
issuance of new units. Since completing the Peabody Acquisition in late 2002 and the coal handling joint venture
in July 2004, our ability to incur additional debt has been restricted due to limitations in our debt instruments. At
December 31, 2004, we had approximately $38.6 million of borrowing capacity available under our revolving
credit facility.

During the first quarter of 2005, we anticipate making capital expenditures of approximately $191 million,
plus closing fees and adjustments, for the acquisition of a midstream natural gas business from Cantera
Resources Holdings LL.C. We expect to fund this acquisition at closing with debt from a new, expanded credit
facility which we are currently negotiating. We expect to reduce that debt with the proceeds from a secondary
public offering of common units shortly after closing the acquisition. If the secondary public offering is
successful, we expect to have significantly expanded borrowing capacity available. We also anticipate 2005
capital expenditures of $0.3 million for coal services related projects and other property and equipment, which
we expect to fund with cash flow provided by operating activities. Limitations on the availability of debt
financing may necessitate the issuance of new units, as opposed to using debt, to provide a large part of the
funding for acquisitions in the future.

In connection with our anticipated Cantera Acquisition, during the fourth quarter of 2004, we entered into a
bridge loan commitment with two financial institutions. The bridge loan was terminated late in the fourth quarter
of 2004, and we expect to replace it with the expanded credit facility we are currently negotiating. In the fourth
quarter of 2004, we paid loan issue costs of approximately $1.0 million related to the bridge loan commitment,
which were recorded as interest expense during the fourth quarter of 2004.
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Contractual Obligations

Our contractual cash obligations as of December 31, 2004, were as follows:

Payments Due by Period

Less
than 1-3 4-5
Total 1 Year Years Years Thereafter
(in thousands)

Contractual Obligations:
Revolving credit facility . ........................... $ 30,000 $ — $30000 $ — $§ —
Seniorunsecured NOES . . ..t v et ii i e 88,500 4,800 19,300 26,800 37,600
Rental commitments (1) ............ ... ... ..o un... 2,406 402 802 801 —
Total contractual cash obligations (2) ................. $120,906 $5,202 $50,102 $27,601 $37,600

(1) The Partnership’s rental commitments primarily relate to reserve-based properties which are, or are intended
to be, subleased by the Partnership to third parties. The obligation expires when the property has been mined
to exhaustion or the lease has been canceled. The timing of mining by third party operators is difficult to
estimate due to numerous factors. See Item 1, “Business—Risks Inherent in Our Business.” We believe the
obligation after five years cannot be estimated with certainty; however, based on historical trends, we
believe the Partnership will incur approximately $0.4 million in rental commitments in perpetuity until the
reserves have been exhausted.

(2) The total contractual cash obligations do not include general partner reimbursement. The general partner of
the Partnership is entitled to receive reimbursement of direct and indirect expenses incurred on our behalf
until the Partnership has been dissolved.

We believe that we will continue to have adequate liquidity to fund future recurring operating and investing
activities. Short-term cash requirements, such as operating expenses and quarterly distributions to our general
partner and unitholders, are expected to be funded through operating cash flows. Long-term cash requirements
for asset acquisitions are expected to be funded by several sources, including cash flows from operating
activities, borrowings under credit facilities, and the issuance of additional equity and debt securities. Our ability
to complete future debt and equity offerings will depend on various factors, including prevailing market
conditions, interest rates and our financial condition and credit rating at the time.

Environmental

Surface Mining Valley Fills. Over the course of the last several years, opponents of surface mining have
filed three lawsuits challenging the legality of permits authorizing the construction of valley fills for the disposal
of coal mining overburden under federal and state laws applicable to surface mining activities. Although two of
these challenges were successful in the United States District Court for the Southern District of West Virginia
(the “District Court”), the United States Court of Appeals for the Fourth Circuit overturned both of those
decisions in Bragg v. Robertson in 2001 and in Kentuckians For The Commonwealth v. Rivenburgh in 2003.

A ruling on July 8, 2004, which was made by the District Court in connection with a third lawsuit, may
impair our lessees’ ability to obtain permits that are needed to conduct surface mining operations. In this case,
Ohio Valley Environmental Coalition v. Bulen, the District Court determined that the Army Corps of Engineers
(the “Corps”) violated the Clean Water Act (“the Clean Water Act”) and other federal statutes when it issued
Nationwide Permit 21 (“NWP21”). This ruling is currently on appeal, but no decision has been issued by the
appeals court as of yet.

In January of 2005, Kentucky Riverkeepers, Inc. and several other groups filed suit in federal district court
in Kentucky challenging the legality of Nationwide Permit 21, and seeking to enjoin the Corps from issuing any
general permits thereunder for fills associated with coal mining in Kentucky. Should the district court hearing,
this case follow the reasoning of Ohio Valley Environmental Coalition v. Bulen and similarly enjoin the Corps
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from issuing general permits for coal mining under that general permit, companies seeking permits under Section
404 of the Clean Water Act in Kentucky may have to file for individual permits that may result in increases in
coal mining costs. We do not have a substantial amount of reserves in Kentucky and do not expect that our
lessees would be affected significantly by the outcome in this case.

Mine Health and Safety Laws. The operations of our lessees are subject to stringent health and safety
standards that have been imposed by federal legislation since the adoption of the Mine Health and Safety Act of
1969. The Mine Health and Safety Act of 1969 resulted in increased operating costs and reduced productivity.
The Mine Safety and Health Act of 1977, which significantly expanded the enforcement of health and safety
standards of the Mine Health and Safety Act of 1969, imposes comprehensive health and safety standards on all
mining operations. In addition, as part of the Mine Health and Safety Acts of 1969 and 1977, the Black Lung
Acts require payments of benefits by all businesses conducting current mining operations to coal miners with
black lung or pneumoconiosis and to some beneficiaries of miners who have died from this disease.

Environmental Compliance. The operations of our lessees are subject to environmental laws and regulations
adopted by various governmental authorities in the jurisdictions in which these operations are conducted. The
terms of the Partnership’s coal property leases impose liability for all environmental and reclamation liabilities
arising under those laws and regulations on the relevant lessees. The lessees are bonded and have indemnified the
Partnership against any and all future environmental liabilities. The Partnership regularly visits coal properties
under lease to monitor lessee compliance with environmental laws and regulations and to review mining
activities. Management believes that the Partnership’s lessees will be able to comply with existing regulations
and does not expect any material impact on the Partnership’s financial condition or results of operations.

We have certain reclamation bonding requirements with respect to certain of our unleased and inactive
properties. As of December 31, 2004 and 2003, the Partnership’s environmental liabilities totaled $1.5 million
and $1.6 million, respectively. The environmental liabilities are not covered by the indemnification agreement
with Penn Virginia. Given the uncertainty of when the reclamation area will meet regulatory standards, a change
in this estimate could occur in the future.

Recent Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 141, “Business Combinations,” and SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets,” under which we classified leased coal mineral rights as intangible assets. In April 2004, the
FASB issued a FASB Staff Position (“FSP”) that amends certain sections of SFAS No. 141 and No. 142 relating
to the characterization of coal mineral rights. As allowed by the FSP, we early adopted the FSP in April 2004
and, accordingly, reclassified leased coal mineral rights back to tangible property. We discontinued straight-line
amortization upon adoption, and we will deplete coal mineral rights using the units-of-production method on a
prospective basis. The amount capitalized related to a mineral right represents its fair value at the time such right
was acquired, less accumulated amortization. Pursuant to the FSP, for comparative presentation purposes, $4.9
million was reclassified from a separate line item in other noncurrent assets to net property and equipment as of
December 31, 2003, on the accompanying consolidated balance sheet.

Forward-Looking Statements

Statements included in this report which are not historical facts (including any statements concerning plans
and objectives of management for future operations or economic performance, or assumptions related thereto)
are forward-looking statements. In addition, the Partnership and its representatives may from time to time make
other oral or written statements which are also forward-looking statements.

The Partnership cautions that forward-looking statements are not guarantees and that actual results could
differ materially from those expressed or implied in the forward-looking statements, since those statements are
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made based upon management’s current plans, expectations, estimates, assumptions and beliefs concerning
future events impacting the Partnership and, therefore, involve a number of risks, uncertainties and
contingencies. These risks, uncertainties and contingencies include, but are not limited to, the following:

k

*

*

the price of coal and its comparison to the price of natural gas and oil;
the volatility of commodity prices for coal;

the projected demand for coal;

the projected supply of coal;

the ability to acquire new coal reserves on satisfactory terms;

the price for which such reserves can be acquired;

the ability to lease new and existing coal reserves;

the ability of lessees to produce sufficient quantities of coal on an economic basis from the
Partnership’s reserves;

the ability of lessees to obtain favorable contracts for coal produced from the Partnership’s reserves;
competition among producers in the coal industry generally;

the extent to which the amount and quality of actual production differs from estimated recoverable
proved coal reserves;

unanticipated geological problems;
availability of required materials and equipment;
the occurrence of unusual weather or operating conditions including force majeure events;

the failure of PVR’s infrastructure and its lessees’ mining equipment or processes to operate in
accordance with specifications or expectations;

delays in anticipated start-up dates of lessees’ mining operations and related coal infrastructure projects;
environmental risks affecting the mining of coal reserves;

the timing of receipt of necessary governmental permits by the Partnership’s lessees;

the risks associated with having or not having price risk management programs;

labor relations and costs;

accidents;

changes in governmental regulation or enforcement practices, especially with respect to environmental,
health and safety matters, including with respect to emissions levels applicable to coal-burning power
generators;

uncertainties relating to the outcome of litigation regarding permitting of the disposal of coal
overburden;

risks and uncertainties relating to general domestic and international economic (including inflation and
interest rates) and political conditions (including the impact of potential terrorist attacks);

the experience and financial condition of lessees, including their ability to satisfy their royalty,
environmental, reclamation and other obligations to the Partnership and others;

coal handling joint venture operations;
changes in financial market conditions; and

other risk factors as detailed in the Partnership’s Securities and Exchange Commission filings on
Annual Report on Form 10-K.
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Many of such factors are beyond the Partnership’s ability to control or predict. Readers are cautioned not to
put undue reliance on forward-looking statements.

While the Partnership periodically reassesses material trends and uncertainties affecting the Partnership’s
results of operations and financial condition in connection with the preparation of Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Results of Operations and Financial Condition and certain other sections contained in the
Partnership’s quarterly, annual or other reports filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, the
Partnership does not undertake any obligation to review or update any particular forward-looking statement,
whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

Market risk is the risk of loss arising from adverse changes in market rates and prices. The principal market
risks to which we are exposed are interest rate risk and coal price risks.

We are also indirectly exposed to the credit risk of our lessees. If our lessees become financially insolvent,
our lessees may not be able to continue operating or meeting their minimum lease payment obligations. As a
result, our coal royalty revenues could decrease due to lower production volumes.

As of December 31, 2004, $88.5 million of our borrowings were financed with debt which has a fixed
interest rate throughout its term. In connection with this financing, we executed an interest rate derivative
transaction to effectively convert the interest rate on one-third of the amount financed from a fixed rate of 5.77
percent to a floating rate of LIBOR plus 2.36 percent. The interest rate swap has been accounted for as a fair
value hedge in compliance with SFAS No. 133, as amended by SFAS No. 137 and SFAS No. 138.

In connection with the Cantera Acquisition, we entered into notional derivative contracts in January 2005 to
mitigate the risk of price volatility for approximately 75 percent of the net volume of natural gas liquids expected
to be sold from April 2005 through December 2006. As of February 25, 2005, the derivative instruments had an
aggregate fair value of $6.7 million, favorable to the counterparty. Upon closing of the Cantera Acquisition, we
expect the derivative instruments to qualify as cash flow hedges in accordance with SFAS No. 133. Until closing
the acquisition, the derivative instruments will not qualify for hedge accounting; thus, changes in the derivative
instruments’ fair value prior to closing will be recognized in earnings immediately. The fair value of the
derivative instruments will change as the market prices of the underlying commodities change. Any settlement of
the derivative instruments will be paid or received over the 21-month term of the contracts.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Partners of Penn Virginia Resource Partners, L. P.:

We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of Penn Virginia Resource Partners, L. P, a
Delaware limited partnership, and subsidiaries (collectively “the Partnership”) as of December 31, 2004 and
2003, and the related consolidated statements of income, partners’ capital and cash flows for each of the years in
the three-year period ended December 31, 2004. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of
the Partnership’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial
statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test
basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating
the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

In our opinion, the conselidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of Penn Virginia Resource Partners, L. P. (and subsidiaries) as of December 31, 2004 and
2003, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the years in the three-year period ended
December 31, 2004, in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.

As discussed in Note 8 to the consolidated financial statements, effective January 1, 2003, the Partnership
changed its method of accounting for asset retirement obligations.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the effectiveness of the Partnership’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,
2004, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission, and our report dated February 25, 2005 expressed an
unqualified opinion.

KPMG LLP

Houston, Texas
February 25, 2005
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Partners of Penn Virginia Resource Partners L. P.:

We have audited management’s assessment on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting, appearing under
Item 9A, that Penn Virginia Resource Partners L. P., a Delaware limited partnership, and subsidiaries (collectively
“the Partnership™), maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, based on
criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission. The Partnership’s management is responsible for maintaining effective
internal control over financial reporting and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial
reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on management’s assessment and an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Partnership’s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight
Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material respects. Our
audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, evaluating management’s
assessment, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control, and performing such
other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting
includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made
only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of the
company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that
controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

In our opinion, management’s assessment that the Partnership maintained effective internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, is fairly stated, in all material respects, based on criteria established in
Internal Control-—Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway
Commission. Also, in our opinion, the Partnership maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control
over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004, based on criteria established in Internal Control—Integrated
Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States), the consolidated balance sheets of the Partnership as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, and the
related consolidated statements of income, partners’ capital and cash flows for each of the years in the three-year
period ended December 31, 2004, and our report dated February 25, 2005 expressed an unqualified opinion on
those consolidated financial statements.

KPMGLLP

Houston, Texas
February 25, 2005
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PENN VIRGINIA RESOURCE PARTNERS, L.P. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(in thousands, except per unit amounts)

Year Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002

Revenues

Coal rOYalties . .. ..ottt e e $69,643 $50,312 $31,358

C0al SEIVICES . vttt e 3,391 2,111 1,704

Timber .. o e 702 1,020 1,640

Minimumrentals ... ......... ... i e 757 1,720 2,840

Equity @arnings . . .. .. .ovvrt e 396 — —

Other . .o e 741 479 1,066

Total TEVENUES . .ottt e e e e 75,630 55,642 38,608

Expenses

Royalties . .. ... e 6,099 2,712 1,765

OPeIating ..ottt e 1,125 1,523 1,147

Taxes otherthanincome ............... .. .. ... ciiiiiiiiininnnnn. 948 1,256 895

General and administrative . ....... .. 8,307 7,013 6,419

Depreciation, depletion and amortization .................... ..., 18,632 16,578 3,955

Total operating costs and €Xpenses ...............c.oeeeiiennen.. 35,111 29,082 14,181

Operating income ............... ... i 40,519 26,560 24,427
Other income (expense) ‘

INterest EXPenSe ... oottt e (7,267) (4,986) (1,758)

INterest INCOME . . .. ...ttt e e e 1,063 1,223 2,017
Income before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle ...... ... 34,315 22,797 24,686

Cumulative effect of change in account principle ...................... — (107) —
Netincome ... ... .. ...ttt e i 334,315 $22,690 $24,686
General partner’s interest innetincome .................cviiiiineiiin.n. $ 686 § 454 § 494
Limited partners’ interest in Netincome ..............c.c.veerrnnviunn... $33,629 $22,236 $24,192
Basic and diluted net income per limited partner unit, common and subordinated:

Income before cumulative effect of change in accounting principle . ....... $ 18 $ 125 $§ 1.57

Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle ................... — (0.01) —

Net income per limited partnerunit ............ ... viunieiiiinenn. $ 18 $ 124 $ 157
Weighted average number of units outstanding, basic and diluted:

COMITION . ..ttt e e e e e e e e e e e 10,739 10,291 7,737

Subordinated . .. .. ... 7,331 7,650 7,650

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.

43




PENN VIRGINIA RESOURCE PARTNERS, L.P. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in thousands)

December 31,
2004 2003
ASSETS
Current assets
Cashand cashequivalents .. ..........ouiitttuniiin e $ 20,997 $ 9,066
Accounts receivable ... .. . i e e e 8,668 6,909
Other CUITENT ASSEES . . o ittt e it ettt e ittt e e et ianaens 541 767
Total CUITENE @SSEES & v v vttt et i et e it ettt e 30,206 16,742
Property and equipment ......... ... e e 271,546 269,966
Less: Accumulated depreciation, depletion and amortization ................... 49,931 31,820
Net property and €qQUIPIMENT .. ...ttt iie e 221,615 238,146
Equity INVESHMENtS . .. ..ottt e e e 27,881 —
Debt 1SSUANICE COSES, T . . . ottt sttt ettt it ettt e e 1,621 2,065
Long-term prepaid minimums, netandother ........... ... .. ... ... ..l 3,112 2,939
Ot @SS . . vttt it e e $284,435 $259,892
LIABILITIES AND PARTNERS’ CAPITAL
Current Liabilities
Accounts payable ... ... $ 1,046 $ 965
Accrued labilities .. ... o e e e 2,943 2,910
Current portion of long-term debt . ........ .. ... .. . . 4,800 1,500
Deferred INCOME . ..ottt e e 1,207 1,610
Total current liabilities . ... ... o e e 9,996 6,985
Deferred INCOMIE . .. v v it e e e e e e e 8,726 6,028
Other Habilities . .. ..ottt e et et e e e e e e e e 2,803 2,793
Long-termdebt .. ... ... .. . . e e 112,926 90,286
Commitments and contingencies (Note 13)
Partners’ Capital
Common units (12,337,151 units in 2004 and 10,373,288 units in 2003) .......... 164,738 171,485
Subordinated units (5,737,410 units in 2004 and 7,649,880in 2003) ............. (15,032) (18,060)
General partner INLETESE . . . . . ..ottt ittt e e 278 375
Total partners’ capital . ........... . i 149,984 153,800
Total liabilities and partners’ capital ................ . ..., $284,435 $259,892

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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PENN VIRGINIA RESOURCE PARTNERS, L.P. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands)

Year Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002
Cash flows from operating activities:
NELINCOME . . . o ottt e e e e e e e e e $34315 $22,690 $ 24,686
Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash provided by operating
activities:
Depreciation, depletion and amortization .......................... 18,632 16,578 3,955
Gain on sale of property and equipment .. ............ ... ... (233) (&) 9
Noncash interest eXpense . ...ttt e, 1,678 520 319
Equity earnings, net of distributions ............... ... ... .. ... 561 — —
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle ................. — 107 —
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accountsreceivable ... ... . ... (1,759) (2,495 (460)
Accountspayable ....... ... 81 140 516
Accrued liabilities . ..... ... .. .. 33 1,456 693
Deferredincome . ........ ..ottt 2,295 2,321 1,389
Other assets and liabilities ............. ... .. oo, (821) (235) (747)
Net cash provided by operating activities ...................... 54,782 41,077 30,342
Cash flows from investing activities;
Payment received on long-termnotes ................ ... .. ... 767 530 439
Proceeds from restricted U.S. Treasurynotes ....................... — —_— 43,387
Proceeds from the sale of property and equipment ................... 337 50 15
Equity investments ... ...ttt (28,442) — —
ACQUISILIONS . . oottt et et e (233)  (1,361) (86,767)
Coal services and land management additions . ...................... (785) (3,811)  (5,981)
Other property and equipment expenditures ........................ (70) (119) (69)
Net cash used in investing activities . ......................... (28,426) 4,711) (48,976)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Payments for debtissuance costs . ............ ..., (1,234)  (2,142) —
Proceeds from long-termdebt ........ ... ... .. ..o o oL, 28,500 90,000 47,500
Repayments of long-termdebt . .......... ... ... ... .. (2,500) (88,387 —
Proceeds received from issuance of partners’ capital ................. — 317 1,142
Distributions . . ..o oo e (39,191) (36,708) (28,723)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities ............... (14,425) (36,920) 19,919
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents ..................... 11,931 (554) 1,285
Cash and cash equivalents—beginning of period ........................ 9,066 9,620 8,335
Cash and cash equivalents—end of period ............................. $20,997 $ 9,066 $ 9,620
Supplemental disclosures:
Cash paid during the period forinterest .. ............... . ... ... $ 5472 § 3248 $ 1,694
Noncash investing and financing activities:
Issuance of partners’ capital for acquisitions ........................ $ 1,060 $ 4,969 $ 50,920
Liabilities associated with acquisitions,net . ........................ — 198 3,798

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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PENN VIRGINIA RESOURCE PARTNERS, L.P. AND SUBSIDIARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PARTNERS’ CAPITAL
(in thousands, except unit data)

Class B
Common Units Common Units Subordinated Units General
Units Amount Units Amount Units Amount Partner Total
Balance at December 31,2001 ...... 7,649,880 $124,599 - $ — 7,649,880 $ (9,696) $ (396) $114,507
Capital contributions ............ — — — — — — 1,142 1,142
Issnance of units . ............... 1,522,325 31,390 947,133 19,530 — — — 50,920
2002 net income allocation ....... — 12,118 — 80 — 11,994 494 24,686
2002 distributions ($1.84 per
unit) L — (14,074) — — — (14,074) (575) (28,723)
Balance at December 31,2002 ...... 9,172,205 154,033 947,133 19,610 7,649,880  (11,776) 665 162,532
Capital contributions ............ — — — — — — 6 6
Issuance of units .. .............. 12,950 311 241,000 4,969 — — — 5,280
Conversion of Class B units to
COMMON UAILS . ..o vvvrvennnn. 1,188,133 24,579 (1,188,133) (24,579) — —_ — —
2003 net income allocation ....... — 12,058 — 702 — 9,476 454 22,690
2003 distributions ($2.06 per
UMiE) o — (19,496) — (702) — (15,760) (750) (36,708)
Balance at December 31,2003 ...... 10,373,288 171,485 — — 7,649,880  (18,060) 375 153,800
Issmance of units ................ 51,393 1,060 — — —_ — — 1,060
Conversion of subordinated units .. 1,912,470 (5,483) — — (1,912,470) 5,483 — —
2004 net income allocation ....... — 19,866 — — — 13,763 686 34,315
2004 distributions ($2.12 per
UMNE) oo e — (22,190) — — — (16,218) (783) (39,191)
Balance at December 31,2004 ...... 12,337,151 $164,738 — 5 — 5,737,410 $(15032) $ 278 $149,984

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements.
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PENN VIRGINIA RESOURCE PARTNERS, L.P. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Organization

Penn Virginia Resource Partners, L.P. (the “Partnership”, “we”, “our” or “us”), a Delaware limited
partnership, was formed in July 2001 to own and manage the assets, liabilities and operations of Penn Virginia
Corporation’s (“Penn Virginia”) coal business (the “Penn Virginia Coal Business” or the “Predecessor”). We
completed an initial public offering in October 2001. Effective with the closing of the initial public offering,
Penn Virginia’s wholly owned subsidiaries received common units, subordinated units and a two percent
partnership interest in the ownership of the Partnership. The general partner of the Partnership is Penn Virginia
Resource GP, LLC, a wholly owned subsidiary of Penn Virginia.

Through our wholly owned subsidiary, Penn Virginia Operating Co., LLC, we enter into leases with various
third-party operators that give those operators the right to mine coal reserves on our land, located in the
Appalachian region of the United States and in New Mexico, in exchange for royalty payments. Approximately
79 percent of our 2004 coal royalty revenues and 72 percent of our 2003 coal royalty revenues were derived from
coal mined on our properties and sold by our lessees multiplied by a royalty rate per ton resulting from the higher
of a percentage of the gross sales price or a fixed price per ton of coal, with pre-established minimum monthly or
annual rental payments. The balance of our 2004 and 2003 coal royalty revenues was derived from coal mined on
two of our properties under leases containing fixed royalty rates per ton of coal mined and sold. The royalty rates
under those leases escalate annually, with pre-established minimum monthly payments. We also provide fee-
based infrastructure facilities to certain of our lessees to enhance coal production and to generate additional coal
royalty revenues and to third party end-users in connection with our Massey Energy Company joint venture (see
Note 3, “Acquisitions”). We also sell timber growing on our land.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Partnership and all wholly-owned
subsidiaries. Intercompany balances and transactions have been eliminated in consolidation. In the opinion of
management, all adjustments have been reflected that are necessary for a fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements. Certain amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current year’s presentation.

Use of Estimates

Preparation of the accompanying consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated financial statements and the reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

We consider all highly liquid investments purchased with an original maturity of three months or less to be
cash equivalents.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment represent our ownership in coal fee mineral interests. Property and equipment are
carried at cost and include expenditures for additions and improvements, such as roads and land improvements,
which increase the productive lives of existing assets. Maintenance and repair costs are expensed as incurred.
Depreciation and amortization of property and equipment is computed using the straight-line or declining balance
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PENN VIRGINIA RESOURCE PARTNERS, L.P. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

methods over the estimated useful lives of such property and equipment, varying from three to 20 years. Coal
properties are depleted on an arca-by-area basis at a rate based upon the cost of the mineral properties and estimated
proven and probable tonnage therein. From time to time, the Partnership carries out core-hole drilling activities on
its coal properties in order to ascertain the quality and quantity of the coal contained in those properties. These core-
drilling activities are expensed as incurred. When an asset is retired or sold, its cost and related accumulated
depreciation and amortization are removed from the accounts. The difference between the net book value (net of
any related asset retirement obligation) and proceeds from disposition is recorded as gain or loss.

Timber and timberlands are stated at cost less depletion and amortization for timber previously harvested.
The cost of the timber harvested is determined based on the volume of timber harvested in relation to the amount
of estimated net merchantable volume, utilizing a composite pool. We estimate timber inventory using statistical
information and periodic data obtained from physical measurements, site maps, photo-types and other
information gathering techniques. These estimates are updated annually and may result in adjustments of timber
volumes and depletion rates, which are recognized prospectively. Changes in these estimates have no effect on
cash flow.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

We review long-lived assets to be held and used whenever events or circumstances indicate that the carrying
value of those assets may not be recoverable. An impairment loss must be recognized when the carrying amount
of an asset exceeds the sum of the undiscounted estimated future cash flows. In this circumstance, we would
recognize an impairment loss equal to the difference between the carrying value and the fair value of the asset.
Fair value is estimated to be the present value of future net cash flows from proved reserves, discounted utilizing
a rate commensurate with the risk and remaining lives of the assets.

Equity Investments

We use the equity method of accounting to account for our investment in a coal handling joint venture,
recording our initial investment at cost. Subsequently, the carrying amount of the investment is increased to
reflect our share of income of the investee and is reduced to reflect our share of losses of the investee or
distributions received from the investee as the joint venture reports them. Our share of earnings or losses from
the investment is shown as equity earnings in the consolidated statements of income.

Debt Issuance Costs

Debt issuance costs relating to long-term debt have been capitalized and are being amortized over the term
of the related debt instrument.

Long-Term Prepaid Minimums

We lease a portion of our reserves from third parties which require monthly or annual minimum rental
payments. The prepaid minimums are recoupable from future production and are deferred and charged to royalty
expense as the coal is subsequently produced. We evaluate the recoverability of the prepaid minimums on a
periodic basis; consequently, any prepaid minimums that cannot be recouped are charged to royalty expense.

Environmental Liabilities

Included in “Other Liabilities” are accruals for environmental liabilities that were either assumed in
connection with certain acquisitions or recorded in operating expenses when it is probable that a liability has
been incurred and the amount of that liability can be reasonably estimated.
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PENN VIRGINIA RESOURCE PARTNERS, L.P. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

Concentration of Credit Risk

Substantially all of our accounts receivable at December 31, 2004, resulted from accrued revenues from
lessee production. This concentration of lessees may impact our overall credit risk, either positively or
negatively, in that these entities may be similarly affected by changes in economic or other conditions. In
determining whether or not to require collateral from a lessee, we analyze the lessee entity’s net worth, cash
flows, earnings and credit ratings to the extent information is available. Receivables are generally not
collateralized. Historical credit losses incurred on receivables have not been significant.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Our financial instruments consist of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, note receivable,
accounts payable, interest rate swap and long-term debt. The carrying values of all of these financial instruments,
except long-term debt, approximate fair value. The fair value of long-term debt at December 31, 2004 and 2003,
was $86.2 million and $88.9 million, respectively.

Revenues

Coal Royalties. Coal royalty revenues are recognized on the basis of tons of coal sold by our lessees and the
corresponding revenues from those sales. Most coal leases are based on minimum monthly or annual payments, a
minimum dollar royalty per ton and/or a percentage of the gross sales price. The remainder of our coal royalty
revenues was derived from fixed royalty rate leases, which escalate annually, with pre-established minimum
monthly payments. Coal royalty revenues are accrued on a monthly basis, based on our best estimates of coal
mined on our properties.

Coal Services. Coal services revenues are recognized when lessees use our facilities for the processing,
loading and/or transportation of coal. Coal services revenues consist of fees collected for the use of our loadout
facility, coal preparation plants and dock loading facility.

Timber. Timber revenues are recognized when timber is sold in a competitive bid process involving sales of
standing timber on individual parcels and, from time to time, on a contract basis where independent contractors
harvest and sell the timber. Timber revenues are recognized when the timber has been sold or harvested by the
independent contractors. Title and risk of loss pass to the independent contractors upon the execution of the
contract. In addition, if the contractors do not harvest the timber within the specified time period, the title of the
timber reverts back to the Partnership with no refund of original payment.

Minimum Rentals. Most of the our lessees must make minimum monthly or annual payments that are
generally recoupable over certain time periods. These minimum payments are recorded as deferred income. If the
lessee recoups a minimum payment through production, the deferred income attributable to the minimum
payment is recognized as coal royalty revenues. If a lessee fails to meet its minimum production for certain
pre-determined time periods, the deferred income attributable to the minimum payment is recognized as
minimum rental revenues.

Equity Earnings. We recognize our share of income or losses from our investment in a coal handling joint
venture as the joint venture reports them to us.

Income Taxes

Subsequent to the initial formation of the Partnership, no provision for income taxes related to the
operations of the Partnership has been included in the accompanying financial statements because, as a
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Partnership, we are not subject to federal or state income taxes and the tax effect of our activities accrues to the
unitholders. Net income for financial statement purposes may differ significantly from taxable income reportable
to unitholders as a result of differences between the tax bases and financial reporting bases of assets and
liabilities and the taxable income allocation requirements under the Partnership agreement.

Net Income per Unit

Basic and diluted net income per unit is determined by dividing net income, after deducting the general
partner’s two percent interest, by the weighted average number of outstanding common units and subordinated
units. At December 31, 2004, there were no dilutive units.

New Accounting Standards

In June 2001, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Statement of Financial
Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 141, “Business Combinations,” and SFAS No. 142, “Goodwill and Other
Intangible Assets,” under which we classified leased coal mineral rights as intangible assets, In April 2004, the
FASB issued a FASB Staff Position (“FSP”) that amends certain sections of SFAS No. 141 and No. 142 relating
to the characterization of coal mineral rights. As allowed by the FSP, we early adopted the FSP in April 2004
and, accordingly, reclassified leased coal mineral rights back to tangible property. We discontinued straight-line
amortization upon adoption, and we will deplete coal mineral rights using the units-of-production method on a
prospective basis. The amount capitalized related to a mineral right represents its fair value at the time such right
was acquired, less accumulated amortization. Pursuant to the FSP, for comparative presentation purposes, $4.9
million was reclassified from a separate line item in other noncurrent assets to net property and equipment as of
December 31, 2003, on the accompanying consolidated balance sheet.

3. Acquisitions

In November 2004, we entered into an agreement to purchase from Cantera Resources Holdings LLC
(“Cantera™) a natural gas gathering and processing business with assets in Oklahoma and Texas for $191 million
of cash (the “Cantera Acquisition”). Upon closing this acquisition, we will own and operate a set of midstream
assets including approximately 3,400 miles of gas gathering pipelines that supply three natural gas processing
facilities which have 160 million cubic feet per day (MMcfd) of total capacity (unaudited). We anticipate that the
Cantera Acquisition will close in the first quarter of 2005. At closing, the Cantera Acquisition will be funded by
our credit facility, which we expect to revise and expand concurrent with the closing of the acquisition. We
anticipate using a combination of our credit facility and new equity capital to permanently finance this
acquisition. As of December 31, 2004, we capitalized $0.7 million for costs related to the Cantera Acquisition. In
order to protect the economics of the Cantera Acquisition, we entered into derivative contracts in January 2005 as
discussed in Note 17, “Subsequent Event.”

In July 2004, we acquired from affiliates of Massey Energy Company a 50 percent interest in a joint venture
formed to own and operate end-user coal handling facilities. The purchase price was $28.4 million and was
funded through our credit facility. The joint venture owns coal handling facilities which unload coal shipments
and store and transfer coal for three industrial coal consumers in the chemical, paper and lime production
industries located in Tennessee, Virginia and Kentucky, respectively. A combination of fixed monthly fees and
per ton throughput fees is paid by those consumers under long-term leases expiring between 2007 and 2019. We
recognized equity earnings of $0.4 million related to our ownership in the joint venture beginning in July 2004
and received distributions from the joint venture of approximately $1.0 million during 2004.
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In January 2004, we completed the construction of a new coal loadout facility for one of our lessees on our
Coal River property in West Virginia. The $4.4 million loadout facility is designed for the high-speed loading of
150-car unit trains and became operational on February 1, 2004, contributing $0.5 million to 2004 coal services
revenues.

In December 2002, we acquired two properties containing approximately 120 million tons of coal reserves
(unaudited) from affiliates of Peabody Energy Corporation (“Peabody”) for 1,522,325 million common units,
1,240,833 million Class B common units (a combined common unit value of $57.0 million) and $72.5 million in
cash plus closing costs (the “Peabody Acquisition”). Approximately $6.1 million, or 293,700 of the Class B
common units were held in escrow at closing pending certain title transfers. In July 2003, 241,000 Class B
common units were released from escrow in exchange for certain title transfers in New Mexico. In July 2003, all
of the class B common units were converted to common units, in accordance with their terms, upon the approval
of our common unitholders. As of December 31, 2003, 52,700 common units remained in escrow pending
Peabody acquiring and transferring to us certain of the West Virginia reserves we purchased. As a result of the
units held in escrow, approximately one million tons of coal reserves and 52,700 common units were not
included in property, plant and equipment or partners’ capital, respectively, at December 31, 2003. In February
2004, we released from escrow 51,393 common units in exchange for certain title transfers in West Virginia. As
of December 31, 2004, 1,307 of the common units were being held in escrow pending Peabody’s acquiring and
transferring to us certain of the West Virginia reserves we purchased. As a result of the units held in escrow at
December 31, 2004, 1,307 common units were not included in partners’ capital at that date. These 1,307 common
units were released from escrow in January 2005. All of the coal reserves we purchased from Peabody are being
leased back to Peabody for fixed royalty rates which escalate annually over the life of production. As part of the
Peabody Acquisition, Peabody received the right to share in the general partner’s incentive distribution rights, if
any, in exchange for additional properties Peabody may source to the Partnership in the future. The acquired coal
reserves had existing productive operations that have been included in the Partnership’s statements of income
since the closing date of the Peabody Acquisition.

In November 2002, we completed the acquisition of certain infrastructure-related equipment and other
assets integral to mining on one of our West Virginia properties. The purchased assets included a 900-ton per
hour coal preparation plant, a unit-train loading facility and a railroad-granted rebate on coal loaded through the
facility. We acquired the assets from an independent private entity and its lessors for $5.1 million in cash, which
was funded with proceeds from the sale of U.S. Treasury notes, plus the assumption of approximately $2.4
million in reclamation liabilities and approximately $0.6 million of stream mitigation obligations. These assets
did not have existing productive operations at the time of acquisition. In 2003, we leased the property and related
infrastructure to a third party who is actively mining coal reserves on the property. Consequently, all of the
reclamation and stream mitigation liabilities were assigned to the new lessee.

In August 2002, we acquired approximately 16 million tons of coal reserves located in West Virginia for
$12.3 million. The acquisition, which was purchased from an independent private entity, was funded with the
proceeds from the sale of U.S. Treasury notes. The acquired reserves had existing productive operations that have
been included in the statements of income as of the closing date of the acquisition.

The factors we used to determine the fair market value of acquisitions include, but are not limited to,

discounted future net cash flows on a risked-adjusted basis, geographic location, quality of resources, potential
marketability and financial condition of the lessees.

51




PENN VIRGINIA RESOURCE PARTNERS, L.P. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

4. Property and Equipment
Property and equipment includes:

December 31,

2004 2003
(in thousands)

Coal PIOPEITIES .+ oottt ettt ettt e et e $251,244  $249,950
Coal services €qUIPMENt . .. .. ..o\ttt 17,442 16,660
Land .. .o 1,797 1,791
Timber .. ..o 188 188
Other eqUIPMENt . ... ... e 875 1,377

271,546 269,966
Less: Accumulated depreciation, depletion and amortization ............. 49,931 31,820
Net property and equipment . ..............uiiiineiinnneinnee... $221,615  $238,146

5. Equity Investments

As described in Note 3, “Acquisitions,” we acquired a 50 percent interest in Coal Handling Solutions, LLC,
a joint venture formed to own and operate end-user coal handling facilities. We account for the investment under
the equity method of accounting. In 2004, the original cash investment of $28.4 million was capitalized. At
December 31, 2004, our equity investment totaled $27.9 million, which exceeded our portion of the underlying
equity in net assets by $12.7 million. The difference is being amortized to equity earnings over the life of coal
services contracts in place at the time of the acquisition. In accordance with the equity method, we recognized
equity earnings of $0.4 million in 2004 with a corresponding increase in the investment. Cash distributions of
approximately $1.0 million received from the joint venture in 2004 were recorded as a reduction of the
investment.

6. Allowance for Prepaid Minimums

We establish provisions for losses on long-term prepaid minimums if we determine that we will not recoup
all or part of the outstanding balance. Collectibility is reviewed periodically and an allowance is established or
adjusted, as necessary, using the specific identification method. The allowance is netted against long-term
prepaid minimums on the accompanying consolidated balance sheet. The following table presents the activity of
our allowance for prepaid minimums for each of the last three years:

Year Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002
(in thousands)
Balance at beginning of period . ... ....... ... . i $1,334  $1,240 $1475
Charges tO BXPEIMSE . . o .o vt ottt e 180 94 115
Deductionsandother ......... ... ... ittt — — (350)
Balance atendof period . .......... ... . i $1,514  $1,334  $1,240
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7. Accrued Liabilities

Accrued liabilities include:

December 31,
2004 2003

(in thousands)
Accrued INETEST . . o . ottt et e e e $1,499  $1,382
Accrued Property taXes ... ....vun ittt e 650 611
Accrued royalty €XPENSe . . .. ..t 296 550
L 11T 498 367
Total accrued Habilities . .. ..o vttt e et e e e $2,943  $2,910

8. Asset Retirement Obligations

Effective January 1, 2003, we adopted Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) No. 143,
“Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations,” which addresses financial accounting and reporting for
obligations associated with the retirement of tangible long-lived assets and the associated asset retirement costs.
SFAS No. 143 applies to legal obligations associated with the retirement of long-lived assets that result from the
acquisition, construction, development or normal use of assets.

The fair value of a liability for an asset retirement obligation is recognized in the period in which it is
incurred if a reasonable estimate of fair value can be made. The fair value of the liability is also added to the
carrying amount of the associated asset and is depreciated over the life of the asset. The liability is accreted
through charges to accretion expense, which are recorded as additional depreciation, depletion and amortization.
If the obligation is settled for other than the carrying amount of the liability, a gain or loss on settlement will be
recognized.

We identified all required asset retirement obligations and determined the fair value of these obligations on
the date of adoption. The determination of fair value was based upon regional market and facility type
information. In conjunction with the initial application of SFAS No. 143, we recorded a cumulative effect of
change in accounting principle of $0.1 million as a decrease to income in 2003. Below is a reconciliation of the
beginning and ending aggregate carrying amount of our asset retirement obligations, which are included in other
liabilities on the accompanying consolidated balance sheets.

Year Ended

December 31,
2004 2003

(in thousands)

Balance at beginning of period ........ ... $666  $—
Initial adoption Nty .. .. ... oot e — 435
Liabilities incurred ........ ... . . e — 198
ACCTEHION EXPLISE . o . v v vt et e ettt e et e e e e e et e e 57 33
Balance atend of period ...... ... .. . . $723  $666
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9. Long-Term Debt
Long-term debt includes:

December 31,
2004 2003
(in thousands)

Revolving credit facility—variable rate of 4.1 percent at December 31,

2004 . $ 30,000 $ 2,500
Senior unsecured notes, net of interestrate SWap . ...........vvveroennn.. 87,726 89,286
117,726 91,786

Less: Current Maturities . .. oo oottt ettt et i e e e 4,800 1,500
Netlong-termdebt ......... ... iiiuirei i, $112,926  $90,286

Revolving Credit Facility

We have a $100 million unsecured revolving credit facility (the “Revolver”) that expires in October 2006.
The Revolver is with a syndicate of financial institutions led by PNC Bank, National Association (“PNC”) as its
agent. The Revolver is available for general partnership purposes, including working capital, capital expenditures
and acquisitions, and includes a $5 million sublimit that is available for working capital needs and distributions
and a $5 million sublimit for the issuance of letters of credit. We had utilized letters of credit of $1.6 million as
of December 31, 2004 and 2003.

At our option, indebtedness under the Revolver will bear interest at either (i) the Eurodollar rate plus an
applicable margin which ranges from 1.25 percent to 2.25 percent based on our ratio of consolidated indebtedness to
consolidated EBITDA (as defined by the credit agreement) for the four most recently completed fiscal quarters, or
(ii) the higher of the federal funds rate plus 0.50 percent or the prime rate as announced by PNC. We pay
commitment fees on the unused portion of the Revolver. The financial covenants of the Revolver include, but are
not limited to, maintaining levels of debt to consolidated EBITDA and consolidated EBITDA to interest. The
financial covenants restricted our additional borrowing capacity under the Revolver to approximately $38.6 million
at December 31, 2004. As of December 31, 2004, we were in compliance with all of the covenants.

In connection with the anticipated Cantera Acquisition, during the fourth quarter of 2004, we entered into a
bridge loan commitment with two financial institutions. The bridge loan was terminated late in the fourth quarter
of 2004, and we expect to replace it with the expanded credit facility we are currently negotiating. In the fourth
quarter of 2004, we paid loan issue costs of approximately $1.2 million related to the bridge loan commitment,
which were recorded as interest expense during the fourth quarter of 2004.

Senior Unsecured Notes

In March 2003, we closed a private placement of $90 million of senior unsecured notes (the “Notes”). The
Notes bear interest at a fixed rate of 5.77 percent and mature over a ten-year period ending in March 2013, with
semi-annual principal and interest payments. The Notes contain various covenants similar to those contained in
the Revolver. The Notes rank pari passu in right of payment with all other unsecured indebtedness. As of
December 31, 2004, we were in compliance with all of the covenants.

Interest Rate Swap

Concurrent with the closing of the Notes in March 2003, we entered into an interest rate swap agreement
with an original notional amount of $30 million, to hedge a portion of the fair value of the Notes. The notional
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amount decreases by one-third of each principal payment. Under the terms of the interest rate swap agreement, the
counterparty pays a fixed annual rate of 5.77 percent on the notional amount and receives a variable rate equal to the
floating interest rate which will be determined semi-annually and will be based on the six-month London Interbank
Offering Rate plus 2.36 percent. Settlements on the swap are recorded as interest expense. At December 31, 2004,
the notional amount was $29.5 million. This swap is designated as a fair value hedge because it has been determined
that it is highly effective, and it has been reflected as a decrease in long-term debt of $0.8 million and $0.7 million
as of December 31, 2004 and 2003, respectively.

Debt Maturities

Aggregate maturities of the principal amounts of long-term debt for the next five years and thereafter are as
follows (in thousands):

2005 $ 4,800
2006 e 38,300
2007 . 11,000
2008 . 12,700
2000 e e e 14,100
Thereafter .. ... ... . e 37,600
118,500
Less: Interest rate SWap . ... ..ottt (774)
Total debt, including current Maturities . .......... ..ot errinneeeenenn. $117,726

10. Partnership Capital and Distributions

As of December 31, 2004, partners’ capital consisted of 12,337,151 common units representing a 66.9
percent limited partner interest, 5,737,410 subordinated units representing a 31.1 percent interest and a two
percent general partner interest. As of December 31, 2004, affiliates of Penn Virginia, in the aggregate, owned a
44.2 percent interest in the Partnership consisting of 2,048,426 common units, 5,737,410 subordinated units and a
two percent general partner interest.

We will distribute 100 percent of Available Cash (as defined in the partnership agreement) within 45 days
after the end of each quarter to unitholders of record and to the general partner. Available Cash is generally
defined as all cash and cash equivalents of the Partnership on hand at the end of each quarter less reserves
established by the general partner for future requirements. The general partner has the discretion to establish cash
reserves that are necessary or appropriate to (i) provide for the proper conduct of our business; (i) comply with
applicable law, any of our debt instruments or other agreements; or (iii) provide funds for distributions to
unitholders and the general partner for any one or more of the next four quarters.

Cash Distributions

Distributions of Available Cash to holders of subordinated units are subject to the prior rights of holders of
common units to receive the minimum quarterly distribution (“MQD”) for each quarter during the subordinated
period and to receive any arrearages in the distribution of the MQD on the common units for the prior quarters
during the subordination period. The MQD is $0.50 per unit ($2.00 per unit on an annual basis). We expect to
make quarterly distributions of $0.50 or more per common unit to the extent we have sufficient cash from our
operations after payment of fees and expenses. In general, we will pay any cash distributions we make each
quarter in the following manner:

» first, 98 percent to the common units and two percent to the general partner, until each common unit has
received a minimum quarterly distribution of $0.50 plus any arrearages in the payment of the minimum
quarterly distribution from prior quarters;
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* second, 98 percent to the subordinated units and two percent to the general partner, until each
subordinated unit has received a minimum quarterly distribution of $0.50; and

*  third, 98 percent to all units, pro rata, and two percent to the general partner, until each unit has received
a distribution of $0.55.

» fourth, 85 percent to all units, pro rata, and 15 percent to the general partner, until each unit has received
a distribution of $0.65.

If cash distributions per unit exceed $0.65 in any quarter, our general partner will receive a higher
percentage of the cash we distribute in excess of that amount in increasing percentages up to 50 percent.

In December 2004, we announced an increase of $0.0225 per unit in the quarterly distribution effective with
the first quarter 2005 distribution. This increase results in a quarterly distribution of $0.5625 per unit, with the
increase over $0.55 per unit paid 85 percent to all units, pro rata, and 15 percent to the general partner.

Subordination Period

During the subordination period, the common units will have the right to receive the MQD, plus arrearages,
before we make any distributions on the subordinated units. The subordination period will end once we meet
certain tests regarding the payments of distributions as defined in the partnership agreement, but it generally
cannot end before September 30, 2006. When the subordination period ends, all remaining subordinated units
will convert into common units on a one-for-one basis and the common units will no longer be entitled to
arrearages.

Before the end of the subordination period, 50 percent of the subordinated units, or up to 3,824,940
subordinated units, will convert into common units on a one-for-one basis immediately after the distribution of
available cash to partners in respect of any quarter ending on or after:

» September 30, 2004 with respect to 25 percent of the subordinated units; and

+ September 30, 2005 with respect to 25 percent of the subordinated units.

The early conversions will occur if at the end of the applicable quarter each of the following three tests are met:

+ distributions of available cash from operating surplus on each common unit and subordinated unit
equaled or exceeded the minimum quarterly distribution for each of the three consecutive, non-
overlapping four-quarter periods immediately preceding that date;

¢ the adjusted operating surplus generated during each of the three immediately preceding,
non-overlapping four-quarter periods equaled or exceeded the sum of the minimum quarterly
distributions on all of the outstanding common units and subordinated units during those periods on a
fully diluted basis and the related distribution on the 2 percent general partner interest during those
periods; and

» there are no arrearages in payment of the minimum quarterly distribution on the common units.

Because we met these financial tests at September 30, 2004, 25 percent of the subordinated units converted
to common units on November 12, 2004.

Limited Call Right

If at any time persons other than our general partner and its affiliates do not own more than 20 percent of the
outstanding common units, our general partner has the right, but not the obligation, to purchase all of the
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remaining common units at a price not less than the then current market price of the common units. If quarterly
distributions of Available Cash exceed the MQD or certain target distribution levels, the general partner will
receive distributions, which are generally equal to 15 percent, then 25 percent and then 50 percent of the
distributions of Available Cash that exceed the target distribution levels.

For the years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, we declared and paid quarterly distributions of
$2.12, $2.06 and $1.84 per unit to the unitholders, respectively. The quarterly distributions paid in 2002 included
a first quarter distribution in the amount of $0.34 per unit to unitholders of record on January 31, 2002, which
represented the pro rata MQD from October 30, 2001, the closing date of the initial public offering, through
December 31, 2001.

11. Related Party Transactions
General and Administrative

Penn Virginia charges us for certain corporate administrative expenses which are allocable to the
Partnership. When allocating general corporate expenses, consideration is given to payroll, general corporate
overhead and employee benefits. Any direct costs are charged directly to the Partnership. Total corporate
administrative expenses charged to the Partnership totaled $1.5 million, $1.1 million and $1.2 million for the
years ended December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively. These costs are reflected in general and
administrative expenses in the accompanying consolidated statements of income. Management believes the
allocation methodologies used are reasonable.

Accounts Payable—Affiliate

Amounts payable to related parties totaled $1.0 million and $0.6 million as of December 31, 2004 and 2003,
respectively. This balance consists primarily of amounts due to the general partner for general and administrative
expenses incurred on the Partnership’s behalf and is included in accounts payable on the accompanying
consolidated balance sheets.

12. Long-Term Incentive Plan

The long-term incentive plan is administered by the compensation committee of the general partner’s board
of directors. We reimburse the general partner for all payments made pursuant to the programs. Grants may be
made to employees and non-employee directors of restricted units, phantom units, options to purchase common
units or deferred common units. Non-employee directors may also receive common units. The general partner
must issue new units or acquire existing common units to be delivered upon the vesting of restricted units,
common units to be issued upon the vesting of phantom units, or common units to be issued upon exercise of a
unit option or upon the delivery of units underlying deferred common units. The general partner may purchase
common units in the open market at the prevailing market price or directly from Penn Virginia Corporation or
another third party, including units already owned by the general partner. The general partner is entitled to
reimbursement by us for the cost incurred in acquiring these common units or in paying cash in lieu of common
units upon vesting of the phantom units. The aggregate number of units reserved for issuance under the long-term
incentive plan is 300,000.

For the year ended December 31, 2004, the general partner granted an aggregate of 21,361 units under the
Plan with a weighted average grant-date fair value of $34.70 per unit, including 16,400 restricted common units
granted to officers and employees of the general partner and 4,961 common units granted to non-employee
directors. For the year ended December 31, 2003 the general partner granted an aggregate of 15,950 units under
the Plan with a weighted average grant-date fair value of $23.41 per unit, including 8,950 restricted common
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units granted to officers and employees of the general partner, 4,000 restricted common units granted to
non-employee directors and 3,000 common units granted to non-employee directors. For the year ended
December 31, 2002 the general partner granted an aggregate of 37,500 units under the Plan with a weighted
average grant-date fair value of $24.50 per unit, including 21,500 restricted common units granted to officers of
the general partner and 16,000 restricted common units granted to non-employee directors, of which 4,000 vested
in 2002. Twenty-five percent (15,713 units) of outstanding restricted units vested in November 2004.

The general partner is reimbursed for all direct compensation expenses incurred on our behalf, and the
amount is charged to expense over the vesting period. General and administrative expenses relating to the vesting
of restricted units totaled $0.4 million, $0.2 million and $0.4 million for the years ended December 31, 2004,
2003 and 2002, respectively.

13. Commitments and Contingencies
Rental Commitments

Minimum annual rental commitments payable by the Partnership under all coal property non-cancelable
operating leases in effect at December 31, 2004, were $0.4 million per year. The rental commitments relate to
various coal reserves that we lease and do not expire until the respective reserves have been exhausted or the
leases have been cancelled. We believe the future rental commitments cannot be estimated with certainty;
however, based on historical trends, we believe that we will incur approximately $0.4 million in rental
commitments in perpetuity until the reserves have been exhausted.

Legal

We are involved, from time to time, in various legal proceedings arising in the ordinary course of business.
While the ultimate results of these proceedings cannot be predicted with certainty, management believes these
claims will not have a material effect on our financial position, liquidity or operations.

Environmental Compliance

The operations of our lessees are subject to environmental laws and regulations adopted by various
governmental authorities in the jurisdictions in which these operations are conducted. The terms of our coal
property leases impose liability for all environmental and reclamation liabilities arising under those laws and
regulations on the relevant lessees. The lessees are bonded and have indemnified us against any and all future
environmental liabilities. We regularly visit coal properties under lease to monitor lessee compliance with
environmental laws and regulations and to review mining activities. Management believes that our lessees will be
able to comply with existing regulations and does not expect any material impact on our financial condition or
results of operations.

We have reclamation bonding requirements with respect to certain unleased and inactive properties. As of
December 31, 2004 and 2003, environmental liabilities totaled $1.5 million and $1.6 million, respectively, which
represents our best estimate of these liabilities as of those dates. Given the uncertainty of when the reclamation
area will meet regulatory standards, a change in this estimate could occur in the future. The environmental
liabilities are not covered by the indemnification agreement with Penn Virginia.

Mine Health and Safety Laws

There are numerous mine health and safety laws and regulations applicable to the coal mining industry.
However, since we do not operate any mines and do not employ any coal miners, we are not subject to such laws
and regulations. Accordingly, we have not accrued any related liabilities.
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14. Major Lessees

The Partnership depends on a few groups of lessees for a significant portion of its revenues. Each lessee
group generally includes two or more affiliated entities which conduct mining operations at several locations.
Revenues from major lessee groups that exceed ten percent of total revenues are as follows:

Year Ended December 31,
2004 2003 2002
Revenues % Revenues % Revenues %

(dollars in thousands)

Lessee group A—Coal royalty segment . ................ $15,085 199 $14,187 255 $ 706 1.8
Lessee group B—Coal royalty segment ................. 13,219 175 6,775 122 5,175 134
Lessee group C—Coal royalty and coal services segments .. 10,541 139 5179 93 2,800 7.3
Lessee group D—Coal royalty segment ................. 10,193 135 7906 142 7,059 183
Lessee group E—Coal royalty and coal services segments . . 9,280 123 6,760 12.1 6,738 175

15. Segment Information

Segment information has been prepared in accordance with SFAS No. 131, “Disclosure about Segments of
an Enterprise and Related Information.” Pursuant to SFAS No. 131, operating segments are defined as
components of an enterprise about which separate financial information is available and is evaluated regularly by
the chief operating decision maker, or decision-making group, in assessing performance. Our chief operating
decision-making group consists of the Chief Executive Officer and other senior officials. This group routinely
reviews and makes operating and resource allocation decisions among our coal royalty and coal services
operations. Our reportable segments are as follows:

Coal Royalty

The coal royalty segment includes management of coal properties located in the Appalachian region of the
United States and New Mexico and other land management activities such as selling standing timber and real
estate rentals.

Coal Services

The coal services segment consists primarily of fee-based infrastructure facilities leased to certain lessees to
generate additional coal services revenues and our investment in a joint venture which provides coal handling
facilities to end-user industrial plants.
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PENN VIRGINIA RESOURCE PARTNERS, L.P. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

The following is a summary of certain financial information relating to the Partnership’s segments:

Coal Coal
Royalty Services Total
(in thousands)
For the year ended December 31, 2004
Revenues, before equity earnings . ... .....ooviin et $ 71,843 $ 3,391 §$ 75,234
Equity earnings . .. ... ..ot e — 396 396
Operating costs and EXPENSES . . . .. oottt e 15,456 1,023 16,479
Depreciation, depletion and amortization ............... ... .. oo 16,288 2,344 18,632
Operating income (1088) . ...\ttt e $ 40,099 $ 420 $ 40,519
INterest EXPENSE . ..ottt e (7,267)
Interest INCOME oottt et e e e e e e e e e 1,063
NELINCOME . . . o oot et et et e e e e e e e e $ 34,315
TOtal @SSELS . . o oottt e $243,768 $40,667 $284,435
Equity INVESIMENLS . . ... oottt e — 27,881 27,881
Capital expenditures (1) ..ottt i i i e ie e 1,363 785 2,148
For the year ended December 31, 2003
Revenues . ... $ 53,530 $ 2,112 $ 55,642
Operating costs and EXPEMSES . . « .« vttt ittt ettt 10,269 2,235 12,504
Depreciation, depletion and amortization ................c..0iiiiin... 15,328 1,250 16,578
Operating income (1088) . ...\ttt t et $ 27,933 $(1,373) $ 26,560
INterest EXPenSe .. ...\ttt e (4,986)
INtereSt INCOIMIE . .ttt e e e e e e 1,223
Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle ..................... (107)
NELINCOMIE - o v ottt et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e $ 22,690
Total ASSEtS . . .ttt $245,781 $14,111 $259,892
Capital expenditures (2) .. ... ...t 6,449 4,009 10,458
For the year ended December 31, 2002
REeVenUES ..o e $ 36460 $ 2,148 $ 38,608
Operating costs and EXPENSes . . .. ..o vi ettt 9,097 1,129 10,226
Depreciation, depletion and amortization ................ .. .. ... ... ... 3,274 681 3,955
Operating income (10SS) . . ..o v vt vttt e e e $ 24,089 $ 338 §$ 24,427
Interest EXPense .. ... ...ttt e (1,758)
INterest INCOMIE . . . .ottt e e e e e e e e 2,017
NELINCOMIE © . o v vttt e e et e e e e e e e e e e $ 24,686
TOtAl @SSELS . . o oottt $252,269 $14,306 $266,575
Capital expenditures (3) . ... .ot e 138,520 9,015 147,535
(1) Includes noncash expenditures of $1.1 million.
(2) Includes noncash expenditures of $5.2 million.
(3) Includes noncash expenditures of $54.7 million.

Operating income is equal to total revenues less operating costs and expenses and depreciation, depletion and
amortization. Operating income does not include certain other income items, interest expense, interest income and
income taxes. Identifiable assets are those assets used in the Partnership’s operations in each segment.
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PENN VIRGINIA RESOURCE PARTNERS, L.P. AND SUBSIDIARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS—(Continued)

16. Quarterly Financial Information (Unaudited)

Summarized Quarterly Financial Data:

2004

Revenues ..................... N
Operating income . ........coiuriiiini e
NetInCOmE . ..ot e e e e

Basic and diluted net income per limited partner unit, common and

subordinated ... ... e

Weighted average number of units outstanding, basic and diluted:

COMIMON . ..ttt e e e e s
Subordinated . ...... e e

2003

Revenues . ... ... e
Operating income ........... it
NetinCOME ...ttt e it e e e et et e e

Basic and diluted net income per limited partner unit, common and

subordinated: * ... . e e

Weighted average number of units outstanding, basic and diluted:

COMMON ..ttt et ettt et et
Subordinated . ....... ... e

First
Quarter

Second Third Fourth
Quarter  Quarter  Quarter

(in thousands, except share data)

$17,963

10,407
7,650

$13,241
6,076
$ 5514

10,127
7,650

$18,732 $19,397 $19,538
9,616 10,540 11,175
$ 8469 § 9,147 $ 8572

$ 046 $ 050 $ 046
10,425 10,425 11,700
7,650 7,650 6,375

$13,281 $12,812 $16,308
6,216 6,350 7,918
$ 5,159 § 5269 $ 6,748

$ 028 % 029 $ 037

10,292 10,373 10,373
7,650 7,650 7,650

*  First quarter amount is net of $0.01 per limited partner unit cumulative effect of change in accounting

principle.

17. Subsequent Event

In connection with the Cantera Acquisition, we entered into notional derivative contracts in January 2005 to
mitigate the risk of price volatility for approximately 75 percent of the net volume of natural gas liquids expected
to be sold from April 2005 through December 2006. As of February 25, 2005, the derivative instruments had an
aggregate fair value of $6.7 million, favorable to the counterparty. Upon closing of the Cantera Acquisition, we
expect the derivative instruments to qualify as cash flow hedges in accordance with SFAS No. 133, “Accounting
for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities.” Until closing the acquisition, the derivative instruments will
not qualify for hedge accounting; thus, changes in the derivative instruments’ fair value prior to the closing will
be recognized in earnings immediately. The fair value of the derivative instruments will change as the market
prices of the underlying commodities change. Any settlement of the derivative instruments will be paid or

received over the 21-month term of the contracts.
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Item 9. Changes In and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

None.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
(a) Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Partnership, under the supervision and with the participation of its management, including its principal
executive officer and principal financial officer, performed an evaluation of the design and operation of the
Partnership’s disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Securities and Exchange Act Rule 13a-15(e)) as
of the end of the period covered by this report. Based on that evaluation, the Partnership’s principal executive
officer and principal financial officer concluded that such disclosure controls and procedures are effective to
ensure that material information relating to the Partnership, including its consolidated subsidiaries, was
accumulated and communicated to the Partnership’s management and made known to the principal executive
officer and principal financial officer, during the period for which this periodic report was being prepared.

(b) Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Our management, including our chief executive officer and our chief financial officer, is responsible for
establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over our financial reporting. Our management assessed the
effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2004. This evaluation was
completed in accordance with the framework published by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission. Our management has concluded that, as of December 31, 2004, our internal control over
financial reporting was effective. KPMG LLP has issued an attestation on our management’s assessment of our
internal contro] over financial reporting.

(c) Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

No changes were made in the Partnership’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during our
last fiscal quarter that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control
over financial reporting, except as discussed in the following paragraph.

During the quarter ended December 31, 2004, we updated our software and implemented stricter user access
controls in connection with our remediation of the material weakness we identified and disclosed in the quarter
ended September 30, 2004.

Item 9B. Other Information

There was no information which was required to be disclosed by the Company on a Current Report on
Form 8-K during the fourth quarter of 2004, which the Company did not so disclose.
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Part III
Item 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the General Partner

As is commonly the case with publicly traded limited partnerships, we do not employ any of the persons
responsible for managing or operating our business, but instead we reimburse the general partner for its services.
The following table sets forth information concerning the directors and executive officers of the general partner.
All directors of the general partner are elected, and may be removed, by Penn Virginia Resource GP Corp., its
sole member and wholly owned subsidiary of Penn Virginia Corporation.

Name égs Position with the General Partner

A JamesDearlove . .......... ... . ... . 57 Chairman of the Board of Directors and Chief
Executive Officer

EdwardB. Cloues, IT . ........ ... ... ... i .. 57 Director

JohnP.DesBarres ..........covvuinannann., 65 Director

KeithB. Jarrett ......... ... ... ..., 56 Director

JamesR.Montague ......... .. ... .. ... .. 57 Director

Richard M. Whiting ........................... 50 Director

KeithD. Horton ......... ..., 51 President, Chief Operating Officer and Director

NancyM.Snyder........ ... .. ... ... 52 Vice President, General Counsel and Director

Frank A.Pici ....... .. v 49  Vice President, Chief Financial Officer and
Director

RonaldK.Page ......... ... ... .. ... ... . ... 54 Vice President, Corporate Development

A. James Dearlove has served as the Chairman of the Board of Directors and Chief Executive Officer of the
general partner since December 2002 and October 2001, respectively. He has served in various capacities with
Penn Virginia Corporation since 1977, including as President and Chief Executive Officer since May 1996,
President and Chief Operating Officer from 1994 to May 1996, Senior Vice President from 1992 to 1994 and
Vice President from 1986 to 1992. He also serves as a director of the National Council of Coal Lessors.

Edward B. Cloues, I is a director of the general partner. Since January 1998, Mr. Cloues has served as
Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer of K-Tron International, Inc., a provider of material handling
equipment and systems. From October 1979 to January 1998, Mr. Cloues was a partner of Morgan, Lewis &
Bockius LLP, an international law firm. He also serves as a director of Penn Virginia Corporation and is the
non-executive Chairman of the Board, a member of the Human Resources Committee and the Chairman of the
Executive Committee, of AMREP Corporation.

John P. DesBarres is a director of the general partner. He is currently a private investor and leadership
consultant residing in Park City, Utah. From 1991 to 1995 he served as the Chairman, President and Chief
Executive Officer of Transco Energy Company, an energy company which merged with The Williams
Companies, Inc. in 1995. Mr. DesBarres serves as a director of American Electric Power, Inc. (“AEP”) and
Texas Eastern Products Pipeline, Inc., the general partner of TEPPCO Partners, LP (“TPP”). He serves as
chairman of the Human Resources Committee of the AEP Board and also as a member of the AEP Governance
Committee. He also serves as chairman of the TPP Special Committee and is a member of the Compensation and
Audit Committees of the TPP Board.

Keith B. Jarrett is a director of the general partner. Since January 2002, Mr. Jarrett has been providing
financial expertise in the investment technology area to start-up companies. Prior to January 2002, he served in
various capacities with affiliates of The Thomson Corporation, a public company listed on the New York,
Toronto and London Stock Exchanges. Mr. Jarrett served as Chief Executive Officer of Thomson Financial
Ventures from 1998 to 2001 and as Chief Executive Officer of Thomson Financial International from 1998 to
June 2000. The Thomson Financial companies are in the business of selling information and technology solutions
to the global banking and securities management industries.
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James R. Montague is a director of the general partner. From 2001 to 2002, Mr. Montague served as
President of EnCana Gulf of Mexico LLC, a subsidiary of EnCana Corporation, which is in the business of oil
and gas exploration and production. From 1996 to June 2001, he served as President of two subsidiaries of
International Paper Company, [P Petroleum Company, an exploration and production oil and gas company, and
GCO Minerals Company, a company that manages International Paper Company’s mineral holdings. Mr.
Montague also serves as Chairman of the Board of Memorial Hermann Healthcare System. Mr. Montague is a
director, and a member of the Compensation Committee, of both the general partner of Magellan Midstream
Partners and of The Meridian Resource Corporation.

Richard M. Whiting is a director of the general partner. Mr. Whiting has been employed by Peabody Energy
Corporation in various capacities since 1976 and currently serves as Executive Vice President—Sales, Marketing
and Trading.

Keith D. Horton has served as the President, Chief Operating Officer and a director of the general partner
since October 2001. He has also served in various capacities with Penn Virginia Corporation since 1981,
including as a director and Executive Vice President since December 2000, Vice President of Eastern Operations
from 1999 to 2000 and Vice President from 1996 to 1999. Mr. Horton serves as a director of the Virginia Mining
Association, Powell River Project and Eastern Coal Council.

Nancy M. Snyder has served as Vice President, General Counsel and a director of the general partner since
October 2001. She has also served in various capacities with Penn Virginia Corporation since 1997, including as
Senior Vice President since February 2003, as Vice President from December 2000 to February 2003 and as
General Counsel and Corporate Secretary since 1997. From 1993 to 1997, Ms. Snyder was a solo practitioner
representing clients generally in connection with mergers and acquisitions and general corporate matters. From
1990 to 1993, Ms. Snyder served as general counsel to Nan Duskin, Inc. and its affiliated companies, which were
in the businesses of womens’ retail fashion and real estate. From 1983 to 1989, Ms. Snyder was an associate at
the law firm of Duane Morris LLP, where she practiced securities, banking and general corporate law.

Frank A. Pici has served as Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the general partner since October
2001 and as a director since October 2002. He has also served as Executive Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer of Penn Virginia Corporation since September 2001. From 1996 to 2001 Mr. Pici served as Vice
President—Finance and Chief Financial Officer of Mariner Energy, Inc., a Houston, Texas-based oil and gas
exploration and production company. Mr. Pici worked in various positions at Cabot Oil & Gas Company
including as Corporate Controller from 1994 to 1996, Director, Internal Audit from 1992 to 1994, and Region
Accounting Manager from 1989 to 1992.

Ronald K. Page has served as Vice President, Corporate Development for the general partner since July
2003. From January 1998 to May 2003, Mr. Page served in various positions with El Paso Field Services
Company, including Vice President of Commercial Operations—Texas Pipelines and Processing, Vice President
of Business Development and Director of Business Development. From October 1995 through December 1997,
Mr. Page was employed as Vice President of Business Development by TPC Corporation (formerly Texas Power
Corporation). For 17 years prior to 1995, Mr. Page served in various positions at Seagull Energy Corporation,
including Vice President of Operations at Seagull’'s Enstar Natural Gas Company, Vice President of Pipelines
and Marketing and Manager of Engineering.

Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 requires executive officers and directors of the general
partner and persons who own more than ten percent of a registered class of our equity securities to file reports of
beneficial ownership and changes in beneficial ownership with the Securities and Exchange Commission and to
furnish us with copies of all such reports. We believe that all such filings were made on a timely basis in 2004.
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Item 11. Executive Compensation

The officers of the general partner manage and operate our business. We do not directly employ any of the
persons responsible for managing or operating our business, but instead reimburse the general partner for the
services of such persons. The following table sets forth the compensation paid during 2004, 2003 and 2002 for
services rendered in all capacities to the general partner’s Chief Executive Officer and the other four most highly
compensated executive officers whose compensation exceeded $100,000 in 2004.

Summary Compensation Table

Long-Term
Annual Compensation Compensation
Other Annual All Other
Compensation LTIP Compensation

Name and Principal Position Year Salary ($)(1) Bonus ($)(1) $HDR) Payouts ($)(3) $)(4)

A. James Dearlove ............ 2004 170,000 110,000 238,000 145,777 774

Chief Executive Officer 2003 165,000 62,500 35,715 — 774

2002 155,000 62,500 138,900 — 774

KeithD.Horton ............... 2004 217,800 130,500 217,800 154,612 414

President and Chief Operating 2003 211,500 72,000 35,715 — 414

Officer ’ 2002 202,500 27,000 196,775 — 486

RonaldK.Page ............... 2004 148,500 90,000 180,000 13,827 287

Vice President, Corporate 2003 72,000 28,800 16,950 — 207
Development(5)

Frank A.Pici ................. 2004 116,500 70,000 140,000 60,740 270

Vice President and Chief Financial 2003 113,000 40,000 23,810 — 270

Officer 2002 107,500 30,000 81,025 — 263

Nancy M. Snyder .............. 2004 100,000 60,000 120,000 60,740 414

Vice President and General 2003 96,250 40,000 23,810 — 414

Counsel 2002 87,500 40,000 81,025 — 264

(1) Messrs. Dearlove, Horton, Page and Pici and Ms. Snyder devote approximately 50 percent, 90 percent, 90
percent, 50 percent and 50 percent of their professional time, respectively, to the business and affairs of the
Partnership. They devote the balance of their professional time to the business and affairs of Penn Virginia
Corporation, which is the indirect sole member of the general partner. For administrative purposes, Penn
Virginia Corporation pays these amounts directly to these officers, and then the general partner reimburses
such amounts to the general partner. The chart above does not include amounts paid to these officers in
consideration for time devoted to the business of Penn Virginia Corporation.

(2) These amounts include the value on the date of grant of restricted units granted under the general partner’s Long
Term Incentive Plan. Generally, these restricted units vest 25 percent, 25 percent and S0 percent on October 30 of
each of 2004, 2005 and 2006, respectively, if the Partnership has made all minimum quarterly distributions
payable to unitholders as required under its partnership agreement prior to the time of such vesting. These
amounts also include car allowances, which Penn Virginia Corporation pays directly to the named executives and
then receives reimbursement from the general partner. The amounts of car allowance reimbursements made by
the general partner range from approximately $3,000 to approximately $8,000 per year. Messrs. Deatlove,
Horton, Page, Pici and Ms. Snyder received $25,020, $27,600, $2,390, $11,140 and $11,140, respectively, of
distributions paid with respect to the restricted units in 2004. Restricted units may not be transferred, and are
subject to forfeiture upon termination of employment, until such time as the restricted units vest.

(3) Represents the value of restricted units which vested on November 12, 2004,

(4) Reflects reimbursements to Penn Virginia Corporation for life insurance premiums.

(5) Mr. Page joined the general partner in July 2003.
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Compensation of Directors

During the year ended December 31, 2004, each non-employee director of the general partner was entitled
to receive 4,000 restricted units upon election to the Board, 1,000 common units on the first business day of each
year and quarterly cash payments of $3,750 each. Each non-employee director also received $1,000 for each
Board of Directors and committee meeting he attended. Committee Chairmen received an additional $250 for
each meeting they chaired.

Beginning on January 1, 2005, each non-employee director of the general partner will receive an annual
retainer of $110,000, consisting of $20,000 of cash and $90,000 worth of deferred common units. The actual
number of deferred common units awarded in any given year will be based on the fair market value of the
Partnership’s units on the date on which such award is granted. Each deferred common unit represents one
common unit representing a limited partner interest in the Partnership, which vests immediately upon issuance
and is available to the holder upon termination or retirement from the Board. [Directors are restricted from
selling such units until six months after such termination or retirement.] The Chairperson of the Audit Committee
receives an annual cash retainer of $15,000, and each Audit Committee member receives an annual cash retainer
of $10,000. The Chairpersons of all other Committees receive annual cash retainers of $2,500. In addition to
annual retainers, each non-employee director receives $1,000 cash for each Board of Directors and Committee
meeting he attends. Directors appointed during a year, or who cease to be directors during a year, receive a pro
rata portion of cash and deferred common units. Directors may elect to receive any cash payments in common
stock or deferred common units, and may elect to defer the receipt of any cash or units they receive under the
Company’s Non-Employee Directors Deferred Compensation Plan.

Long-term Incentive Plan

The Amended and Restated Penn Virginia Resource GP, LLC, Long-Term Incentive Plan permits the grant
of awards covering an aggregate of 300,000 common units to employees and directors of the general partner and
employees of its affiliates who perform services for us. Awards under the long-term incentive plan can be for
common units, restricted units, unit options, phantom units and deferred common units. The plan is administered
by the compensation committee of the general partner’s board of directors.

Our general partner’s board of directors in its discretion may terminate or amend the long-term incentive
plan at any time with respect to any units for which a grant has not yet been made. The general partner’s board of
directors also has the right to alter or amend the long-term incentive plan or any part of the plan from time to
time, including increasing the number of units that may be granted subject to unitholder approval as required by
the exchange upon which the common units are listed at that time. However, no change in any outstanding grant
may be made that would materially impair the rights of the participant without the consent of the participant.

Restricted Units. A restricted unit entitles the grantee to receive a common unit upon the vesting of the
restricted unit. The general partner granted 16,400 restricted units to directors, officers and employees of the
general partner in 2004 with respect to services rendered in 2003. Restricted units vest upon terms established by
the committee, but in no case earlier than the conversion to common units of the Partnership’s outstanding
subordinated units. In addition, the restricted units will vest upon a change of control of the general partner or
Penn Virginia Corporation.

If a grantee’s employment with or membership on the board of directors of the general partner terminates
for any reason, the grantee’s restricted units will be automatically forfeited unless, and to the extent, the
compensation committee provides otherwise. Common units to be delivered upon the vesting of restricted units
may be common units acquired by the general partner in the open market, common units already owned by the
general partner, common units acquired by the general partner directly from us or any other person or any
combination of the foregoing. The general partner will be entitled to reimbursement by us for the cost incurred in
acquiring common units.

¥
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Distributions payable with respect to restricted units may, at the committee’s request, be paid directly to the
grantee or held by the Company and made subject to a risk of forfeiture during the applicable restriction period.

Unit Options. The long-term incentive plan also permits the grant of options covering common units. No
grants of unit options have been made under the long-term incentive plan. Unit options will have an exercise
price that, in the discretion of the committee, may be less than, equal to or more than the fair market value of the
units on the date of grant. In general, unit options granted will become exercisable over a period determined by
the compensation committee. In addition, the unit options will become exercisable upon a change in control of
the general partner or Penn Virginia Corporation.

Upon exercise of a unit option, the general partner will acquire common units in the open market or directly
from us or any other person or use common units already owned by the general partner, or any combination of
the foregoing. The general partner will be entitled to reimbursement by us for the difference between the cost
incurred by the general partner in acquiring these common units and the proceeds received by the general partner
from an optionee at the time of exercise. Thus, the cost of the unit options will be borne by us.

Phantom Units. A phantom unit entitles the grantee to receive a common unit upon the vesting of the
phantom unit, or in the discretion of the compensation committee, the cash equivalent of the value of a common
unit. The compensation committee will determine the time period over which phantom units granted to
employees and directors will vest. In addition, the phantom units will vest upon a change of control of the
general partner or Penn Virginia Corporation.

If a grantee’s employment or membership on the board of directors terminates for any reason, the grantee’s
phantom units will be automatically forfeited unless, and to the extent, the compensation committee provides
otherwise. Common units delivered upon the vesting of restricted units may be common units acquired by the
general partner in the open market, common units already owned by the general partner, common units acquired
by the general partner directly from us of any other person or any combination of the foregoing. The general
partner will be entitled to reimbursement by us for the cost incurred in acquiring common units. The
compensation committee, in its discretion, may grant tandem distribution equivalent rights with respect to
phantom units.

Deferred Common Units. The long-term incentive plan permits the grant of deferred common units to
directors. Each deferred common unit represents one common unit, which vests immediately upon issuance and
is available to the holder upon termination or retirement from the board of directors of the general partner.
Deferred common units awarded to directors receive all cash or other distributions paid by the Partnership on
account of its common units.
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Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Unitholder
Matters ‘

The following table sets forth, as of February 24, 2005, the amount and percentage of the Partnership’s units
beneficially owned by (i) each person known by the Partnership to own beneficially more than five percent of its
units, (ii) each director of the general partner, (iii) each executive officer of the general partner and (iv) all
executive officers and directors of the general partner as a group.

Percentage Percentage of Percentage
Common of Common Subordinated Subordinated of Total

Name of Beneficial Owner Units Units(1) Units Units(1) Units
Penn Virginia Resource LP Corp. (2) ........ 1,907,248 15.5 5,351,282 933 40.2
Kanawha Rail Corp (2) ............ R 139,178 1.1 386,128 6.7 2.9
Peabody Natural Resources Company ........ 838,158 6.8 — — 4.6
Edward B.Clouwes, II ..................... 7,383(3) — — — —_
A.James Dearlove ....................... 18,600(4) — — — —
JohnP.DesBarres ....................... 17.422(3) — —_ — —
KeithD.Horton ......................... 18,300(5) — — — —
KeithB.Jarrett .................... ... ... 10,422(3) — — — —
James R. Montague ...................... 7.922(3) — — — —
RonaldK.Page ......................... 1,250(7) — — —_ —
Frank A.Pici ............ .. ... .. ..... 7.0008) — — — —
NancyM.Snyder ........................ 8,0008) — — — —
Richard M. Whiting ...................... 2,000
All directors and executive officers as a group

(10persons) ........covviiiiiann.. 98,299 — — — —

(1) Based on 12,338,458 common units issued and outstanding February 24, 2005 and 5,737,410 subordinated
units issued and outstanding on February 24, 2005. On February 24, 2005, there were approximately 8,000
holders of the Partnership’s common units and two holders of the Partnership’s subordinated units. Unless
otherwise indicated, beneficial ownership is less than one percent of the Partnership’s common units and/or
subordinated units.

(2) Penn Virginia Corporation is the ultimate parent company of Penn Virginia Resource LP Corp., Kanawha
Rail Corp. and Penn Virginia Resource GP, LLC. As such, Penn Virginia Corporation may be deemed to
beneficially own the units held by Penn Virginia Resource LP Corp., Kanawha Rail Corp. and Penn Virginia
Resource GP, LLC which, together, constitute 16.6 percent of the Partnership’s common units, and 100
percent of the Partnership’s subordinated units.

(3) Includes 3,000 restricted units which are currently subject to a restriction against transfer and an obligation
to forfeiture to the general partner upon termination of Board membership for any reason other than death.
Such restrictions lapse at the same time and in the same proportion as our outstanding subordinated units are
converted to common units during the Subordination Period (as defined in the Partnership’s Amended and
Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership). See Item 11, “Executive Compensation—Long Term Incentive
Plan.” Also includes 422 deferred common units.

(4) Includes 9,900 Restricted Units.

{5) Includes 10,500 Restricted Units.

(6) Includes 1,275 Restricted Units.

(7) Includes 938 Restricted Units.

(8) Includes 4,125 Restricted Units.
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Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

We are managed and controlled by our general partner pursuant to our partnership agreement. Under our
partnership agreement, the general partner is reimbursed for all direct and indirect expenses it incurs or payments
it makes on our behalf. These expenses include salaries, fees and other compensation and benefit expenses of
employees, officers and directors, insurance, other administrative or overhead expenses and all other expenses
necessary or appropriate to conduct our business. The costs allocated to us by the general partner for
administrative services and overhead totaled $1.5 million, $1.1 million and $1.2 million for the years ended
December 31, 2004, 2003 and 2002, respectively.

The partnership agreement provides for incentive distributions payable to the general partner out of the
Partnership’s Available Cash (as defined in the partnership agreement) in the event quarterly distributions to
unitholders exceed certain specified targets. In general, subject to certain limitations, if a quarterly distribution
exceeds a target of $0.55 per common unit, the general partner will receive incentive distributions equal to
(i) 15 percent of that portion of the distribution per common unit which exceeds but is not more than $0.65, plus
(ii) 25 percent of that portion of the quarterly distribution per commeon unit which exceeds $0.65 but is not more
than $0.75, plus (iii) 50 percent of that portion of the quarterly distribution per common unit which exceeds
$0.75. See also Item 1, “Business—Ownership by and Relationship with Penn Virginia Corporation.”

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The following table presents fees for professionals audit services rendered by KPMG LLP for the audit of
the Partnership’s annual financial statements for 2004 and 2003, and fees billed for other services rendered by
KPMG LLP.

2004 2003
Auditfees (1) .. ..o e $434,800  $279,950
Auditrelatedfees (2) . ... .. 14,200 5,000
Tax fees . ... — —
Allotherfees . ... ... — —
Total fEES . . oot $449,000  $284,950

(1) Audit fees consist of fees for the audits of the Partnership’s and the General Partner’s financial statements,
the audit of the Partnership’s internal controls over financial reporting (2004 only), consents for registration
statements and comfort letters. Also included in audit fees are reimbursements of travel related expenses. In
2004, our audit fees include $193,000 pertaining to the audit of internal controls over financial reporting.

(2) Audit-related fees in 2004 and 2003 include $5,000 pertaining to debt compliance letters issued by KPMG
for our $90 million senior notes. In 2004, we paid additional audit-related fees of $9,200 pertaining to
accounting consultations related to acquisitions. There were no such fees for 2003.

Policy on Audit Committee Pre-Approval of Audit and Permissible Non-Audit Services of Independent
Auditors

The Audit Committee’s policy is to pre-approve all audit and audit-related services provided by the
independent auditors. These services may include audit services, audit-related services, tax services and other
services. The Audit Committee may also pre-approve particular services on a case-by-case basis. The
independent auditors are required to periodically report to the Audit Committee regarding the extent of services
provided by the independent auditors in accordance with such pre-approval. The Audit Committee may also
delegate pre-approval authority to one or more of its members. Such member(s) must report any decisions to the
Audit Committee at the next scheduled meeting.
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Part IV

Item 15. Exhibits, Financial Statement Schedules and Reports on Form 8-K

The following documents are filed as exhibits to this Report on Form 10-K.

(a) Financial Statements

(3:1)

(3.2)
(3.3)
(3.4)
(3.5

(3.6)

3.7

(3.8)

3.9

(10.1)

(10.2)

(10.3)

Financial Statements—The financial statements filed herewith are listed in the Index to
Financial Statements on page 38 of this report.

All schedules are omitted because they are not required, inapplicable or the information is
included in the consolidated financial statements or the notes thereto.

Exhibits

Certificate of Limited Partnership of Penn Virginia Resource Partners, L.P. (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 3.1 to Registrant’s Form S-1 filed on July 19, 2001)

First Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of Penn Virginia Resource
Partners, L.P. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.2 to Registrant’s Annual Report on Form
10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002)

Amendment No. 1 to First Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of Penn
Virginia Resource Partners, L. P. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.3 to Registrant’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002)

Amendment No. 2 to First Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of Penn
Virginia Resource Partners, L. P. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.4 to Registrant’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003)

Amendment No. 3 to First Amended and Restated Agreement of Limited Partnership of Penn
Virginia Resource Partners, L. P. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.5 to Registrant’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003)

Certificate of Formation of Penn Virginia Operating Co., LLC (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 3.3 to Amendment No. 2 to Registrant’s Form S-1 filed October 4, 2001)

Form of Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement of Penn Virginia
Operating Co., LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.4 to Amendment No. 3 to
Registrant’s Form S-1 filed October 16, 2001)

Certificate of Formation of Penn Virginia Resource GP, LLC (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 3.5 to Amendment No. 1 to Registrant’s Form S-1 filed September 7, 2001)

Third Amended and Restated Limited Liability Company Agreement of Penn Virginia
Resource GP, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.7 to Registrant’s Annual Report on
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002)

Credit Agreement dated October 30, 2001 among Penn Virginia Operating Co., LLC, PNC
Bank, National Association as agent and the other financial institutions party thereto
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Amendment No. 2 to Registrant’s Form S-1 filed
October 4, 2001)

Third Amendment to Credit Agreement dated as of October 31, 2003 among Penn Virginia
Operating Co., LLC, PNC Bank, National Association as agent and the other financial
institutions party thereto. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended September 30, 2003)

Fourth Amendment to Credit Agreement dated as of July 1, 2004, among Penn Virginia
Operating Co., LLC, PNC Bank, National Association as agent and the other financial
institutions party thereto. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 to Registrant’s Quarterly
Report on Form 10-Q for the quarterly period ended June 30, 2004)
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(10.4)

(10.5)

(10.6)
(10.7)
(10.8)
(10.9)
(10.10)

(10.11)

(10.12)

(10.13)

(10.14)

(10.15)

(10.16)

(10.17)

(12.1)

(14)

(21.1)

(23.1)

Contribution and Conveyance Agreement, dated as of September 13, 2001 among Penn
Virginia Operating Co., LLC, Penn Virginia Holding Corp., Penn Virginia Resource Holdings
Corp., Penn Virginia Resource LP Corp., Penn Virginia Resource GP Corp. and the other
parties named therein (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 to Amendment No. 2 to
Registrant’s Form S-1 filed October 4, 2001)

Contribution, Conveyance and Assumption Agreement, dated September 14, 2001, among Penn
Virginia Resource GP, LL.C, Penn Virginia Resource Partners, 1..P., Penn Virginia Operating
Co., LLC and the other parties named therein (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.3 to
Amendment No. 2 to Registrant’s Form S-1 filed October 4, 2001)

Penn Virginia Resource GP, LLC Amended and Restated Long-Term Incentive Plan

Form of deferred common unit agreement

Form of restricted unit award agreement

Penn Virginia Resource GP, LLC Short-Term Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.5 to Amendment No. 2 to Registrant’s Form S-1 filed October 4, 2001)

Penn Virginia Resource GP, LLC Non-Employee Directors Deferred Compensation Plan
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the
year ended December 31, 2003)

Omnibus Agreement dated October 30, 2001 among the Partnership, Penn Virginia
Corporation, Penn\Virginia Resource GP, LLC and Penn Virginia Operating Co., LLC
(“Omnibus Agreement”) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 to Amendment No. 3 to
Registrant’s Form S-1 filed October 16, 2001)

Amendment to Omnibus Agreement Dated December 19, 2002 (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.7 to Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31,
2002)

Coal Mining Lease dated December 19, 2002 between Suncrest Resources LLC and Sterling
Smokeless Coal Company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 to Registrant’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002)

Coal Mining Lease and Sublease dated December 19, 2002 between Fieldcrest Resources LLC
and Gallo Finance Company (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 to Registrant’s Annual
Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002)

Closing Contribution, Conveyance and Assumption Agreement dated October 30, 2001 among
Penn Virginia Operating Co., LLC, Penn Virginia Corporation, Penn Virginia Resource
Partners, L. P., Penn Virginia Resource GP, LLC, Penn Virginia Resource L.P. Corp., Wise
LLC, Loadout LLC, PVR Concord LL.C, PVR Lexington LLC, PVR Savannah LLC, Kanawha
Rail Corp. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 to Amendment No. 2 to Registrant’s
Form S-1 filed October 4, 2001)

Purchase and Sale Agreement by and among Peabody Energy Corporation, Eastern Associated
Coal Corp., Peabody Natural Resources Company and Penn Virginia Resource Partners, L.P.
(incorporated by reference to Registrant’s Report on Form 8-K filed on December 19, 2002)
Purchase and Sale Agreement by and among A. T. Massey Coal Company, Inc., Marten County
Coal Corporation, Tennessee Consolidated Coal Co., Tennessee Energy Corp. and Road Fork
Development Company, Inc. and Loadout LLC and Penn Virginia Resource Partners, L. P.
dated as of July 1, 2004 (incorporated by reference to Registrant’s Current Report on Form §-K
filed on July 20, 2004)

Ratio of Earnings to Fixed Charges

Penn Virginia Resource GP, LLC and Penn Virginia Resource Partners, L.P. Executive and
Financial Officer Code of Ethics (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 14 of Registrant’s
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2003)

List of Subsidiaries of Penn Virginia GP, LLC (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 21.1 to
Registrant’s Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002)

Consent of KPMG LLP ‘
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(31.1)
(31.2)
(32.1)
(32.2)

(99.1)

Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.

Balance sheet dated December 31, 2004, of Penn Virginia Resource GP, LLC, and Independent
Auditors’ Report.

(b) Reports on Form 8-K

On November 4, 2004, the Partnership furnished a Current Report on Form 8-K announcing that it issued a
press release regarding its financial results for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2004.

On November 29, 2003, the Partnership furnished a Current Report on Form 8-K announcing that it entered
into a Purchase Agreement with Cantera Resources Holdings LLC (“Holdings”) providing for the Partnership’s
purchase from Holdings of 100 percent of the membership interests of Cantera Natural Gas, LLC for $191

million cash.

On February 7, 2005, and February 15, 2005, the Partnership furnished a Current Report on Form 8-K and
an amendment thereto on Form 8-K/A, respectively, regarding a change to the compensation of the directors of
the Partnership’s general partner.
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PARTNERSHIP INFORMATION

DIRECTORS

A. James Dearlove

Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer
of the General Partner and Chief Executive Officer
and President of Penn Virginia Corporation

Edward B. Cloues, I}*

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
of K-Tron International, Inc. and
Director of Penn Virginia Corporation

John P. DesBarres"*?
Private Investor. Former Chairman, President and
Chief Executive Officer of Transco Energy Company

Keith D. Horton

President and Chief Operating Officer of the
General Partner and Executive Vice President
of Penn Virginia Corporation

Keith B, Jarrett??

Chairman, Rockport Funding, LLC and Founder
and Former Chief Executive Officer of
Thomson Financial Ventures

James R. Montague'??

Retired. Former President of Encana Gulf of Mexico, LLC

and former President of IP Petroleum Company and
GCO Minerals Company

Frank A. Pici

Vice President and Chief Financial Officer of the
General Partner and Executive Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer of Penn Virginia Corporation

Nancy M. Snyder

Vice President and General Counsel of the General
Partner and Senior Vice President, General Counsel
and Corporate Secretory of Penn Virginia Corporation

Richard M. Whiting

Executive Vice President - Sales, Marketing
and Trading of Peabody Energy

1 Member of the Audit Committee

2 Member of the Compensation and Benefits Committee
3 Member of the Conflicts Committee

MANAGEMENT

A. James Dearlove
Chief Executive Officer

Keith D. Horton
President and Chief Operating Officer

Frank A. Pici
Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Nancy M. Snyder
Vice President and General Counse/!

Ronald K. Page
Vice President, Corporate Development

Forrest W. McNair
Vice President and Controller

MAJOR SUBSIDIARIES

Penn Virginia Operating Co., LLC
PVR Midstream LLC

Fieldcrest Resources, LLC
Suncrest Resources, LLC

TRANSFER AGENT
AND REGISTRAR

American Stock Transfer
and Trust Company
Mailing Address:

59 Maiden Lane

New York, NY 10038
Telephone: (800) 937-5449
Facsimile: (718) 236-2641

L-R, top row:
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Keith D. Horton,
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L-R, bottom row:
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Frank A. Pici

not in photo:
Richard M. Whiting




Fonp Laronia

SHE WWW DVIesource com




